EXHIBITS TO THE
JANUARY 12, 2021
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
EXHIBIT A

Proposed Rules FAQ
This document answers questions about the proposed rule amendments. A summary of all of the
rule proposals is available at texasbar.com/rulesvote. If you have a question that is not addressed
here, please email it to rulesvote@texasbar.com.
Ballot Item E: Information About Legal Services (Lawyer Advertising and Solicitation)
Q: In general, how do the proposed advertising rules differ from the current advertising rules?
A: The proposal is intended to significantly simplify, modernize, and clarify the rules governing
lawyer advertising, solicitation, and other communications about legal services. The proposed
rules are intended to make compliance easier for lawyers, while continuing to focus on the
prevention of false or misleading communications, as well as overreaching in solicitations. The
proposal reduces Part VII of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct from seven
rules to six rules (numbered 7.01 through 7.06). Proposed Rule 7.01(a) maintains the central
provision that “[a] lawyer shall not make or sponsor a false or misleading communication about
the qualifications or services of a lawyer or law firm.”
Q: Does the proposal allow a lawyer to practice law under a trade name?
A: The proposal allows a lawyer to practice law under a trade name that is not false or misleading.
This is a change from the current blanket prohibition on the use of trade names by lawyers in
private practice. The proposed allowance for trade names that are not false or misleading is in line
with the rules of the vast majority of other states. (Under the proposal, an advertisement of legal
services still must include the name of a lawyer who is responsible for its content.)
Q: Does the proposal define “advertisement” and “solicitation communication”?
A: Yes, the proposal adds definitions for these terms. This is significant, as certain provisions of
the proposal, such as the filing requirements, only apply if the communication constitutes an
“advertisement” or a “solicitation communication.” (However, other provisions, such as the
prohibition on false or misleading communications about a lawyer’s qualifications or services,
apply to a communication regardless of whether it meets one of these definitions.)
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Q: How does the proposal address a lawyer advertising that he or she is a certified specialist?
A: The proposal continues to allow a lawyer to advertise that he or she is a certified specialist in a
field of law only if such certification is awarded by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization
(TBLS) or an organization accredited by TBLS.
Q: Does the proposal treat communications directed to certain professionals differently than the
current rules?
A: The proposal provides new exemptions to the ban on in-person or live/interactive solicitation
for communications directed to another lawyer or to a person who is known by the lawyer to be
an experienced user of the type of legal services involved for business matters. Solicitation
communications directed to these categories of professionals are also exempt from filing
requirements and from the requirement to include an “ADVERTISEMENT” designation.
Q: Does the proposal expand the categories of communications exempt from filing requirements?
A: Yes. Proposed Rule 7.05 provides a list of the categories of communications that are expressly
exempt from the filing requirements, which is an expansion from the current exemptions. Of
particular note, Proposed Rule 7.05(a) exempts “any communication of a bona fide nonprofit legal
aid organization that is used to educate members of the public about the law or to promote the
availability of free or reduced-fee legal services,” and Proposed Rule 7.05(g) exempts “a
communication in social media or other media, which does not expressly offer legal services, and
that: (1) is primarily informational, educational, political, or artistic in nature, or made for
entertainment purposes; or (2) consists primarily of the type of information commonly found on
the professional resumes of lawyers.”
Ballot Item F: Reporting Professional Misconduct and Reciprocal Discipline for Federal
Court or Federal Agency Discipline
Q: How does the proposal amend current self-reporting and reciprocal-discipline provisions?
A: Currently, Rule 8.03(f) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct requires “[a]
lawyer who has been disciplined by the attorney-regulatory agency of another jurisdiction” to
provide the chief disciplinary counsel with a copy of the order or judgment within 30 days. If the
conduct constitutes professional misconduct in Texas, Part IX of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure sets out the procedures under which reciprocal discipline could be imposed in Texas.
To better protect the public, the proposal extends the current self-reporting and reciprocaldiscipline provisions to expressly cover professional discipline by a federal court or federal
agency. The proposal specifically states that, for purposes of these provisions, “‘discipline’ by a
federal court or federal agency means a public reprimand, suspension, or disbarment; the term does
not include a letter of ‘warning’ or ‘admonishment’ or a similar advisory by a federal court or
federal agency.”
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Q: Do the provisions apply to the failure to pay dues or fees, or to procedural disqualification?
A: No, the provisions do not apply to purely administrative matters, such as failure to pay dues or
fees required to practice before a court or agency, or to procedural disqualification in a particular
case.
Q: Under the proposal, will a lawyer automatically be disciplined in Texas based upon the
reporting of discipline by a federal court or federal agency?
A: No. As with current provisions applicable to discipline imposed by the attorney-regulatory
agency of another state or the District of Columbia, the self-reporting of discipline by a federal
court or federal agency would not automatically result in discipline in Texas under the proposal.
If the conduct constitutes professional misconduct in Texas, Part IX of the Texas Rules of
Disciplinary Procedure (TRDP) sets out the procedures under which reciprocal discipline could be
imposed in Texas. Rule 9.01, TRDP, provides that “[a] certified copy of the order or judgment is
prima facie evidence of the matters contained therein, and a final adjudication in another
jurisdiction that an attorney licensed to practice law in Texas has committed Professional
Misconduct is conclusive for the purposes of a Disciplinary Action under this Part, subject to the
defenses set forth in Rule 9.04 below.” Under Part IX, discipline would only take place upon a
judgment from the Board of Disciplinary Appeals.
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Summary of Proposed Amendments
Ballot Item A: Scope and Objectives of Representation; Clients with Diminished Capacity
The proposal deletes Rule 1.02(g) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and adds Proposed
Rule 1.16 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct. Proposed Rule 1.16 is intended to provide
improved guidance when a lawyer represents a client with diminished capacity. Among its provisions, Proposed
Rule 1.16 permits a lawyer to take reasonably necessary protective action when the lawyer reasonably believes
that a client has diminished capacity, is at risk of substantial physical, financial, or other harm unless action is
taken, and cannot adequately act in the client’s own interest. Proposed Rule 1.16 provides a non-exhaustive list
of actions a lawyer may be authorized to take, including informal consultations that may be prohibited under
the current Rules.

Ballot Item B: Confidentiality of Information – Exception to Permit Disclosure to
Secure Legal Ethics Advice
Proposed Rule 1.05(c)(9) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct specifically clarifies that a
lawyer is permitted to disclose confidential information to secure legal advice about the lawyer’s compliance with
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.

Ballot Item C: Confidentiality of Information – Exception to Permit Disclosure to
Prevent Client Death by Suicide
Proposed Rule 1.05(c)(10) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct permits a lawyer to disclose
confidential information when the lawyer has reason to believe it is necessary to do so in order to prevent a client
from dying by suicide.

Ballot Item D: Conflict of Interest Exceptions for Nonprofit and Limited Pro Bono
Legal Services
In order to facilitate the provision of pro bono legal services, Proposed Rule 6.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules
of Professional Conduct creates narrow exceptions to certain conflict of interest rules when a lawyer provides
limited advice and brief assistance on a pro bono basis. For purposes of Proposed Rule 6.05, “‘limited pro bono
legal services’ means legal services that are: (1) provided through a pro bono or assisted pro se program sponsored
by a court, bar association, accredited law school, or nonprofit legal services program; (2) short-term services
such as legal advice or other brief assistance with pro se documents or transactions, provided either in person or
by phone, hotline, internet, or video conferencing; and (3) provided without any expectation of extended
representation of the limited assistance client or of receiving any legal fees in that matter.” This provision, in
various forms, has previously been adopted by 48 other states and the District of Columbia.

Ballot Item E: Information About Legal Services (Lawyer Advertising and Solicitation)
This comprehensive proposal amends Part VII of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct by
simplifying and modernizing lawyer advertising and solicitation rules. The proposal reduces Part VII from seven
rules to six rules (numbered 7.01 to 7.06). Among other changes, the proposal: 1) permits a lawyer to practice
law under a trade name that is not false or misleading; 2) defines “advertisement” and “solicitation
communication”; 3) simplifies disclaimer and filing requirements; 4) adds exemptions to certain solicitation
restrictions for communications directed to lawyers, persons with whom the lawyer has a close personal or prior
business or professional relationship, and persons known by the lawyer to be experienced users of the type of
legal services involved for business matters; 5) expands exemptions to filing requirements; and 6) expressly
addresses social media communications. The proposal maintains the prohibition on false or misleading
communications about the qualifications or services of a lawyer or law firm.

Ballot Item F: Reporting Professional Misconduct and Reciprocal Discipline for
Federal Court or Federal Agency Discipline
The proposal amends Rule 8.03 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and Rules 1.06 and
9.01 of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Procedure by extending existing self-reporting and reciprocal-discipline
provisions to cover certain professional discipline by a federal court or federal agency. The proposal specifically
limits “‘discipline’ by a federal court or federal agency” to mean a public reprimand, suspension, or disbarment.
The proposal clarifies that the term does not include a letter of “warning” or “admonishment” or a similar
advisory by a federal court or federal agency. The provisions also do not apply to mere procedural disqualification
in a particular case.

Ballot Item G: Assignment of Judges in Disciplinary Complaints and Related Provisions
These proposed rule changes simplify the assignment of judges, as well as address inconsistencies between current
Rule 3.02 of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Procedure and other statutes and rules already in place, whenever
a respondent attorney in a disciplinary case chooses to have the matter heard by a district court. The proposal
amends Rules 3.01, 3.02, and 3.03 of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Procedure by: 1) transferring judicial
assignment duties from the Supreme Court of Texas to the Presiding Judges of the Administrative Judicial Regions
when a respondent in a disciplinary complaint elects to proceed in district court; 2) relaxing geographic
restrictions on judicial assignments in disciplinary complaints; and 3) clarifying and updating various procedures
involved in the assignment of judges in disciplinary complaints.

Ballot Item H: Voluntary Appointment of Custodian Attorney for Cessation of Practice
Proposed Rule 13.04 of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Procedure authorizes a lawyer to voluntarily designate a
custodian attorney to assist with the designating attorney’s cessation of practice and provides limited liability
protection for the custodian attorney.

Note: The State Bar of Texas staff has provided this document as a general summary of the Proposed
Amendments to the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure. It does not address every aspect of the Proposed Amendments, and reasonable minds may differ
on the characterization of the Proposed Amendments. Voters are strongly encouraged to directly review the
Proposed Amendments, which are available at texasbar.com/rulesvote.

texasbar.com/rulesvote

FORM OF BALLOT

A.

Scope and Objectives of Representation; Clients with Diminished Capacity
Do you favor the adoption of the proposed amendments to Rule 1.02 of the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and the adoption of Proposed Rule 1.16 of the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct, as published in the January 2021 issue
of the Texas Bar Journal?

□
B.

YES

□

NO

Confidentiality of Information – Exception to Permit Disclosure to Secure Legal
Ethics Advice
Do you favor the adoption of Proposed Rule 1.05(c)(9) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar Journal?

□
C.

YES

□

NO

Confidentiality of Information – Exception to Permit Disclosure to Prevent Client
Death by Suicide
Do you favor the adoption of Proposed Rule 1.05(c)(10) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules
of Professional Conduct, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar Journal?

□
D.

YES

□

NO

Conflict of Interest Exceptions for Nonprofit and Limited Pro Bono Legal Services
Do you favor the adoption of Proposed Rule 6.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar Journal?

□
E.

YES

□

NO

Information About Legal Services (Lawyer Advertising and Solicitation)
Do you favor the adoption of the proposed amendments to Part VII of the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct, as published in the January 2021 issue of the
Texas Bar Journal?

□

YES

□

NO
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F.

Reporting Professional Misconduct and Reciprocal Discipline for Federal Court or
Federal Agency Discipline
Do you favor the adoption of the proposed amendments to Rule 8.03 of the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and Rules 1.06 and 9.01 of the Texas Rules of
Disciplinary Procedure, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar Journal?

□
G.

YES

□

NO

Assignment of Judges in Disciplinary Complaints and Related Provisions
Do you favor the adoption of the proposed amendments to Rules 3.01–3.03 of the Texas
Rules of Disciplinary Procedure, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar
Journal?

□
H.

YES

□

NO

Voluntary Appointment of Custodian Attorney for Cessation of Practice
Do you favor the adoption of Proposed Rule 13.04 of the Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure, as published in the January 2021 issue of the Texas Bar Journal?

□

YES

□

NO

A copy of the proposed changes to the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and the
Texas Rules of Disciplinary Procedure can be found at www.texasbar.com/rulesvote
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Reopening Courts Means

CAREFULLY BALANCING
PRIORITIES
I am mindful of the need to resume criminal court
proceedings in a way that balances public health and safety with the constitutional rights
of the accused. In June, the State Bar Board of Directors approved my request to form
the 17-member Presidential Task Force on Criminal Court Proceedings to support the
judiciary’s plans to resume operations in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. I’m pleased
to report the task force has released a set of recommendations that will help ensure our
courts strike that balance.

As A criminAl defense lAwyer,

Following nine weeks of remote meetings, the task force produced an interim report on
August 26 containing 14 recommendations. The members included judges, prosecutors,
and defense lawyers from across Texas. All agreed that no trial should proceed unless the
safety of all participants and the constitutional rights of the accused are adequately
protected, and their recommendations guide the way to achieving those goals.
One example of the balancing act is face coverings. The task force supported requiring
face coverings (shields and masks) in court, but said witnesses should remove their masks
while testifying so practitioners have an unobstructed view of their faces. Another
example is the issue of how to safely handle physical evidence. The task force supports
the creation of protocols in advance of a trial for the safe handling of evidence—which
could include digitizing evidence—but would not limit the right of any party to safely
publish admitted physical evidence to a jury. I encourage you to read the task force
report at texasbar.com/president, under the “Initiatives” heading.
The recommendations have been well received by the Texas Supreme Court and the
Office of Court Administration. The OCA’s subsequent recommendations to the court
regarding jury proceedings reflect the task force’s input. “The work of the task force was
extremely beneficial to OCA as we prepared our report and recommendations to the
Supreme Court,” said David Slayton, OCA administrative director. “Almost all of the
recommendations of the task force were incorporated in our recommendations and will
be helpful to courts as they plan to resume jury trial proceedings.”
I want to thank the task force co-chairs—124th State District Judge Alfonso Charles, Texas
District & County Attorneys Association President Kenda Culpepper, and Texas Criminal
Defense Lawyers Association President Grant Scheiner—and all task force members for
their work. This is a great example of lawyer self-governance in action and of the good that
comes when various segments of our bar bring their expertise to bear to solve big problems.
Eviction Resources for Attorneys and the Public
As mentioned in my email message on September 3, the State Bar has gathered resources
related to the potential eviction crisis for attorneys around the state to access and share
with those in need. These resources include free informational videos about COVID-19
and tenant-landlord legal issues, links to social service and legal aid agencies, and
information on how to volunteer to take pro bono cases. You can find these resources at
texasbar.com/renterinfo.
LARRY McDOUGAL

President, 2020-2021
State Bar of Texas
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Promises KEPT
of the State Bar of Texas Board of Directors, I announced
my action plan on issues of diversity, equity, and inclusion. Central to my plan is a series of
virtual community conversations on race relations to be held for each of the 17 State Bar
director districts across the state.
My goal is that every Texas lawyer will receive an email invitation to participate in at least
one of these free events before my term as president ends in June 2021. The concept is based
on Together We Dine, a successful project started in 2017 by the Dallas-based Project Unity
initiative in partnership with the Dallas Bar Association that brings together diverse groups for
facilitated conversations about race over dinner.
This is a non-confrontational listening exercise, and it allows people to openly discuss racism
in a way some of us never have before. Count me in that category: For years I’ve regularly gone
hunting or fishing or played golf with Black friends. They have stayed at my home and shared
meals at my dinner table, but we never discussed racism. When I attended a virtual Together
We Dine event recently, I found a safe place for everyone to discuss racism.
State Bar District Director Rob Crain, who helped launch Together We Dine as Dallas Bar
Association president in 2017, is helping me spearhead this statewide initiative. Project Unity
has graciously agreed to provide facilitators and run the programs for the bar.
Also as part of my plan, I want to work to increase minority representation on boards and
committees by updating appointment interest forms so applicants can indicate their
race/ethnicity, sex, gender identity, and sexual orientation. As president-elect last year, I was
responsible for making appointments to various boards and committees, and I spent
considerable time researching applicants to make sure my appointments were diverse. We
should make it easier on future presidents-elect to pursue diversity by changing these forms to
provide more information upfront.
I also plan to produce new implicit bias CLE courses—possibly including a free nonmandatory course—to be made available to all Texas lawyers.
At the September quArterly meeting

Update on Presidential Task Forces
I focused my October column on the great work of the Presidential Task Force on Criminal
Court Proceedings and its 14 recommendations to help ensure our courts balance public health
and safety with the constitutional rights of the accused when resuming operations. The Office of
Court Administration included almost all of the task force’s suggestions in its recommendations
to the Texas Supreme Court.
At its September 25 meeting, the State Bar board approved my requests to create a
grievance review task force and a work group on courthouse access badges for Texas lawyers.
Chaired by former Judge Michael Fields, of Houston, the 21-member Task Force on Public
Protection, Grievance Review, and the Client Security Fund will study the grievance process and
the Office of Chief Disciplinary Counsel with the mindset of ensuring the grievance process
remains fair to the lawyers of Texas while ensuring the public is protected from lawyers who may
take advantage of them. A recommendation will then be presented to the board of directors,
hopefully by the April 2021 board meeting. The board can then take action to implement
procedural issues and to refer any rule changes to its Discipline and Client-Attorney Assistance
Program Committee and the Committee on Disciplinary Rules and Referenda. Please send
any concerns or recommended changes to larry.mcdougal@texasbar.com.
The 14-member Courthouse Access Badge Workgroup is chaired by State Bar District
Director David Sergi, of San Marcos. The goal of this group is to work with state and county
officials to seek a mutual agreement on the courthouse access issue.
At the January 22 board of directors meeting, I will ask the board to approve another work
group. This group will focus on lawyer advertising and the changes necessary to make it more
user friendly and to recommend any rule changes to the State Bar board.
I look forward to providing additional updates as the work of these groups continues.
LARRY McDOUGAL

President, 2020-2021
State Bar of Texas
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Handling the HOLIDAYS
Even as I extend a hearty
“Happy Holidays” to all Texas lawyers, I know this season can be unhappy for many
of us—even when we’re not facing a pandemic and a recession.
We’ve come to the end of a most unusual and challenging year.

During my time as a police officer, I found the highest rates (and some of the most
violent cases) of domestic violence occurred during the holiday season. My time as a
criminal defense attorney has confirmed that for many, the holidays add additional
stress to our already stressful lives. When we add in the stresses that we as lawyers are
already facing in 2020, the Texas Lawyers’ Assistance Program provides a lifeline.
TLAP offers confidential help for Texas lawyers, judges, and law students with stress
and anxiety, depression, substance use, and other mental health issues. You can contact
TLAP 24/7 by text or phone at 800-343-TLAP (8527)—or find a wealth of online
well-being resources at tlaphelps.org.
I want to highlight a few TLAP resources that are especially timely:
• For people feeling isolated, struggling with a mental health issue, or in need of
recovery support, TLAP maintains a list of Well-Being Resources for Remote
Living at texasbar.com/tlaphelps/remote-well-being.
• TLAP’s Remote Well-Being Wednesday program in November focused on “How
Lawyers Can Handle the Holidays.” You can watch the program at the link
immediately above.
• TLAP now has a video counterpart to its “Stories of Recovery” series featured
on the Texas Bar Blog. These monthly videos include candid accounts of the
path to recovery. Follow TLAP on Facebook (@TLAPhelps) for the latest event
updates, including Zoom login information.
The Year Ahead
I have updated you in recent columns on the work of my various presidential task
forces and work groups, and I expect the months ahead will include even more
activity. The State Bar Board of Directors will meet virtually at 9 a.m. CST on
January 22 for its quarterly meeting, and you are all invited to watch the meeting,
sign up to speak, and submit written comments about the items before the board.
We are here to serve you and want your input.
I look forward to reporting more progress in 2021 as we work to support Texas
lawyers and the legal profession. Until then, take care of yourselves and enjoy the
holidays.

LARRY McDOUGAL

President, 2020-2021
State Bar of Texas
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DRAFT
OFFICIAL MINUTES
STATE BAR OF TEXAS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

Thursday, March 26, 2020 – 10:00 am
Via Telephonic Open Meeting Pursuant to Governor’s March 16, 2020,
Temporary Suspension of Certain Open Meetings Provisions*
Join from PC, Mac, iOS or Android Device:
Meeting URL: https://texasbar.zoom.us/j/759024475
Meeting ID: 759 024 475
Telephone Audio or Audio-Only:
877-853-5247 (Toll Free)
Meeting ID: 759 024 475
(Bridge will open at 9:45 am – recording will begin at 10:00 am)
Link to March 26, 2020, Executive Committee Agenda and Materials:
www.texasbar.com/bodmaterials
The Executive Committee met on March 26, 2020, via Telephonic Open Meeting Pursuant to Governor’s March 16, 2020,
Temporary Suspension of Certain Open Meetings Provisions. President Randy Sorrels called the meeting to order at
10:0am, and Executive Director Trey Apffel called the roll.
Present: Chair Jerry Alexander, Rebekah Brooker, Alison Colvin, Leslie Dippel, TYLA President Victor Flores, Jarrod
Foerster, Immediate Past Chair Laura Gibson*, Charlie Ginn, Wendy-Adele Humphrey, Shelby Jean*, Justice Debra
Lehrmann*, Aldo Lopez, Immediate Past President Joe K. Longley, President-elect Larry McDougal, Emily Miller*,
TYLA Immediate Past President Sally Pretorius, Dinesh Singhal, President Randy Sorrels, and James Wester.
*Nonvoting member
I.

Remarks from the General Public: There were no remarks from the general public.

II.

REPORTS

A. Report from the Executive Director:
Executive Director Apffel reported on recent travels, meetings, and activities. He reported on the SBOT response,
operations, and events during the COVID-19 situation. Mr. Apffel gave an update on the 1415 Lavaca property.
{EXHIBIT A}
B. Report from the President: President Randy Sorrels reported on recent travels and activities. He reported on member
and public service and outreach during the COVID-19 response. He reported that he will be appointing David Calvillo
of Houston as the new at-large director at the April board meeting. President Sorrels also reported on (1) the April
Board resolution in support of judicial independence, (2) the approval of emergency delegation of authority to the
Executive Director to take actions as needed in response to the COVID-19 disaster, and (3) an amicus brief filed by
the Family Law Section. {EXHIBIT B}
President Sorrels made a motion that the Executive Committee approve the resolution found in the materials
to grant authority to the Executive Director to take emergency actions as needed in response to the COVID-19
emergency. Director Charlie Ginn seconded. No discussion; motion carried.
President Sorrels made a motion that the Executive Committee ratify the Ad Hoc Submission Committee’s
decision to grant permission for the Family Law Section to file an amicus brief in In Re C.J.C (No. 19-0694) in
the Texas Supreme Court. Coming from a committee, no second was needed. No discussion; motion carried.
1
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There were no questions or adjustments to the January 9, 2020, Executive Committee minutes. The minutes
were approved by affirmation.

C. Report from the Chair of the Board: Chair Jerry Alexander provided a communications update which highlighted the
SBOT elections, the new custodian designation portal, mandatory bar litigation updates, and member benefits. Mr.
Alexander also gave an update on the upcoming chair elections that will be held at the April 2020 board meeting and
conducted online though the Board Effect portal.
Chair Jerry Alexander made a motion that the Executive Committee approve the use of online voting for the
election of the Board chair during the April 17, 2020, board meeting. Seconded by Director Jarrod Foerster.
No discussion; motion carried.

D. Report from the President-elect: President-elect Larry McDougal reported that the Budget Committee met on
December 11 to hear presentations from various State Bar divisions and departments, and that the committee
approved the FY 2020-21 budget as presented. {EXHIBIT C}
On behalf of the Budget Committee, President-elect McDougal made a motion that the State Bar’s proposed
budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 be approved for presentation to the Board and for publication in the March
2020 issue of the Texas Bar Journal. Coming from a committee, no second was needed. Discussion ensued;
motion carried.
E. Report from the Immediate Past President: Immediate Past President Joe K. Longley had no report.
F. Nominations & Elections:
Immediate Past President Joe K. Longley and Immediate Past Chair Laura Gibson reported that Pablo Almaguer of
Edinburg and Sylvia Firth of El Paso were selected as candidates for State Bar President-elect. They also reported that
there are 10 district director positions up for election this year. The election will begin on April 1 and end on April 30.
{EXHIBIT D}
G. Administration Committee: Director James Wester reported that the committee has been studying the possibility of
IOLTA exemptions for advanced flat fees below a certain amount.
H. Audit & Finance Committee: Director Jarrod Foerster gave an update on financial reports and a general review of
financial statements and internal audit reports. {EXHIBIT E}
I.

Insurance/Member Benefits Subcommittee: Director Leslie Dippel provided updates on the Texas Bar Private
Insurance Exchange and non-insurance member benefits.

J. Section Representatives to the Board: Section Representative Emily Miller reported that the Sections Department
cancelled 22 CLEs, meetings, and retreats and will be rescheduling Zoom meetings in April. Ms. Miller reported that
each section has been asked to develop and document the policies and procedures they use to handle their finances,
which will be due May 15. She reported that the Section Representatives to the Board Committee and the leadership
of the Council of Chairs have been working on a list of suggested improvements to the Board Policy Manual for
sections.
K. Commission for Lawyer Discipline/Chief Disciplinary Counsel Update:
Chief Disciplinary Counsel Seana Willing reported on the CDC’s response to COVID-19: all investigatory hearings
and evidentiary hearings scheduled for March and April have been postponed until further notice. The CFLD met
March 19 via Zoom and CDC staff are all working remotely. Ms. Willing gave an update on the grievance committee
appointment process which began in February 2020.
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L. Supreme Court Liaison Report:
Justice Lehrmann reported on the 7 issued emergency orders in response to the COVID-19 disaster and indicated that
oral arguments have been postponed.
M. Texas Young Lawyers Association: TYLA President Victor Flores reported on various TYLA initiatives including
“Your Voice Now”, and the new Texas Attorney Wellness website which will launch May 1. He reported that TYLA
cancelled their competition and that the April 2020 TYLA meeting will be virtual.
N. Report from General Counsel: No report.
O. Report from Legal Counsel: No report.
The Executive Committee recessed at 11:24 am and reconvened at 11:35 am.
P. Closed Session: At 11:35 am, the Executive Committee recessed the open meeting and reconvened in closed
session pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.071 for the purpose of consulting with legal counsel,
including regarding all pending or any contemplated litigation (including regarding McDonald et al. v. Sorrels
et al (No. 19-cv-00219 in the Western District of Texas), Rosalinda Solis v. Interra Sky 4801 Woodway, L.L.C
(No. 2019-18261 in the District Court of Harris County), and LawHQ v. Willing (No. 20-cv-00085 in the
Western District of Texas); and Section 551.074 to deliberate regarding personnel matter(s). With the
exception of Board liaisons and Section representatives, all other individuals including non-essential staff and
other guests excused themselves from the closed session.
Open Session: At 11:42 am, the open session of the Executive Committee meeting reconvened. During the
closed session, only matters relating to consultation with legal counsel concerning contemplated litigation were
discussed. No action was taken in closed session.
Q. Discussion ensued regarding the Bar Exam, law students, and universities.
R. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:51 am.
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EXHIBIT B

execuTive direcTor’s pAge
Trey Apffel can be reached at 512-427-1500, trey.apffel@texasbar.com, or @ApffelT on Twitter.

A Website to Help You

‘PRACTICE WELL’
On September 20, 2020, the State bar Of texaS launched itS neweSt member Service—

a new law practice management website designed to help Texas lawyers do well and
be well.
The website, texasbarpractice.com, offers lawyers a single place to:
• explore free practice management content produced by experienced attorneys;
• shop for practice manuals, jury charges, deskbooks, and reference guides; and
• subscribe to online practice manuals for downloadable forms and practice notes.
The Texas Bar Practice website combines resources and functions that previously
existed on the Texas Bar Books and State Bar websites while adding new resources
and a focus on lawyer well-being.
“We wanted to have a site where lawyers could go to get resources that would help
them create a sustainable, healthy practice,” said Sharon Sandle, who directs the
State Bar of Texas Law Practice Resources Division. “When you get to the website
one of the things that comes up is the slogan at the top of the page, ‘Practice Well.’
The idea being that you have substantive resources that help you do a good job as an
attorney but also have a practice that is healthy and sustainable and profitable for you.”

Law Practice Management CLE
The State Bar of Texas Law Practice
Management Committee will broadcast a
daylong CLE presentation on November 17
covering issues such as ethically selling
legal services, social media, podcasting
and vlogging, ethical billing practices,
dealing with online reviews, and
managing the virtual office. The course
is accredited for 5 hours of CLE credit,
including 2.75 ethics hours. Register
at http://www.texasbarcle.com/CLE/
AABuy1.asp?sProductType=EV&lID=18910.

For years, State Bar staff have tracked members’ calls on common practice
management issues and used that data to create the new website. Users will find free
resources on managing client files, cybersecurity, succession planning, and many
other issues. By the same token, member feedback also influenced the design of the
Texas Bar Books portion of the new website. In response to popular demand,
customers will now be able to browse products, access practice manual subscriptions,
pay invoices, and manage their individual or law firm accounts through a single site.
The design of Texas Bar Practice is meant to evoke a peaceful work environment, like
your ideal office where you can settle down and get some work done. The site is clean
and uncluttered, so you can find what you need quickly.
Funding for the website came from the State Bar’s 2020-2021 budget, which was
created under the leadership of President Larry McDougal and the board’s budget
committee. As detailed in my March 2020 column, the budget adds resources to
programs that provide tangible services to Texas lawyers—including member benefits,
law practice management, and the Texas Lawyers’ Assistance Program—while
maintaining the long-term goal of keeping three months of operating expenditures
in reserves.
It’s all part of our mission to support the administration of the legal system and enable
Texas lawyers to better serve their clients. I hope you’ll visit texasbarpractice.com and
let us know what you think.
Sincerely,
TREY APFFEL

Executive Director, State Bar of Texas
Editor in Chief, Texas Bar Journal
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execuTive direcTor’s pAge
Trey Apffel can be reached at 512-427-1500, trey.apffel@texasbar.com, or @ApffelT on Twitter.

Projects! Projects! Projects!

TYLA CONTINUES TO LEAD ON
DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION
features a breakout
session titled “Projects! Projects! Projects!” where speakers from the Texas Young Lawyers
Association and local young lawyer affiliates showcase their successful and innovative programs
that local bar associations can duplicate. That session title—with three exclamation points—
tells you a lot about TYLA. It speaks to both the number of projects our young lawyer leaders
create each year and the energy they bring to their work.
Each yEar, thE StatE Bar of tExaS local Bar lEadErS confErEncE

Take, for example, TYLA’s efforts on diversity. Working in partnership with the State Bar, the
TYLA Board of Directors has created and rolled out a number of projects in recent years aimed
at increasing diversity, equity, and inclusion in the legal profession. These projects range from
blogs and podcasts that amplify diverse voices to pipeline projects designed to help increase
the number of minority lawyers in Texas to more closely reflect the state’s diverse population.
This year, TYLA President Britney Harrison is stressing the importance of diversity, equity,
and inclusion in every project the board is developing. Part of her vision and directive for the
projects is to ensure participation by diverse speakers and writers from all parts of Texas. Some
specific projects include:
• Racial Justice Committee: This committee is charged with developing meaningful
content and materials for the Racial Justice Hub, a website that will include information
about racial justice, anti-racism, and allyship for lawyers and members of the public.

TYLA Diversity Projects
TYLA created the following diversity projects
as resources for lawyers and law students—
or anyone curious about the law or a legal
career. You can find most of these projects
and many more resources at tyla.org.
Websites
• I Was The First. You Can Be A Lawyer
Too!
• Lawyers Who Lunch
Podcasts
• SHERO
• Young Gunners
Community/Networking Events
• Speed Mentoring for Women Law
Students
• Strength in Unity
• TYLA Diversity Dinner
Other Resources
• Pregnancy and the Workplace: Know
Your Rights
• Pregnancy and the Workplace: Know
Your Obligations
• Retention Guide
• Affiliate Diversity Toolkit
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• Iconic Women in Legal History: Through a generous grant from the Texas Bar
Foundation, TYLA is developing the Iconic Women in Legal History project, which aims
to highlight and explore the roles of women who helped shape our culture and advance
civil and legal rights. The project will highlight Black women and other minorities who
are often left out of history books.
• Leadership Toolkit for Smaller/Rural Affiliates: A portion of this toolkit is devoted
to diversity and inclusion in leadership.
I applaud President Harrison and the TYLA board for their leadership on these issues. The State
Bar Board of Directors is also pursuing potential new diversity initiatives through the newly
created Task Force on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion and Justice in Leadership Workgroup
and through other efforts approved by the board at special meetings in July and September.1
Why is this the State Bar’s role? Diversity programs are necessary to address the lingering
effects of discrimination in the legal profession and legal education. These efforts help lawyers
and courts bring a range of viewpoints to bear on legal problems facing our state and help the
State Bar achieve its mission of promoting diversity in the administration of justice and the
practice of law and improving the quality of legal services in Texas.
As TYLA Immediate Past President Victor A. Flores likes to say, we are better together. So let’s
keep working together to achieve a better, stronger, and more unified Texas Bar for all members.
Sincerely,
TREY APFFEL

Executive Director, State Bar of Texas
Editor in Chief, Texas Bar Journal
notE
1. State Bar Board Approves Diversity Panel Rosters, Study of Model Discrimination Rule, 83 Tex. B.J. 654; State Bar Board
Takes Action on Diversity and Inclusion Issues at Special Meeting, 83 Tex. B.J. 534.
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TOJI Lawyers Flourish
DURING PANDEMIC AND
ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTY
While 2020 has seen record unemployment numbers brought on by a pandemic and a
volatile economy, lawyers in the Texas Opportunity & Justice Incubator have found themselves

well prepared to weather the uncertainty and to continue delivering legal services to Texas communities.
Over the past decade, the popularity of legal incubator programs focused on supporting
entrepreneurial lawyers while improving access to affordable legal services has grown exponentially.
The State Bar of Texas joined this movement in April 2017 by launching the Texas Opportunity
& Justice Incubator under the leadership of then-President Frank Stevenson.
In less than three years, the TOJI program helped start and build 72 solo, small, and nonprofit
law firms spanning 35 areas of law. Better yet, these firms are providing quality service to lowand modest-income clients—offering much-needed access to justice to our fellow Texans.
Some people can’t afford the market rate for lawyers in their communities, and there is tremendous
market opportunity for lawyers willing to offer accessible legal services.
Don’t take my word for it. We have real-world examples of TOJI lawyers and alumni who are
finding success through the innovative delivery of legal services:
• Calli Baldwin, of Richmond, was motivated to experiment with different fee structures,
including flat fees, to make quality legal representation more affordable for her family law clients.
• San Antonio immigration lawyer Mario Humberto Cantú reimagined his practice to focus
on empowering clients. By offering transparent pricing and using technology to improve
how he engages clients, Cantú helps them overcome systemic and financial barriers to justice.
• Austin’s Carl Guthrie and Kannon Moore co-founded the Texas Poverty Law Project and
argued the nation’s first virtual jury trial in Travis County Justice of the Peace Precinct
Five. You can read more about their endeavors in “Creating Alternatives,” an article in
the November 2020 Texas Bar Journal.
• Four TOJI alums—Nicole Burns, of Georgetown; Sonya Butts, of Houston; Deborah
Hubbs, of The Woodlands; and Kannon Moore, of Austin—were selected to join the
inaugural class of the Advocate Attorneys Consumer Protection Fellowship where they
provide access to justice for consumers in claims against debt collectors, credit reporting
agencies, and other financial predators.
• Caroline Nelson, of Austin, built concrete, creative legal service delivery options that range
from traditional to limited-scope representation, client coaching to intermediation, as well
as stand-alone courses that provide resources to families that may not be capable of hiring a
lawyer to help them navigate a disability-related school law issue.
• Nii Amaa Ollennu, of McKinney, developed and began implementing a video content
plan on YouTube tailored to his ideal clients, individuals in the justice gap, and those who
do not want to read long blog posts.
• Alex Shahrestani, of Austin, collaborated with his wife to offer startups and nonprofits a
variety of legal services using future-focused tech and billing practices, including process
automation and subscription fees.
As evidenced by these outstanding examples, TOJI helps lawyers gain the skills and knowledge to
grow sustainable businesses serving underserved communities in Texas.
No longer an exclusively Austin-based program, TOJI moved to a virtual platform in early 2020.
Now, attorneys from across the entire state of Texas, including its more rural and distant areas, can
join this supportive, vibrant community of like-minded entrepreneurs and learn to run a law office
with a focus on innovation and service.
If you want to collaborate with pioneering Texas lawyers who are making a difference in their
communities, then we are looking for you! TOJI will begin accepting applications for its sixth cohort
on December 7. Learn more and apply by visiting txoji.com and following @txoji_a2j on social media.
Sincerely,
TREY APFFEL

Executive Director, State Bar of Texas
Editor in Chief, Texas Bar Journal
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EXHIBIT C

2021-2022 PROPOSED COMBINED BUDGET
The State Bar proposed budgets for the 2021-2022 fiscal year are included here for your information. If you would like a copy of the budget summary, contact
the State Bar finance division director at 800-204-2222, ext. 1481. All interested persons are invited to a public hearing on the proposed budgets scheduled
for 9 a.m. Tuesday, April 6, 2021, in Room 101 at the Texas Law Center, 1414 Colorado, Austin, TX 78701. Because of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, it is possible
this hearing will be held remotely. Please go to texasbar.com/ourfinances for updates and instructions on how to participate remotely. The General Fund is
the operating fund for the State Bar of Texas. The Texas Bar Books Fund is considered an Enterprise Fund, which is defined as a proprietary fund that is used
to account for goods/services provided to the general public on a user-charge basis. The Special Revenue Funds are independent funds and do not use
any membership dues or revenues from the General Fund for operations. Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of
the State Bar’s major capital facilities and other capital expenditures.
GENERAL FUND

TEXAS BAR BOOKS FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE &
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

TOTAL PROPOSED
COMBINED BUDGET

REVENUES & RECEIPTS
MEMBERSHIP DUES
FEES
ADVERTISING
SALES
INVESTMENTS
GRANTS
CONTRIBUTIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES
RENT
OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL REVENUES
RECEIPTS FROM RESERVES
TOTAL REVENUES & RECEIPTS

$21,492,546
17,173,875
748,000
998,879
100,000
0
665,139
672,800
172,673
1,381,266
$43,405,178
1,666,405
$45,071,583

$0
30,000
0
2,342,161
300
0
0
48,922
0
1,323,500
$3,744,883
0
$3,744,883

$0
2,058,525
0
26,300
60,548
352,750
360,000
0
0
5,000
$2,863,123
223,000
$3,086,123

$21,492,546
19,262,400
748,000
3,367,340
160,848
352,750
1,025,139
721,722
172,673
2,709,766
$50,013,184
1,889,405
$51,902,589

EXPENDITURES
SALARIES
BENEFITS
TRAVEL
MEETINGS & CONFERENCES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
COURT FEES
PUBLICITY/ADVERTISING
DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS/LICENSES
EDUCATION/TRAINING
SUPPLIES/AWARDS/GIFTS/SPEC. ITEMS
RENTALS—OFFICE, EQUIPMENT, STORAGE
MAINTENANCE/REPAIR
UTILITIES
POSTAGE & FREIGHT
TELEPHONE
INSURANCE
ADMINISTRATIVE
FIXED ASSETS
PRINTING & COPYING
RESERVE FOR CONTINGENCIES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
BOARD COMMITMENTS (IN)/OUT
TRANSFERS (IN)/OUT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES, BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS

$17,966,317
6,540,681
2,072,916
4,424,944
3,052,776
88,100
596,950
730,299
199,418
583,987
1,208,464
683,774
248,960
803,583
395,619
688,583
423,323
26,500
1,231,184
150,000
$42,116,378
1,666,405
1,288,800
$45,071,583

$1,308,192
450,010
44,500
2,400
135,624
0
92,000
68,215
9,440
27,500
164,376
30,600
0
141,494
3,900
7,500
747,852
64,000
359,202
0
$3,656,805
0
0
$3,656,805

$592,893
214,610
168,300
643,110
424,491
0
202,233
32,920
2,400
99,400
179,000
350,000
0
51,433
25,800
0
838,600
1,308,398
66,385
0
$5,199,973
(1,213,398)
(1,288,800)
$2,697,775

$19,867,402
7,205,301
2,285,716
5,070,454
3,612,891
88,100
891,183
831,434
211,258
710,887
1,551,840
1,064,374
248,960
996,510
425,319
696,083
2,009,775
1,398,898
1,656,771
150,000
$50,973,156
453,007
0
$51,426,163

$0

$88,078

$388,348

$476,426

7.88

290.64

NET REVENUES & RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES,
BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS
TOTAL BUDGETED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS

texasbar.com/tbj

263.13

19.63
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2021-2022 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
REVENUES & RECEIPTS
Attorney Membership Fees
Accounting/Management Fees
Bar Journal Revenue
MCLE Fees
TexasBarCLE Revenue
Website Revenue
CDC Disciplinary Fees
Advertising Review Fees
Member Benefit Fees
Other Revenue
TOTAL REVENUES
Receipts from Reserves
TOTAL REVENUES & RECEIPTS

EXPENDITURES, BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS CONTINUED
$21,492,546
658,255
552,577
3,453,950
13,454,193
495,000
555,405
368,600
935,309
1,439,343
$43,405,178
1,666,405
$45,071,583

ATTORNEY COMPLIANCE DIVISION

Attorney Compliance
Advertising Review
Client Attorney Assistance Program
Lawyer Referral
MCLE

BUDGET

FTES

$188,133
150,397
536,421
373,183
571,649

1.00
2.00
8.00
4.00
7.00

$1,311,814
386,118

5.75
3.00

$239,555

2.00

$88,263

–

OPERATIONS/SECURITY

Purchasing & Facilities
Customer Service
RESEARCH & ANALYSIS

MEMBER BENEFITS

EXPENDITURES, BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS
EXECUTIVE DIVISION

Executive
Associate Executive Director/Legal Counsel
Deputy Executive Director
Deputy Executive Director/External Affairs
Officers & Directors
Human Resources
Training/Tuition

BUDGET

FTES

$680,604
695,474
232,248
262,493
1,144,483
305,166
62,133

2.88
3.00
1.00
1.00
–
2.00
–

FINANCE DIVISION

Accounting
Membership
Other Administrative

$1,052,091 12.00
621,780 7.00
–
2,106,883

IT DEPARTMENT

Information Technology

$1,233,964

8.00

$258,476
1,306,390
323,338
172,045
408,740

2.00
4.50
4.00
1.50
2.00

COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION
MEMBER & PUBLIC SERVICES DIVISION

$153,576
519,847
261,144
1,010,511
98,672
340,715
460,582
73,604
20,266
320,062

2.00
3.00
1.50
3.00
–
4.00
4.00
–
–
1.00

$234,651
494,789
1,528,472

1.00
5.00
7.50

ACCESS TO JUSTICE COMMISSION

$686,301

3.00

LAW PRACTICE MANAGEMENT DIVISION

$181,780

1.00

$9,682,518
546,474

40.00
3.00

Center for Legal History
Law-Related Education
Government Relations
Texas Young Lawyers Association
LeadershipSBOT
Sections
Local Bars
Special Events
Law Student Department
Volunteer Committees
LEGAL & ATTORNEY SERVICES DIVISION

Legal & Attorney Services
Texas Lawyers’ Assistance Program
Legal Access Division

(FTE—Full-Time Equivalent)

000

Texas Bar Journal • March 2021

PUBLIC PROTECTION DIVISION

Chief Disciplinary Counsel
Statewide Committees
Ombudsman
Board of Disciplinary Appeals
BOARD COMMITMENTS

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

TexasBarCLE
Minority Affairs

Communications
Bar Journal
Printing & Graphics
Public Information
Website

$9,930,881 95.50
–
243,800
87,223 1.00
528,669 3.00
$1,666,405

1.00

TRANSFERS TO SPECIAL REVENUE & CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Texas Law Center Fund
Technology Fund
Client Security Fund

$288,800
500,000
500,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES, BOARD COMMITMENTS
& TRANSFERS
$45,071,583
TOTAL REVENUES & RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES,
BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS
TOTAL BUDGETED GENERAL FUND FTEs
TOTAL BUDGETED GENERAL FUND FTES

$0
263.13
260.88
texasbar.com

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGETS FOR
SPECIAL REVENUE & CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
LAW
TEXAS BOARD
FOCUSED
OF LEGAL
GRANTS SPECIALIZATION

REVENUES
FEES
SALES
INVESTMENTS
GRANTS
CONTRIBUTIONS
RESTITUTION
TOTAL REVENUES
RECEIPTS FROM RESERVES
TOTAL REVENUES & RECEIPTS

TEXAS BAR
COLLEGE

CONVENTION
FUND

BUILDING
FUND

TECHNOLOGY
FUND

CLIENT
SECURITY
FUND

TOTAL

$0
0
0
352,750
0
0
$352,750
0
$352,750

$1,470,250
0
35,000
0
0
0
$1,505,250
0
$1,505,250

$288,275
1,300
1,000
0
0
0
$290,575
0
$290,575

$300,000
25,000
0
0
360,000
0
$685,000
0
$685,000

$0
0
14,548
0
0
0
$14,548
0
$14,548

$0
0
0
0
0
0
$0
223,000
223,000

$0
0
10,000
0
0
5,000
$15,000
0
$15,000

$2,058,525
26,300
60,548
352,750
360,000
5,000
$2,863,123
223,000
$3,086,123

EXPENDITURES
SALARIES
$0
BENEFITS
0
TRAVEL
61,000
MEETINGS & CONFERENCES
0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
222,775
PUBLICITY/ADVERTISING
0
DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS/LICENSES
0
EDUCATION/TRAINING
0
SUPPLIES/AWARDS/GIFTS/SPEC. ITEMS 50,400
RENTALS—OFFICE, EQUIPMENT, STORAGE
0
MAINTENANCE/REPAIR
0
POSTAGE & FREIGHT
5,600
TELEPHONE
0
ADMINISTRATIVE
6,600
FIXED ASSETS
0
PRINTING & COPYING
6,375
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
$352,750
BOARD COMMITMENTS - TRANSFERS IN
0
TRANSFERS (IN)/OUT
0

$523,444
188,250
55,000
75,000
165,000
158,733
30,000
1,650
12,000
170,000
0
7,833
25,000
76,600
7,000
9,740
$1,505,250
0
0

$69,449
26,360
42,000
20,000
27,716
7,000
2,500
750
20,000
9,000
0
15,000
800
32,000
0
18,000
$290,575
0
0

$0
0
10,300
548,110
9,000
36,500
420
0
17,000
0
0
23,000
0
8,400
0
32,270
$685,000
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
350,000
0
0
0
65,000
0
$415,000
(500,000)
(288,800)

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,236,398
0
$1,236,398
(513,398)
(500,000)

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
715,000
0
0
$715,000
(200,000)
(500,000)

$592,893
214,610
168,300
643,110
424,491
202,233
32,920
2,400
99,400
179,000
350,000
51,433
25,800
838,600
1,308,398
66,385
$5,199,973
(1,213,398)
(1,288,800)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES, BOARD COMMITMENTS
& TRANSFERS

$1,505,250

$290,575

$685,000

(373,800)

223,000

15,000

$2,697,775

$0

$0

$0

$0

$388,348

$0

$0

$388,348

0

6.88

1.00

0

0

0

0

7.88

$352,750

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES,
BOARD COMMITMENTS & TRANSFERS
TOTAL BUDGETED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS

T

he purpose of the State Bar of Texas is to engage in those activities enumerated in section 81.012 of the State Bar Act. The expenditure of
funds by the State Bar of Texas is limited as set forth in both section 81.034 of the State Bar Act and in Keller v. State Bar of California, 496
U.S. 1 (1990). If any member thinks that any actual or proposed expenditure is not within such purposes of, or limitations on, the State Bar, then
such member may object thereto and seek a refund of a pro rata portion of his or her dues expended, plus interest, by filing an objection with
the executive director. The objection must be made in writing, addressed to the executive director of the State Bar of Texas, P.O. Box 12487,
Austin, TX 78711, and postmarked not later than 90 days after the conclusion of the challenged activity.
Upon receipt of a member’s objection, the executive director shall promptly review such objection together with the allocation of dues
monies spent on the challenged activity and, in consultation with the president, shall have the discretion to resolve the objection, including
refunding a pro rata portion of the member’s dues, plus interest. Refund of a pro rata share of the member’s dues shall be for the convenience
of the State Bar and shall not be construed as an admission that the challenged activity was or would not have been within the purposes of, or
limitations on, the State Bar.
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EXHIBIT D

8/04/20

BAR
DISTRICTS

PRESENT
DIRECTORS

District 1

STATE BAR OF TEXAS – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICTS FOR ELECTIONS – 2021
SIGNATURES
COUNTIES INCLUDED IN THE DISTRICT #
100

Bowie, Camp, Cass, (Collin), Delta, Fannin, Franklin, Grayson, Harrison,
Henderson, Hopkins, Hunt, Kaufman, Lamar, Marion, Morris, Panola, Rains, Red
River, Rockwall, Titus, Upshur, Van Zandt, and Wood Counties

100

Harris

John Charles Ginn
(McKinney)

District 4
Place 3:

3: Alistair Dawson
(Houston)

Place 5:

5: Carmen Roe
(Houston)

District 5

Shari Goldsberry
(Texas City)

100

Austin, Brazoria, Colorado, Fayette, Fort Bend, (Galveston), Grimes, Jackson,
Lavaca, Matagorda, Waller, and Wharton Counties

District 6
Place 2:

2. Robert D. Crain
(Dallas)

100

Dallas

District 7
Place 1

1. Stephen J. Naylor
(Fort Worth)

100

Ellis, Hill, Johnson, and Tarrant Counties

District 9
Place 3

3. Amy Welborn
(Austin)

100

Travis

District 10
Place 1

Marc E. Gravely
(San Antonio)

100

Bexar

District 13

James Wester
(Amarillo)

40

Andrews, Borden, Dawson, Fisher, Gaines, Garza, Howard, Kent, Lubbock, Lynn,
Martin, (Midland), Mitchell, Nolan, Scurry, Stonewall, Terry, and Yoakum
Counties
# - Counties in bold print are ineligible for campaign during the 2021 elections. See State Bar Rules Article IV, Section 5(A)(3)(b), which addresses the issue of
succession, and Article I (5), which defines metropolitan areas.
District 16

Derek Cook
(Midland)

70

Armstrong, Bailey, Briscoe, Carson, Castro, Childress, Cochran, Collingsworth,
Cottle, Crosby, Dallam, Deaf Smith, Dickens, Donley, Floyd, Foard, Gray, Hale,
Hall, Hansford, Hardeman, Hartley, Hemphill, Hockhill, Hutchinson, King, Knox,
Lamb, Lipscomb, Moore, Motley, Ochiltree, Oldham, Parmer, (Potter), Randall,
Roberts, Sherman, Swisher and Wheeler Counties

EXHIBIT E

STATE BAR OF TEXAS - FINANCE DIVISION

Dashboard of Key Financial Trends
General Fund Operating Results for the Six Months-Ended November 30, 2020
Chart A contains the State Bar’s General Fund Budget to Actual Variance for the financial period. This
indicates the overall earnings incurred from current year operations.

Chart A: Total Net Excess: 3 Year History of Budget
to Actual Variances
$4,500,000
$4,000,000
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$-

FY 2018-2019

FY 2019-2020

FY 2020-2021

Table 1 contains details of data presented in Chart A above:
Operations of General Fund: Budget to Actual Variances (cumulative)
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May

FY 2018-2019
$
70,915
$ 295,712
$ 524,480
$ 885,337
$ 1,056,344
$ 1,546,381
$ 2,010,521
$ 2,359,057
$ 2,387,072
$ 2,733,334
$ 2,999,300
$ 4,048,722

FY 2019-2020
$ 111,071
$ 322,750
$ 689,283
$ 841,894
$ 1,233,358
$ 1,485,161
$ 1,628,363
$ 1,895,262
$ 2,251,386
$ 2,122,472
$ 2,351,385
$ 3,637,312

1

$
$
$
$
$
$

FY 2020-2021
14,557
1,499,501
2,460,535
2,849,399
3,444,517
3,679,238

Chart B presents the total Revenues and Expenditures of the State Bar’s General Fund over the
previous three years.

Chart B: Total Revenue and Expenditure Trends - Fiscal Year-toDate for the Six Months Ended November 2018, 2019, and 2020
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Chart C presents the total revenues by department of the State Bar’s General Fund over the previous
three years.
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Chart D presents the total expenditures by department of the State Bar’s General Fund over the
previous three years.
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Chart D: General Fund Expenditure Trends - Six Months Ended
November 2018, 2019, and 2020
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State Bar of Texas General Fund
Financial Highlights
For the Six Months Ended November 30, 2020
Total General Fund YTD results – As of November 30, 2020, the General Fund had a net excess
of revenues over expenditures and transfers of $3,365,877 compared to a budgeted net increase
of ($313,361). This resulted in a positive overall variance of $3,679,238.

Actual

Budget

Variance

% Variance

$21,150,678

$23,389,283

($2,238,605)

(10%)

Total Expenditures and
Transfers

17,784,801

23,702,644

5,917,843

Net Excess

$3,365,877

($313,361)

$3,679,238

Total Revenues

25%

Revenues
For the period ending November 30, 2020, total revenues did not meet the budgeted revenues
by ($2,238,605) or (10%), thereby producing a negative actual to budget variance. An analysis
of the revenues shows that the following departments had a negative revenue variance in
excess of ($100,000) or ($10,000) and (10%) for the period ending November 30, 2020.
•

Member Dues – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($495,828) or (5%) - This negative
variance results primarily from a delay in members’ payment of dues compared to the
budgeted timing of collection. The September 1st dues suspension deadline was extended
to November 1st to allow additional time for lawyers to pay dues.

•

MCLE – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($135,717) or (8%) – This negative variance
results primarily from a 60-day delay in non-compliance fees.

•

Texas Bar Journal – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($59,908) or (20%) - This negative
variance results primarily from a decrease in advertising revenue compared to budgeted
advertising revenue.

•

Investments – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($116,947) or (58%) - This negative
variance is due the drop in investment return rates on fixed income securities as a result
of the pandemic.

•

Lawyer Referral – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($13,997) or (16%) – This negative
variance is due a decrease in referral fees.

•

Minority Affairs – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($312,725) or (84%) – This negative
variance is due to a reduction in fees and contributions due to holding the Texas Minority
Counsel Program virtually. This decrease will be offset with savings in expenditures.
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•

Website – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($41,730) or (15%) - This negative variance
is due to a decrease in the career center referral fees received from employer job postings.

•

Purchasing & Facilities– Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($11,699) or (89%) - This
negative variance is due to a decrease in supply orders and copies needed.

•

Advertising Review – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($33,028) or (20%) – This
negative revenue variance is due to lower than anticipated advertising review
submissions.

•

Miscellaneous Revenue – Total Negative Revenue Variance: ($32,663) or (84%) - This
negative variance is due to a decrease in the hotel occupancy tax refunds received.

An analysis of the revenues shows that the following departments had positive revenue
variances in excess of $10,000 and 10% for the period ending November 30, 2020.
•

Chief Disciplinary Counsel – Total Positive Revenue Variance: $33,637 or 14% - This
positive variance is primarily due to an increase in Austin and San Antonio attorney fees.

•

Legal Access Division – Total Positive Revenue Variance: $49,400 or 412% - This positive
variance is due to an increase in the number of legal aid providers who attended the
Poverty Law conference.

•

TYLA – Total Positive Revenue Variance: $21,257 or 32% - This positive variance is due
to higher than anticipated fees collected for the National Trial Competition.

Expenditures
For the period ending November 30, 2020, total expenditures were under the allocated budget
by $5,917,843 or 27%, which resulted in a positive actual to budget variance.
An analysis of the expenditures shows that six departments, Center for Legal History (Archives),
Governmental Relations, Research & Analysis, Accounting, Information Technology and
Graphics had large positive expenditure variances in excess of $10,000 and 10% in salaries and
benefits due to open positions or staff turnover.
An analysis of the expenditures shows that the following departments had positive expense
variances in excess of $10,000 and 10% for the period ending November 30, 2020 primarily
resulting from cancellation of, and/or change to, virtual meetings and associated travel to prevent
the spread of COVID-19 and other descriptions provided below:
•

Office of Executive Director – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $51,930 or 15% Positive variances are in benefits and travel. The positive variances are partially off-set by
a large negative variance in insurance expense.

SBOT November 2020 Financial Statements
Page 2 of 16

•

Associate Executive Director/Legal Counsel – Total Positive Expenditure Variance:
$36,355 or 10% - Variances are primarily in benefits, travel and maintenance/repair.

•

Deputy Executive Director – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $13,467 or 11% Variances are primarily in benefits, travel and maintenance/repair.

•

Deputy Executive Director/External Affairs – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $17,393
or 13% - Variances are in benefits and travel.

•

Officers & Directors – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $233,076 or 46% - Variances
are in travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Training & Tuition – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $13,520 or 82% - Variance is in
education and training.

•

Law Related Education – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $54,070 or 18% Variances are in travel and meetings & conference.

•

TYLA– Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $242,203 or 55% - Variances are primarily in
travel and meetings & conferences.

•

SBOT Leadership Academy– Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $60,884 or 95% Variances are primarily in travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Local Bars – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $189,113 or 65% - Variances are
primarily in salaries, benefits, travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Special Events – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $21,351 or 100% - Variances are
primarily in travel and meetings & conferences.

•

SBOT Volunteer Committees – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $141,778 or 89% Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits, travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Texas Lawyers Assistance Program – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $51,424 or
21% - Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits and travel.

•

Legal Access Division – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $191,367 or 21% Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits, travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Access to Justice Commission – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $172,445 or 44% Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits, travel, professional services and meetings &
conferences.

•

Member Benefits – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $34,530 or 91% - Variance is
primarily due to an accounting change to advertising expense.

•

Minority Affairs – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $198,858 or 55% - Variances are
primarily in travel, meetings & conferences, professional services, publicity and supplies.
All connected with canceled and/or rescheduled events.
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•
•

Purchasing & Facilities – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $65,605 or 10% - Variances
are primarily in supplies, maintenance & repair and utilities.
Office of Communications Division Director – Total Positive Expenditure Variance:
$29,434 or 21% - Variances are primarily in travel and publicity advertising unspent due
to the cancellation of in-person events.

•

Printing – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $13,195 or 22% - Variances are primarily
in salaries travel.

•

Public Information – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $17,200 or 19% - Variances are
primarily in travel, meetings & conferences and printing. The printing variance is due to a
decrease in requests for educational pamphlets due to COVID-19.

•

Website – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $22,233 or 12% - Variances are primarily
in travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Chief Disciplinary Counsel – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $515,019 or 10% Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits, travel, meetings & conferences and
professional services.

•

Grievance Oversight Committee – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $16,761 or 69% Variances are primarily in travel and meetings & conferences.

•

Unauthorized Practice of Law – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $60,295 or 71% Variances are primarily in travel, meetings & conferences and professional services.

•

Board of Disciplinary Appeals – Total Positive Expenditure Variance: $89,289 or 28% Variances are primarily in salaries, benefits and travel.
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TexasBarCLE (TBCLE)
For the period ending November 30, 2020, TexasBarCLE’s net revenues over expenditures
amount exceeded its budget target by $1,915,437, thereby producing a positive actual to budget
variance.

Actual
TBCLE Revenues

Budget

Variance

% Variance
(13%)

$7,453,936

$8,566,418

($1,112,482)

TBCLE Expenditures

2,890,950

5,918,869

3,027,919

Net TBCLE Income

$4,562,986

$2,647,549

$1,915,437

51%

Due to the pandemic, all originally scheduled live courses beginning in mid-March 2020 were held
as a webcast through the rest of calendar year 2020, or some have been cancelled. These
changes have affected TBCLE’s live course revenue, as some members requested a refund and
registrations have decreased significantly, despite the course transition to webcast. Live courses
are budgeted to receive $6,197,183 in revenue and $6,221,233 in expenses. Of the budgeted live
course expenses, $4 million is budgeted for travel, meetings and conferences, rentals and other
expenses. It is expected that the decrease in expenditures, specifically in the travel, meetings and
conferences, and rental categories, due to the cancellation of live courses during FY2021 will
offset the decrease in revenues budgeted for live courses.
In comparing TBCLE’s performance to previous years, it is appropriate to make two comparisons:
(1) compare the current fiscal year 20-21 to the previous fiscal year 19-20; and (2) compare the
current fiscal year 20-21 to fiscal year 18-19. Fiscal years ending in odd numbers are considered
to be “non-legislative years”, in other words, they do not follow a legislative session. Fiscal years
ending in even numbers are considered to be “legislative years” because they do follow a
legislative session and TBCLE generally sees a surge in revenues following a legislative year
(even numbered fiscal years). The surge in revenue generally results from legal issues arising
during the legislative process; thereby creating a need for new or revised CLE programs. Fiscal
year 20-21 is a “non-legislative” year.
In comparing actual revenues and expenditure amounts for the period ending November 30, 2020
to the prior period ending November 30, 2019, we see a decrease in revenues of ($1,270,135) or
(15%), and a decrease in expenditures of $2,638,728 or 48% for an overall increase in net
revenues of $1,368,593 or 43%. This is showing the difference between financial performances
based on a comparison of a “non-legislative year” to a “legislative year”.
In comparing actual revenues and expenditure amounts for the current period ending November
30, 2020, to the period ending November 30, 2018, we see a decrease in revenue of ($1,097,989)
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or (13%) and a decrease in expenditures of 2,612,455 or 47% for an overall increase in net
revenues of $1,514,466 or 50%. This is showing the difference between financial performances
based on a comparison of two “non-legislative years.”

Salaries and Benefits
For FY 2020-2021, the salaries and benefits budget totals $25,220,012 or 56.8% of the overall
$44,391,552 General Fund budget before budgeted board commitments. The $25,220,012
includes a 4% vacancy rate. The actual vacancy factor for the period ending November 30, 2020
was 7.2%. The actual salary and benefit expenditures had a $845,653 positive variance to budget
at the end of November 2020.
Budget
Actual
Variance

$
$

12,517,013
11,671,360
845,653

SBOT November 2020 Financial Statements
Page 6 of 16

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Six Months Ending November 30, 2020

REVENUES:
Membership Dues
Accounting/Management Fees
Texas Bar Journal
Leadership SBOT
MCLE Fees
TexasBar CLE
Investment Income
Lawyer Referral
Member Benefits
CDC Disciplinary Fees
Membership
Local Bars
Minority Affairs
Information Technology Dept.
Website
Legal Access Division
Law Related Education
TYLA
Law Student Division
Purchasing & Facilities
Advertising Review
Miscellaneous, Sales Tax Discounts, Etc.
Credit Card Processing Fees
Rent
TOTAL REVENUES

YTD
Actual

YTD
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Budget
Prior Year

(5%)
(2%)
(20%)
(100%)
(8%)
(13%)
(58%)
(16%)
2%
14%
56%
(51%)
(84%)
(17%)
(15%)
412%
480%
32%
60%
(89%)
(20%)
(84%)
8%
(3%)

$9,822,665
325,676
292,633
4,998
1,586,247
8,352,299
350,000
75,000
433,392
265,816
7,200
12,600
341,500
600
313,250
23,000
4,250
55,500
3,900
22,430
186,342
37,798
330,000
86,336

YTD
Prior Year
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Prior Year
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

$10,234,578
325,676
299,859
7,000
1,816,299
8,724,072
422,075
73,721
445,933
293,164
7,406
6,700
454,388
600
328,993
17,275
4,700
89,340
5,235
20,232
193,750
34,286
344,215
86,336

$411,913

4%

7,226
2,002
230,052
371,773
72,075
(1,279)
12,541
27,348
206
(5,900)
112,888

2%
40%
15%
4%
21%
(2%)
3%
10%
3%
(47%)
33%

15,743
(5,725)
450
33,840
1,335
(2,198)
7,408
(3,512)
14,215

5%
(25%)
11%
61%
34%
(10%)
4%
(9%)
4%

YTD
Actual
Prior Year

Annual
Budget

YTD
Budget

$21,348,853
658,255
632,545
5,000
3,460,950
14,251,844
400,000
180,000
911,309
564,853
10,900
12,600
381,815
1,200
445,000
12,000
9,256
65,000
6,000
46,500
368,000
82,000
365,000
172,673

$10,092,463
329,130
296,534
5,000
1,706,329
8,566,418
202,000
89,000
471,592
241,500
5,454
12,600
372,975
600
280,250
12,000
250
65,800
3,900
13,175
167,978
39,000
329,000
86,335

$9,596,635
323,676
236,626
1,570,612
7,453,936
85,053
75,003
482,748
275,137
8,519
6,200
60,250
500
238,520
61,400
1,450
87,057
6,255
1,476
134,950
6,337
354,710
83,628

($495,828)
(5,454)
(59,908)
(5,000)
(135,717)
(1,112,482)
(116,947)
(13,997)
11,156
33,637
3,065
(6,400)
(312,725)
(100)
(41,730)
49,400
1,200
21,257
2,355
(11,699)
(33,028)
(32,663)
25,710
(2,707)

44,391,553

23,389,283

21,150,678

(2,238,605)

(10%)

22,933,432

24,235,833

1,302,401

6%

325,301
283,106
106,060
123,496
97,477
422,162
144,099
27,690
1,529,391

12,946
18,849
7,638
7,432
(8,357)
(26,095)
1,607
(4,690)
9,330

4%
6%
7%
6%
(9%)
(7%)
1%
(20%)
1%

78,792
270,129
79,473
418,522
53,882
160,801
259,015
28,529
5,133
167,000
1,521,276

(1,352)
11,938
4,912
(5,132)
6,728
8,493
30,923
(7,133)
4,073
(24,118)
29,332

(2%)
4%
6%
(1%)
11%
5%
11%
(33%)
44%
(17%)
2%

EXPENDITURES
Executive Division
Executive Director
Associate Executive Director/Legal Counsel
Deputy Executive Director
Deputy Executive Director/External Affairs
Special Financial Advisor
Officers & Directors
Human Resources
Training/Tuition
Total Executive Division

684,300
700,889
236,649
265,280

335,311
348,985
118,772
133,242

283,381
312,630
105,305
115,849

51,930
36,355
13,467
17,393

15%
10%
11%
13%

970,817
308,161
71,133
3,237,229

503,730
151,512
16,500
1,608,052

270,654
146,711
2,980
1,237,510

233,076
4,801
13,520
370,542

46%
3%
82%
23%

338,247
301,955
113,698
130,928
89,120
396,067
145,706
23,000
1,538,721

Member & Public Services Division
Center for Legal History
Law Related Education
Governmental Relations
Texas Young Lawyers Association
LeadershipSBOT
Sections
Local Bars
Special Events
Law Student Department
SBOT Volunteer Committees
Total Member & Public Services Division

160,623
523,895
311,496
1,022,902
98,672
343,782
459,225
73,604
20,266
317,812
3,332,277

83,269
295,590
137,414
442,769
64,211
173,355
290,570
21,396
11,833
159,994
1,680,401

43,334
241,520
80,042
200,566
3,327
157,375
101,457
45
2,739
18,216
848,621

39,935
54,070
57,372
242,203
60,884
15,980
189,113
21,351
9,094
141,778
831,780

48%
18%
42%
55%
95%
9%
65%
100%
77%
89%
49%

77,440
282,067
84,385
413,390
60,610
169,294
289,938
21,396
9,206
142,882
1,550,608

SBOT November 2020 Financial Statements
Page 7 of 16

YTD
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Budget
Prior Year

YTD
Actual
Prior Year

YTD
Prior Year
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Prior Year
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

Annual
Budget

YTD
Budget

YTD
Actual

237,184
496,731
1,539,040
2,272,955

118,412
249,389
897,468
1,265,269

109,390
197,965
706,101
1,013,456

9,022
51,424
191,367
251,813

8%
21%
21%
20%

115,703
201,102
817,220
1,134,025

111,402
198,942
844,685
1,155,029

4,301
2,160
(27,465)
(21,004)

4%
1%
(3%)
(2%)

752,981
172,585
239,952
182,184

394,577
38,057
113,060
90,194

222,132
3,527
83,247
81,162

172,445
34,530
29,813
9,032

44%
91%
26%
10%

414,937
19,969
82,934

353,085
27,090
91,754

61,852
(7,121)
(8,820)

15%
(36%)
(11%)

10,101,605
523,115
10,624,720

5,918,869
364,405
6,283,274

2,890,950
165,547
3,056,497

3,027,919
198,858
3,226,777

51%
55%
51%

5,810,354
363,565
6,173,919

5,529,678
459,608
5,989,286

280,676
(96,043)
184,633

5%
(26%)
3%

Attorney Compliance Division
Office of Attorney Compliance Director
Advertising Review
Client Attorney Assistance Program
Lawyer Referral
MCLE
Total Attorney Compliance Division

190,181
151,275
545,713
376,086
588,539
1,851,794

94,901
76,095
271,852
182,426
277,188
902,462

87,475
70,800
268,269
170,331
278,923
875,798

7,426
5,295
3,583
12,095
(1,735)
26,664

8%
7%
1%
7%
(1%)
3%

90,662
92,021
271,913
175,096
307,639
937,331

93,347
72,265
273,458
180,904
317,493
937,467

(2,685)
19,756
(1,545)
(5,808)
(9,854)
(136)

(3%)
21%
(1%)
(3%)
(3%)
(0%)

Operations/Security Division
Purchasing & Facilities
Total Operations/Security Division

1,294,796
1,294,796

644,696
644,696

579,091
579,091

65,605
65,605

10%
10%

626,910
626,910

641,345
641,345

(14,435)
(14,435)

(2%)
(2%)

Finance Division
Accounting
Membership
Other Administrative
Total Finance Division

1,049,448
612,834
2,042,188
3,704,470

528,532
275,957
1,010,171
1,814,660

474,544
277,207
1,098,891
1,850,642

53,988
(1,250)
(88,720)
(35,982)

10%
(0%)
(9%)
(2%)

475,565
280,498
984,053
1,740,116

515,809
259,096
1,063,372
1,838,277

(40,244)
21,402
(79,319)
(98,161)

(8%)
8%
(8%)
(6%)

Information Technology Division
Information Technology
Customer Service
Total Information Technology Division

1,252,657
404,132
1,656,789

582,331
181,380
763,711

485,048
166,484
651,532

97,283
14,896
112,179

17%
8%
15%

599,851
191,485
791,336

538,487
197,415
735,902

61,364
(5,930)
55,434

10%
(3%)
7%

Communications Division
Office of Communications Director
Bar Journal
Printing
Graphics
Public Information
Web Management
Total Communications Division

265,364
1,298,114
119,072
227,649
171,568
421,753
2,503,520

138,269
634,964
60,864
114,027
88,434
188,162
1,224,720

108,835
611,480
47,669
85,952
71,234
165,929
1,091,099

29,434
23,484
13,195
28,075
17,200
22,233
133,621

21%
4%
22%
25%
19%
12%
11%

135,502
658,462
70,026
80,591
81,818
205,442
1,231,841

134,665
633,457
61,491
85,220
80,649
202,502
1,197,984

837
25,005
8,535
(4,629)
1,169
2,940
33,857

1%
4%
12%
(6%)
1%
1%
3%

Legal & Attorney Services Division
Legal & Attorney Services Division Director
Texas Lawyers Assistance Program
Legal Access Division
Total Legal & Attorney Services Division
Access to Justice Commission
Member Benefits
Research & Analysis
Law Practice Management
Professional Development Division
Texas Bar CLE
Minority Affairs
Total Professional Development
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Annual
Budget

YTD
Budget

YTD
Actual

YTD
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Budget
Prior Year

YTD
Actual
Prior Year

YTD
Prior Year
Variance $
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD
Prior Year
Variance %
Fav/(Unfav)

Public Protection Division
Chief Disciplinary Counsel
Ombudsman
Cmte on Disc Rules/Referendum
Grievance Oversight Committee
Unauthorized Practice of Law
Professional Ethics Commission
Board of Disciplinary Appeals
Total Public Protection Division

10,076,552
87,932
9,000
48,800
170,000
12,000
632,418
11,036,702

4,911,024
44,926
4,500
24,295
85,211
4,198
316,557
5,390,711

4,396,005
41,917
281
7,534
24,916
3,766
227,268
4,701,687

515,019
3,009
4,219
16,761
60,295
432
89,289
689,024

10%
7%
94%
69%
71%
10%
28%
13%

4,900,129
40,509

5,008,675
41,960

(108,546)
(1,451)

(2%)
(4%)

24,295
54,175
4,198
311,570
5,334,876

27,324
45,736
8,881
298,030
5,430,606

(3,029)
8,439
(4,683)
13,540
(95,730)

(12%)
16%
(112%)
4%
(2%)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

42,862,954

22,213,844

16,296,001

5,917,843

27%

21,577,523

21,448,492

129,031

1%

288,800
500,000
700,000

288,800
500,000
700,000

288,800
500,000
700,000

288,800
500,000
700,000

288,800
500,000
700,000

1,488,800

1,488,800

1,488,800

1,488,800

1,488,800

44,351,754

23,702,644

17,784,801

5,917,843

25%

23,066,323

22,937,292

129,031

1%

39,799

(313,361)

3,365,877

3,679,238

1174%

(132,891)

1,298,541

1,431,432

1077%

515,000
225,000
333,333
1,240,000

515,000
225,000
333,333
1,240,000

515,000
225,000
333,333
1,240,000

515,000

515,000

150,000

150,000

489,141

21,736
3,067

21,736
3,067

160
12,000
6,000

160
12,000
6,000

62,466
8,753
1,186
15,638
136
12,000
50,245

62,466
8,753
1,186
15,638
136
12,000
50,245

200,000

200,000
100,000

100,000

915,424

915,424

(1,048,315)

383,117

1,431,432

137%

Transfers to:
Bldg & Equip Fund
Technology Fund
Client Security Fund
TOTAL TRANSFERS
TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues
Over Expenditures & Transfers
BOARD COMMITMENTS
Board Commitment - SLRAP
Board Commitment - Sheeran-Crowley Memorial Trust
Board Commitment - Client Security Fund
Board Commitment - Technology Fund
Board Commitment - Texas Opportunity & Justice Incubator
Program
Board Commitment - Presidential Initiatives
Board Commitment - Statewide Pro Bono Campaign
Board Commitment - LAD 2018 Board Commitments
Board Commitment - Communications Projects
Board Commitment - Archives Digitization Project
Board Commitment - LRE Projects
Board Commitment -Contingency for Southern Conference of
Bar Presidents
Board Commitment -Law Practice Management and TBB
Website
Board Commitment - Texas Law Center Renovations
Board Commitment - Reserve for Rules Vote
Board Commitment - Reserve for Run-Off Election
Board Commitment - Reserve for Legal
Board Commitment - Reserve for Committment

TOTAL BOARD COMMITMENTS
TOTAL YTD INCREASE (REDUCTION) IN FUND BALANCE

141,975
31,495
63,500
6,179
75,000
200,000
150,000
70,000
100,000
866,667

4,507,290

2,556,296

2,556,296

(4,467,491)

(2,869,657)

809,581

3,679,238
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128%

State Bar of Texas
General Fund
Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2020
YTD

Prior YTD

Assets
Cash & Money Market Funds
Investments
Adjust Investments to Market
Total Cash and Investments at FMV

$

Accounts Receivable:
Net Accounts Receivable - Sales
Accrued Interest
Interfund
Other
Inventory
Prepaid Expenditures

10,411,433
24,425,592
270,177
35,107,202

$

58,524
89,185
1,169,325
177,455
12,048
606,770

Total Assets

9,028,506
20,300,854
79,929
29,409,288

66,456
79,929
1,723,618
149,946
11,313
592,796

$

37,220,509

$

32,033,347

$

625,392
4,791,572
290,901

$

730,776
2,079,472
299,925

Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities
Accounts Payable:
Cash - A/P
Trade
Interfund
Accrued Liabilities
Deferred Revenue Membership Dues
Other
Other Liabilities

9,865,696
353,876
93,191

Total Liabilities

$
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16,020,629

10,393,015
349,036
48,130
$

13,900,354

State Bar of Texas
General Fund
Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2020
YTD

Prior YTD

Liabilities and Fund Equity Continued
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - Prepaids at May 31, 2020
Nonspendable - Inventory at May 31, 2020
Nonspendable - Investments FMV Adjustment at May 31, 2020
Board Committed - Minimum Reserve January 2020
Board Committed - Technology Fund
Board Committed - Texas Opportunity and Justice Incubator Program
Board Committed - Legal Reserve Account
Board Committed - Client Security Fund
Board Committed - Reserve for Future Board Commitments
Board Committed - Sheeran Crowley Memorial Trust
Board Committed - Presidential Initiatives
Board Committed - Law Practice Resource Management Website
Board Committed - Statewide Pro Bono Campaign
Board Committed - Ethics Initiatives
Board Committed - Contingency for SCBP
Board Committed - Public Information Campaign
Board Committed - Archives Digitization Project
Board Committed - Law Focused Education Programs
Board Committed - Student Loan Repayment Assistance Program
Board Committed - Run-off Election Reserve
Board Committed - Referendum Reserve
Amount Available for Board Commitment: FY 2019-2020
Total Fund Balance at May 31, 2020

$

$

Current Year Operations
Nonspendable - Prepaids at November 30, 2020
Nonspendable - Inventory at November 30, 2020
Nonspendable - Investments FMV Adjustment at November 30, 2020
Board Committed Expenditures - Student Loan Reparment Assistance Program
Board Committed Expenditures - Sheeran-Crowley Memorial Trust
Board Committed Expenditures - Client Security Fund
Board Committed Expenditures - Technology Fund
Board Committed Expenditures - Texas Opportunity & Justice Incubator Program
Board Committed Expenditures - Presidential Initiatives
Board Committed Expenditures - Communications Projects
Board Committed Expenditures - Archives Digitization Project
Board Committed Expenditures - Law Focused Education Programs
Board Committed Expenditures - Law Practice Management and TBB Website
Amount Available for Board Commitment from Current Year Operations

Total Fund Balance
$
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$

17,749,873

(196,163)
476
(104,795)
(515,000)
(225,000)
(333,333)
(1,240,000)
(21,736)
(3,067)
(160)
(12,000)
(6,000)
(200,000)
3,666,361

Total Current Year Increase (Reduction) in Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

802,933
11,572
374,972
11,140,350
1,240,000
489,141
100,000
333,333
866,667
225,000
186,776
200,000
141,975
11,495
75,000
20,000
63,500
6,179
515,000
70,000
150,000
3,366,405
20,390,298

809,583

383,120

21,199,881

18,132,993

37,220,509

$

32,033,347

State Bar of Texas
Texas Bar Books
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Six Months Ending November 30, 2020
Y-T-D
Budget

Y-T-D
Actual

Budget
%

2020-2021
Budget

Revenues:
Book Sales Net of Estimated Returns
Online Sales
Total Sales
Fees
Interest
Royalty
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

$792,845
244,164
1,037,009
9,100
4,500
635,500
24,460
1,710,569

$306,006
314,428
620,434
10,312
159
636,233
24,456
1,291,594

61%
(29%)
40%
(13%)
96%
(0%)
0%
24%

$1,986,903
488,334
2,475,237
55,000
9,000
1,281,000
48,922
3,869,159

162,533
57,304
0
219,837

44,593
30,173
26,051
100,817

73%
47%
0%
54%

407,315
113,358
100,000
620,673

646,665
226,584
37,500
600
142,094
10,000
42,000
58,670
10,935
19,730
82,188
15,300
67,306
1,950
3,300
275,226
19,823
12,000
0
270
1,672,141
1,891,978
(181,409)
0

627,325
199,804
93
0
53,303
2,034
1,823
25,592
3,750
16,343
80,553
15,300
37,940
952
3,055
271,274
9,480
9,680
(2,391)
1
1,355,911
1,456,728
(165,134)
200,000

3%
12%
100%
100%
62%
80%
96%
56%
66%
17%
2%
0%
44%
51%
7%
1%
52%
19%
0%
100%
19%
23%
9%
0%

1,293,330
453,168
46,950
1,800
212,189
15,000
66,000
119,200
12,435
30,500
164,376
30,600
167,913
3,900
6,600
550,456
49,673
12,000
0
540
3,236,630
3,857,303
11,856
0

34,866

119%

Cost of Goods Sold:
Finished Products
Royalties
Other
Total Cost of Goods Sold

Operating Expenses:
Salaries
Benefits
Travel
Meetings & Conferences
Professional Services
Publicity/Advertising
Publicity/Advertising for Specific Titles
Dues/Subscriptions/Licenses
Education/Training
Supplies/Awards/Gifts/Spec. Items
Rentals - Office, Equipment, Storage
Maintenance/Repair
Postage and Freight
Telephone
Insurance
Administrative Fee
Bad Debts
Capital Lease Expense
Printing
Copying
Total Operating Expenses
Total Expenses
Net Income/(Loss) Before Operating Transfer
Operating Transfer From General Fund

Net Income/(Loss)

$

(181,409)

$

SBOT November 2020 Financial Statements
Page 12 of 16

$

11,856

State Bar of Texas
Texas Bar Books
Statement of Net Position
As of November 30, 2020

YTD

Prior YTD

Assets

Net Accounts Receivable - Sales
Interfund Receivable - General Fund

$220,576
763,046

$238,780
699,756

Inventory
Inventory - Finished Goods
Inventory - Work in Process
Less Inventory - Reserve

420,000
106,873
(121,557)

554,155
160,471
(132,602)

Total Inventory Less Reserves

405,316

582,024

533,820
(229,752)

353,637
(318,315)

304,068

35,322

$ 1,693,006

$ 1,555,882

Fixed Assets:
Equipment/Software
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities
Payables
Deferred Revenue
Compensable Leave
Total Liabilities

6,508
(2,391)
101,516
105,633

9,407
97,422
106,829

Net Position
Net Position at May 31, 2020
Current Year Revenues
Current Year Expenditures
Current Year Operations
Total Net Position at November 30, 2020
Total Liabilities and Net Position

1,552,507
1,291,595
(1,256,729)
34,866

1,576,802
1,432,664
(1,560,413)
(127,749)

1,587,373

1,449,053

$ 1,693,006

$ 1,555,882
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State Bar of Texas
Client Security Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For the Six Months Ending November 30, 2020

Revenues:
Interest
Restitution/Other Income
Total Revenues

$24,353
40
24,393

Expenditures:
Claims
Banking Fees
Total Expenditures

212,095
30
212,125

Excess (Deficit) of Revenue
Over Expenditures

(187,732)

General Fund Operating Transfer In
General Fund Committed Funds Transfer In
Total Transfers In from General Fund

700,000
333,333
1,033,333

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments
Net after Operating Transfer & Unrealized Net Gain (Loss)

SBOT November 2020 Financial Statements
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(9,558)
836,043

State Bar of Texas
Client Security Fund
Balance Sheet
As of November 30, 2020

YTD

Prior YTD

Assets
Cash & Money Market Accts.
Investments
Adjust Investments to Market
Interest Receivable
Total Assets

$57,568
3,033,332
126,273
20,062

$1,213,965
1,836,844
3,809
12,756

$3,237,235

$ 3,067,374

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Due To (From) General Fund
Total Liabilities

(416,177)
(416,177)

(110,136)
(110,136)

Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance
Current Year Actvity
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2,817,369
836,043
3,653,412

2,608,546
568,965
3,177,511

$3,237,235

$ 3,067,375
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State Bar of Texas
Combining Statement of Revenue & Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance
All Special Revenue Funds
For the Six Months Ending November 30, 2020
Law
Focused
Grants
Revenues:
Fees
Sales
Investments
Grants
Contributions
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Salaries
Benefits
Travel
Meetings & Conferences
Professional Services
Publicity/Advertising
Dues/Subscriptions/Licenses
Education/Training
Supplies/Awards/Gifts/Spec. Items
Rentals - Office, Equipment, Storage
Maintenance/Repair
Postage and Freight
Telephone
Administrative
Fixed Assets
Printing and Copying
Total Expenditures
Transfer (In) / Out
Total Expenditures & Transfers
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Investments
Total Revenues less Expenditures

57
305,625
305,682

$234,820

$130

1,234

78

236,054

(7,000)
(6,792)

Texas
Law
Center

183,730
3,921
340
6,126

41,426
33,600
1,021

Texas
Bar
College

29,088

$223,297
725
148

29,088

18,400
242,570

226,935
80,480

167,900
3,117
171,017

$458,247
725
30,605
473,525
14,517
977,619

20,000

90,857

20,000

(14,879)
273,904

151,713

1,066,749

151,017

(14,879)
1,409,659

380,641

4,493,150

153,136

259,934

$308,293

$4,767,054

$304,849

$1,326,683

16,750

3,448
5,977
500
856
75
11,475
846

4,658
6,109

6,708
214
13,790

2,829
199,790

503,322

3,985
65,556

199,790

503,322

65,556

29,105
(288,800)
(259,695)

2,958
90,857

105,892

(267,268)

(72,348)

2,201,790
$1,934,522

12,355

20,000

386,419

286,832

$105,892

Total

673,251
(1,740,000)
(1,066,749)

440
8,910
1,402
31,000

797
10,001
38,339

2,220

Misc
Grant
Fund

259,285
92,140
440
12,358
269,285
65,100
5,798
415
27,318
70,904
398,774
12,787
10,215
60,458
286,832
9,772
1,581,881
(2,028,800)
(446,919)

9,052

624

Technology
Fund

32,350
11,660

665
70,058

Beginning Fund Balance at 6/1/20
Ending Fund Balance at 11/30/20

TBLS

Convention
Fund
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7,488,651
$151,017

$8,898,310

State Bar of Texas
(A Component Unit of the State of Texas)
Financial Report May 31, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors
State Bar of Texas
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State Bar of Texas (the
State Bar), a component unit of the State of Texas, as of and for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State Bar’s basic financial statements, as
listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the State Bar as of May 31, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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The Board of Directors
State Bar of Texas
Emphasis Other Matters
As described in Note 14 to the basic financial statements, the State Bar restated beginning net position of the
governmental and business-type activities to correct a misstatement of deferred outflows related to
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). Other adjustments to beginning net position and
beginning fund balances were made as well to recognize prior year audit adjustments that were not previously
recorded. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance – budget (GAAP
basis) and actual – general fund, schedule of changes in State Bar’s proportionate share of net pension liability
and related ratios, schedule of employer contributions – net pension liability, schedule of changes in State Bar’s
proportionate share of total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of employer contributions – total OPEB
liability and related notes to required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Supplemental Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State Bar’s basic financial statements. The combining balance sheet – nonmajor governmental
funds, combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – nonmajor
governmental funds and the combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances –
governmental funds, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining balance sheet – nonmajor governmental funds, combining statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances – nonmajor governmental funds and the combining statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements, or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
other supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.
Austin, Texas
November 20, 2020
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State Bar of Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
May 31, 2020
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is provided by management of the State Bar of Texas (State
Bar) to offer readers an overview and analysis of the financial activities of the State Bar for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2020. This section is only an introduction and should be read in conjunction with the State
Bar’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.
Financial Highlights


The State Bar is in a strong financial position with no debt carried on the balance sheet, consistent
revenues and controlled expenses. Despite the pandemic, the State Bar General Fund’s activities for
the year ended May 31, 2020 increased the fund balance by $2,730,547, leaving $14,881,726 for the
Board to commit to further the mission of the State Bar.



The State Bar complies with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB)
pronouncements, and has implemented GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions during fiscal year 2019. In fiscal year 2016, the State Bar
implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. As a result,
the State Bar’s Government-wide financial statements disclose a pension liability of ($87,292,720) and
a liability for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) of ($42,155,749) on its balance sheet for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2020. The total net position of the State Bar is ($69,305,243) even with these
liabilities recorded. The amount of liability for both plans represents the State Bar’s proportionate share
of the total State of Texas plan’s net liability based on the State Bar’s total contributions made for its
current and former employees. The amount of unfunded liability is not controlled or established by the
State Bar of Texas. The plan is administered by the Employees’ Retirement System of Texas (ERS). The
liability does not affect the governmental funds or the budget of the State Bar, unless ERS requires a
higher premium payment per employee. Historically, the premiums for employees and retirees have
increased gradually and the State Bar does not anticipate significant changes to operating budget
of the State Bar as a result of this GASB requirement. See note 9 and note 11 for further disclosures on
the defined benefit pension and OPEB plan.



The assets of the State Bar were below its liabilities for fiscal year ended May 31, 2020 by ($69,305,243).
This amount includes all State Bar-related assets, including the reserves, all capital assets, all assets
related to TexasBarBooks, the Sections and Division and all special revenue funds and capital project
funds.



The State Bar’s total net position decreased by ($7,546,457) from the end of fiscal year 2019 to the
end of fiscal year 2020. The decrease in net position is due to adjusting entries to the net pension
liability and OPEB liability as a result of actuarial changes in plan assumptions.



As of the close of the current fiscal year, the State Bar’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $39,701,398 an increase of $3,709,671 in comparison with the prior year
adjusted fund balance. This increase in fund balance is primarily due to the strong performance of
TexasBarCLE, membership dues, and MCLE revenues. Of this amount, $14,881,726 is reserved for
ongoing expenses. The amount consists primarily of the General Fund.



At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for the General Fund was $20,390,297 or
51 percent of the total General Fund expenditures for the year ended May 31, 2020. Of this amount,
$19,575,792 is subject to the Board of Director’s (the Board) approval on how the funds may be used,
and $814,505 is nonspendable.
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State Bar of Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
May 31, 2020
Overview of the Financial Statements
The State Bar’s basic financial statements are comprised of the following components: (1) the
government-wide financial statements, (2) the fund financial statements and (3) notes to the basic
financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves. Each one is described below.
Government-wide statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the State Bar’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The governmentwide financial statements are made up of the statement of net position and the statement of activities.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 18 of this report.
The statement of net position presents information on all the State Bar’s assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the financial position of the State Bar is
improving and deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the State Bar’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. The statement of activities is presented on the full accrual basis. This means
that all changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will result in cash flows only in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned, but
unused vacation leave).
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the State Bar that are principally
supported by dues and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the State Bar include general government, public services,
member services and public protection. The business-type activities of the State Bar include Texas Bar
Books.
Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The State Bar, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements. The fund financial statements are made up of a balance sheet and a
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The basic governmental fund
financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 27 of this report. All the funds of the State Bar can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
The State Bar has three types of funds:


Governmental funds—Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



The State Bar maintains 12 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Client Security Fund and
Sections, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other nine governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. These nine funds are: Texas Board of
Legal Specialization Fund, Texas Bar College, Annual Meeting, Texas Law Center, Technology
Fund, Project Grants Fund, Hatton W. Sumners Grants Fund, Law Focused Education and
Department of Public Service. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the other supplemental section of this
report.

The State Bar adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 27 of this report.


Proprietary funds—Texas Bar Books is the State Bar’s only proprietary fund. It is an enterprise fund. An
enterprise fund is used to report an entity’s business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25 of
this report.



Fiduciary funds—Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the State Bar’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The
fiduciary funds the State Bar has is an agency fund used to hold monies for donations received for
access to justice and the State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust, included as a blended component unit.
The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on pages 26 through 27 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the basic financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 60 of this report.
Required supplemental information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplemental information. The State Bar adopts an annual
budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund
to demonstrate compliance with this budget. In addition, includes required supplemental information
regarding the State Bar’s changes in their proportionate share of net pension liability and related ratios
and schedules of employer’s contributions. Required supplemental information can be found on pages
61 through 74 of this report.
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Other supplemental information: In addition to the basic financial statements, accompanying notes and
required supplemental information this report also presents certain other supplemental information. The
combining balance sheet—non-major governmental funds, combining statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances—non-major governmental funds are provided to give
additional information for each non-major fund. The combining statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances—governmental funds is provided to give additional information by expenditure
type. Other supplemental information is provided on pages 75 through 78.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net position: The following table presents a summary of the State Bar’s net position for the year ended
May 31, 2020, with comparison totals as of May 31, 2019 as originally stated:
Table A-1
The State Bar’s Net Position
Governmental Activities
2020
Current and other assets

$

54,403,142

$

6,266,438

Capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities
2020

2019
55,407,484

$

1,536,067

$

215,505

6,305,122

Total
2020

2019
1,698,538

$

55,939,209

2019
$

57,106,022

6,481,943

35,322

6,340,444

$

60,669,580

$

61,712,606

$

1,751,572

$

1,733,860

$

62,421,152

$

63,446,466

Deferred outflows of resources

$

28,483,837

$

7,350,376

$

1,818,118

$

469,173

$

30,301,955

$

7,819,549

Current liabilities

$

16,359,728

$

20,944,131

$

204,976

$

157,967

$

16,564,704

$

Total assets

122,975,401

Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources

7,821,613

89,240,459

130,797,014

5,698,645

21,102,098
94,939,104

$

139,335,129

$

110,184,590

$

8,026,589

$

5,856,612

$

147,361,718

$

116,041,202

$

13,786,634

$

18,149,073

$

879,998

$

1,158,446

$

14,666,632

$

19,307,519

6,090,842

$

6,267,138

$

215,505

$

35,322

$

6,306,347

$

Net position:
Net inv estment in capital
assets

$

Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

$

(70,059,188)

(65,537,819)

(5,552,402)

(63,968,346) $

(59,270,681) $

(5,336,897)

$

6,302,460

(4,847,347)

(75,611,590)

(70,385,166)

(4,812,025) $

(69,305,243) $

(64,082,706)

The State Bar’s net position invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (e.g., land,
buildings, furniture, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding reflects $6,306,347 of total net position. The State Bar uses these capital assets to provide
services to members; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the State
Bar’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Changes in net position: The following schedule shows the changes in net position for the year ended
May 31, 2020 with comparison totals for the year ended May 31, 2019 as originally stated. The difference
between revenues and expenditures represents the change in net position.
Table A-2
Changes in the State Bar’s Net Position
Governmental Activities
2020

Business-Type Activities

2019

2020

Total

2019

2020

2019

Rev enues:
Program rev enues:
Charges for serv ices

$

20,872,152

$

21,238,451

$

2,341,355

$

2,288,252

$

23,213,507

$

23,526,703

Operating grants and
contributions

1,678,145

2,052,850

-

-

1,678,145

2,052,850

General rev enues:
Membership dues

24,872,966

24,804,055

-

-

24,872,966

24,804,055

Inv estment income

1,427,944

1,018,343

9,366

8,993

1,437,310

1,027,336

Royalty rev enue

1,591,507

1,525,878

1,227,197

1,138,780

2,818,704

2,664,658

448,977

538,501

448,977

538,501

Other income

-

-

Loss on disposal of capital
assets

-

Total rev enues

(1,288)

-

50,891,691

51,176,790

3,577,918

11,531,101

10,597,640

-

5,027,902

4,979,973

-

Member serv ices

25,078,524

24,876,303

-

Public protection

16,122,685

14,207,787

3,436,025

-

(1,288)

54,469,609

54,612,815

-

11,531,101

10,597,640

-

5,027,902

4,979,973

-

25,078,524

24,876,303

-

16,122,685

14,207,787

Expenses:
General gov ernment
Public serv ices

Books

Total expenses

-

4,255,854

3,975,696

4,255,854

3,975,696

4,255,854

3,975,696

62,016,066

58,637,399

(539,671)

(7,546,457)

(4,024,584)

(1,240,531)

(64,082,706)

(10,264,896)

(3,031,823)

2,323,920

(49,793,226)

57,760,212

54,661,703

(6,868,521)

(3,484,913)

(677,936)

(59,270,681)

(9,024,365)

(4,812,025)

2,170,856

(46,761,403)

Increase (decrease)
in net position

Net position at beginning of year,
Prior Period Adjustment
Net position at end of year

$

(63,968,346) $

(59,270,681) $

7

153,064
(5,336,897) $

(4,812,025) $

(69,305,243) $

(64,082,706)
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Expense and Program Revenues—Governmental Activities
$30,000,000

$25,078,524

$25,000,000

$20,092,986

$20,000,000

$16,122,685

$15,000,000
$11,531,101

$10,000,000
$5,027,902

$5,000,000
$1,135,617

$715,593

$606,101

$0
General
Governmental

Public Services
Expenses

Member Services

Public Protection

Revenues

This chart depicts the program revenues and expenses as presented in the statement of activities on
page 18 of the financial statements. These represent the revenues and related expenses for these
programs. The State Bar also collects membership dues, investment income, royalty revenue and other
income that totaled $28,341,394 for the year ended May 31, 2020.
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Revenues by Source—Governmental Activities

Investment and
Other Income
4%

Charges for
Services
41%

Operating
Grants and
Contributions
3%
Royalty Revenue
3%

Membership
Dues
49%

Membership dues continues to be the primary source of revenue for the State Bar. Total membership dues
collections for fiscal year 2020 were $24,872,966 compared to $24,804,055 in the prior fiscal year. The State
Bar anticipates a slowing growth in the revenue from dues because the projected number of licensed
attorneys will likely stabilize over the next five years.
TexasBarCLE charges for services remain strong at $14,227,389 for fiscal year 2020 compared to
$15,165,102 in revenue from fiscal year 2019, despite the economic impact of the pandemic. The
continuing legal education offered by TexasBarCLE has continued to provide stable income for the Bar
to supplement other strategic goals that may not generate revenue, but provide a valuable service to
lawyers and the public of the State of Texas. Other charges for services include Minimum Continuing Legal
Education (MCLE) fees, Texas Board of Legal Specialization fees and Bar Journal fees.
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Business-type activities: Business-type activities decreased the State Bar’s net position by ($677,936) due
to the impact of the pension and OPEB adjustments. The TexasBarBooks Fund, shows steady income and
expenses. The revenue and expenses will fluctuate from year to year based on the number of projects
that are completed during the year. A breakdown of expenses and program revenues and revenues by
source type follows:
Expenses and Program Revenues—Business-Type Activities
$4,400,000
$4,255,854
$4,200,000

$4,000,000

$3,800,000
$3,577,918

$3,600,000

$3,400,000

$3,200,000
Expenses

Revenues
Book…
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Revenues by Source—Business Activities
Charges for
Services
65%

Royalty and
Investment
Revenue
35%

The types of revenue for the State Bar’s business activities continues to be charges for the sale of Texas
Bar books, both online subscriptions and hard copies of practice manuals. Additionally, TexasBarBooks
receives royalties from Thompson Reuters on the sale of Texas Bar books. These revenues are anticipated
to remain stable.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the State Bar uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements.
Governmental funds: The focus of the State Bar’s governmental funds is to provide information on nearterm inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
State Bar’s financing requirements. In particular, undesignated fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the State Bar’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $39,701,398 an increase of $3,709,671 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount,
$1,195,013 is nonspendable for inventories and prepaid items and $23,624,569 is committed for specific
uses by the Board.
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State Bar. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
total fund balance of the General Fund was $20,390,297, which is 73 percent unassigned. As a measure
of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the unassigned fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 38 percent of total General Fund expenditures. During
the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the State Bar’s General Fund increased by $2,730,547.
Proprietary funds: The State Bar’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
At the end of the current fiscal year, net position of TexasBarBooks totaled ($5,336,897). The total decrease
in net position was ($677,936). Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been
addressed in the discussion of the State Bar’s business-type activities.
General Fund budgetary highlights: The State Bar’s actual revenue for the General Fund was $1,013,552
above budgeted amounts. The most significant positive variances resulted from investment income and
membership dues income, which were offset by a negative variance from TexasBarCLE revenue as a
result of the pandemic closing live classes from March-May. The State Bar’s actual expenditures for the
General Fund were $2,715,585 below budgeted amounts. The most significant positive variance resulted
in travel and meeting costs from holding several meetings remotely.
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Capital asset administration:
Capital assets: The State Bar’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities and businesstype activities as of May 31, 2020, amounts to $6,306,347 (net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land; buildings and systems; and furniture,
equipment, digital publication, and other assets.
Table A-3
State Bar’s Capital Assets
Governmental Activities
2020
$

Land

154,074

Business-Type Activities
2020

2019
$

$

154,074

Construction in progress

604,551

200,534

Building and systems, net

780,927

824,028

Total
2020

2019
-

$

$

-

180,183
-

2019

154,074

$

154,074

-

784,734

200,534

-

780,927

824,028

Furniture, equipment, digital
publication and other,
4,726,886

net
$

6,266,438

35,322

5,126,486
$

$

6,305,122

215,505

4,762,208

35,322
$

35,322

$

6,481,943

5,161,808
$

6,340,444

Additional information on the State Bar’s capital assets can be found in Note 2 on page 39 of this report.
Long-term liabilities: At the end of the current fiscal year, the State Bar had capital leases of $175,596 and
accrued compensated absences of $1,029,403. The current portion of liabilities, or liabilities that are due
within one year include capital lease payments and estimated payouts of vacation leave to employees.
The following table presents a summary of the State Bar’s Long-term liabilities for the year ended May 31,
2020, with comparative information as of May 31, 2019:
Table A-4
State Bar’s Noncurrent Liabilities
Governmental Activities
2020
Capital lease payable
Deferred Rent
Accrued compensated absences

$

175,596

Business-Type Activities
2020

2019
$

220,908

37,984

$

1,605,679

-

$

-

1,521,492

Total
2020

2019
-

101,516

97,422

$

175,596

2019
$

220,908

37,984
-

1,707,195

1,618,914

Net pension liability

82,055,157

54,916,885

5,237,563

3,505,333

87,292,720

58,422,218

Total OPEB Liability

40,576,045

34,376,046

2,589,960

2,194,216

43,166,005

36,570,262

124,633,385

90,852,407

7,929,039

5,796,971

132,562,424

96,649,378

Total liabilities
Less current portion

(1,657,984)

(107,426)

(1,611,948)

(98,326)

(1,765,410)

(1,710,274)

Total noncurrent
liabilities

$ 122,975,401

$

89,240,459

$

7,821,613

$

5,698,645

$ 130,797,014

$

94,939,104

Additional information on the State Bar’s noncurrent liabilities can be found in Note 5 on page 44 of this
report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget
For the General Fund, estimated revenues for fiscal year 2021 are $44,391,553 and estimated expenditures
and other uses are $42,902,753. If these estimates are realized, and the General Fund transfers $1,488,800
to other funds as budgeted, the State Bar’s budgetary General Fund balance is expected to decrease
slightly due to the expenditures related to Board commitments of excess fund balance. With the impact
of the coronavirus pandemic, it is anticipated that the State Bar will not collect all revenues budgeted;
however, the savings in travel and meetings and conference expenses from holding meetings remotely
will more than offset the decrease in actual revenue collected.
Contacting the State Bar’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the State Bar’s finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Division Director,
State Bar of Texas, and P.O. Box 12487, Austin, Texas 78711.
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Statement of Net Position
May 31, 2020
Governmental

Business-Type

Activities

Activities

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equiv alents – cash in bank

$

Inv estments

20,016,432

$

30,673,108

-

$

-

20,016,432
30,673,108

Receiv ables
Sales, net of an allowance for uncollectibles
of $4,797 and $93,101, respectiv ely

91,152

Interest receiv able
Other accounts receiv able
Internal balances

761,902

121,540

-

121,540

2,675,671

-

2,675,671

(369,774)

Inv entories, net of obsolescence

369,774

-

11,572

402,646

414,218

1,183,441

1,745

1,185,186

54,403,142

1,536,067

55,939,209

Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

853,054

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets
Land

154,074

Construction in progress

604,551

Buildings, net

780,927

-

154,074

180,183

784,734

-

780,927

Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, software and
other equipment, net

4,726,886

35,322

4,762,208

6,266,438

215,505

6,481,943

60,669,580

1,751,572

62,421,152

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related amounts
Pension related amounts
Total deferred outflows of resources

$

7,769,115

495,901

8,265,016

20,714,722

1,322,217

22,036,939

28,483,837

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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$

1,818,118

$

30,301,955

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Net Position – Continued
May 31, 2020
Governmental

Business-Type

Activities

Activities

Total

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

$

Accrued liabilities

903,187

$

473,390

Due to agency funds
Unearned rev enue
Current portion capital lease obligations

97,550

$

903,187
570,940

651,380

-

651,380

12,673,787

-

12,673,787

77,362

-

Current portion OPEB liability

949,641

60,615

1,010,256

Current portion compensated absences

630,981

46,811

677,792

16,359,728

204,976

16,564,704

Total current liabilities

77,362

Noncurrent liabilities
Capital lease obligations

98,234

Deferred rent

-

220,908

OPEB liability

-

39,626,404

Compensated absences

2,529,345

98,234
220,908
42,155,749

974,698

54,705

1,029,403

82,055,157

5,237,563

87,292,720

Total nocurrent liabilities

122,975,401

7,821,613

130,797,014

Total liabilities

139,335,129

8,026,589

147,361,718

10,123,032

646,151

10,769,183

3,663,602

233,847

3,897,449

13,786,634

879,998

14,666,632

6,090,842

215,505

6,306,347

Net pension liability

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related amounts
Pension related amounts
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net inv estment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

(70,059,188)
$ (63,968,346)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
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$

(5,552,402)

(75,611,590)

(5,336,897)

$ (69,305,243)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Activities
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Operating
Functions/Programs

Expenses

Charges for

Grants and

Governmental

Business-Type

Services

Contributions

Activities

Activities

Total

Primary gov ernment
Gov ernmental activ ities
General gov ernment

$

11,531,101

Public serv ices

$

1,135,617

$

-

$ (10,395,484)

$

$ (10,395,484)

-

(4,312,309)

439,487

276,106

Member serv ices

25,078,524

18,729,866

1,363,120

(4,985,538)

-

(4,985,538)

Public protection

16,122,685

567,182

38,919

(15,516,584)

-

(15,516,584)

57,760,212

20,872,152

1,678,145

(35,209,915)

-

(35,209,915)

4,255,854

2,341,355

-

-

(1,914,499)

(1,914,499)

4,255,854

2,341,355

-

-

(1,914,499)

(1,914,499)

(1,914,499)

(37,124,414)

Total gov ernmental activ ities

(4,312,309)

-

5,027,902

Business type activ ities
Books
Total business-type activ ities
Total primary government activities

$

62,016,066

$

23,213,507

$

1,678,145

(35,209,915)

General rev enues
24,872,966

-

24,872,966

Inv estment income

Membership dues

1,427,944

9,366

1,437,310

Royalty rev enue

1,591,507

1,227,197

2,818,704

Other income

448,977

-

Total general rev enues

28,341,394

Change in net position

(6,868,521)

(677,936)

(7,546,457)

(57,099,825)

(4,658,961)

(61,758,786)

(5,336,897)

$ (69,305,243)

Net position (deficit) beginning of year, as restated
Net position (deficit), end of year

$ (63,968,346)

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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1,236,563

448,977

$

29,577,957

State Bar of Texas
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
May 31, 2020
Nonmajor

Total

General

Sections and

Governmental

Governmental

Fund

Divisions

Funds

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equiv alents, cash in bank

$

Inv estments

8,258,304

$

21,933,831

7,887,095

$

1,163,668

3,871,033

$

7,575,609

20,016,432
30,673,108

Receiv ables
Sales to members and other, net of an allowance for
uncollectibles of $4,797
Interest receiv able

91,152

-

84,637

162

-

91,152

36,741

121,540

Other accounts receiv able

2,428,491

240,202

6,978

2,675,671

Due from other gov ernmental funds

1,115,863

1,048,500

97,803

2,262,166

Inv entories
Prepaid items
TOTAL ASSETS

$

11,572

-

802,933

74,018

-

11,572

306,490

34,726,783

$

10,413,645

$

817,114

$

86,073

$

11,894,654

1,183,441
$

57,035,082

$

903,187

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable

$

Accrued liabilities
Due to other gov ernmental funds

-

472,556

16

818

473,390

1,146,303

198,828

917,035

2,262,166

Due to enterprise fund

369,774

-

-

Due to agency fund

651,380

-

-

Unearned rev enue
Total current liabilities

369,774
651,380

10,879,359

1,193,329

601,099

12,673,787

14,336,486

1,478,246

1,518,952

17,333,684

Fund balances:
Nonspendable

814,505

74,018

306,490

1,195,013

Committed

4,694,066

8,861,381

10,069,212

23,624,659

Unassigned

14,881,726

Total fund balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

-

20,390,297
$

34,726,783

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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-

8,935,399
$

10,413,645

14,881,726

10,375,702
$

11,894,654

39,701,398
$

57,035,082

State Bar of Texas
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position
May 31, 2020
Total fund balance - governmental funds

$

39,701,398

Amounts reported for gov ernmental activ ities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Capital assets, including accumulated depreciation, used in gov ernmental activ ities
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

6,266,438

Employee benefit related liabilities, and related accounts, are not due and payable in the
current period and are not included in the fund financial statements, but are reported
in the gov ernmental activ ities in the statement of net positions. These items include:
Net pension liability

(82,055,157)

OPEB liability

(40,576,045)

Deferred outflows related to net OPEB liability

7,769,115

Deferred inflows related to net OPEB liability

(10,123,032)

Deferred outflows related to net pension liability

20,714,722

Deferred inflows related to net pension liability

(3,663,602)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. These items include:
Capital Lease Payable

(175,596)

Deferred Rent

(220,908)

Compensated Absences

(1,605,679)

Net position of governmental activities

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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(63,968,346)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Governmental Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Nonmajor

Total

General

Sections and

Governmental

Governmental

Fund

Divisions

Funds

Funds

REVENUES
Membership dues

$

21,109,358

$

2,557,623

$

1,205,985

$

24,872,966

Accounting and management fees

650,351

-

-

650,351

Texas Bar Journal

632,032

-

-

632,032

MCLE fees

3,376,884

Professional dev elopment

-

13,628,029

599,360

-

3,376,884

-

14,227,389

Minority affairs

482,478

-

Inv estment income

939,126

49,873

438,945

1,427,944

-

363,606

363,606

Grant rev enue

-

-

482,478

Member benefits

872,804

-

-

872,804

W ebsite

586,256

-

-

586,256

Adv ertising rev iew

329,300

-

-

329,300

CDC disciplinary fees

567,182

-

-

567,182

Other income

948,966

790,862

877,474

2,617,302

44,122,766

3,997,718

2,886,010

51,006,494

Total rev enues
EXPENDITURES
Executiv e

2,882,528

-

-

2,882,528

Member and public serv ice

2,707,219

-

-

2,707,219

Professional dev elopment

9,312,703

-

-

9,312,703

Legal and attorney serv ices

1,981,183

-

-

1,981,183

Access to justice commission

626,729

-

-

626,729

Member benefits and research

203,771

-

-

203,771

Attorney compliance

1,856,243

-

-

1,856,243

Operations and security div ision

1,263,683

-

72,011

1,335,694

Finance and information technology

5,063,957

-

540,402

5,604,359

Communications

2,360,465

-

Public protection

10,646,348

-

Special serv ices

-

Expenditures related to Board commitments

3,293,221

748,590

Capital outlay

-

-

-

2,360,465

719,211

11,365,559

2,300,915

5,594,136

-

748,590

-

706,334

706,334

Debt serv ice
Principal

-

-

169,540

169,540

Interest

-

-

5,753

5,753

4,514,166

47,460,806

(1,628,156)

3,545,688

Total expenditures

39,653,419

3,293,221

4,469,347

704,497

Excess (deficiency) of rev enues ov er (under)
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital leases

-

-

163,983

163,983

Transfers in

-

-

1,738,800

1,738,800

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year, as restated
FUND BALANCES, end of year

$

(1,738,800)

-

(1,738,800)

-

-

(1,738,800)

1,902,783

163,983

2,730,547

704,497

274,627

3,709,671

17,659,750

8,230,902

10,101,075

35,991,727

20,390,297

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.

21

$

8,935,399

$

10,375,702

$

39,701,398

State Bar of Texas
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

$

3,709,671

Amounts reported for gov ernmental activ ities in t he statement of activ ities
are different because:
Rev enues in the statement of activ ities that do not prov ide current financial
resources are not reported as rev enues in the funds
Gov ernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; howev er, in
the statement of activ ities, the cost of those assets is allocated ov er their
estimated useful liv es as depreciation and amortization expense:
Capital outlay

849,504

Depreciation and amortization expense

(888,188)

Proceeds from capital leases prov ide current financial resources to
gov ernmental funds, but issuing debt increases noncurrent liabilities in the
statement of net position; repayment of capital leases is an expenditure in the
gov ernmental funds, but the repayment reduces noncurrent liabilities in the
statement of net position:
Proceeds from capital leases

(163,983)

Repayment of capital leases

119,471

Some expenses reported in the statement of activ ities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in gov ernmental funds:
Change in pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows

(14,731,469)

Change in OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows

4,385,628

Change in deferred rent

(64,968)

Change in compensated absences

(84,187)

Change in net position of governmental activities

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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(6,868,521)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
May 31, 2020
Texas
Bar Books
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receiv able, net of allowance for uncollectibles of $93,101

$

761,902

Due from other funds

369,774

Inv entories, net of obsolescence

402,646

Prepaid expenses

1,745

Total current assets

1,536,067

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $318,315

215,505

TOTAL ASSETS

1,751,572

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related amounts

495,901

Pension related amounts

1,322,217

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,818,118
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities

97,550

OPEB Liability

60,615

Accrued compensated absences

46,811

Total current liabilities

204,976

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued compensated absences

54,705

OPEB Liability

2,529,345

Net pension liability

5,237,563

Total noncurrent liabilities

7,821,613

TOTAL LIABILITIES

8,026,589

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB related amounts

646,151

Pension related amounts

233,847

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

879,998

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Inv estment in capital assets

215,505

Unrestricted (deficit)

(5,552,402)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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(5,336,897)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position –
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Texas
Bar Books
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sale and serv ices
Book sales

$

Total operating rev enues

2,341,355
2,341,355

OPERATING EXPENSES
Costs of good sold

657,379

Salaries and benefits

2,470,462

Professional serv ices

45,578

Administrativ e fee

542,548

Office, equipment, storage rentals

162,186

Postage and freight

144,971

Other administrativ e expenses

232,730

Total operating expenses

4,255,854

Operating loss

(1,914,499)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Inv estment income

9,366

Royalty rev enue

1,227,197

Total nonoperating rev enues

1,236,563

Change in net position

(677,936)

NET POSITION (DEFICIT), beginning of year, as restated

(4,658,961)

NET POSITION (DEFICIT), end of year

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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(5,336,897)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Cash Flows –
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Texas
Bar Books
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

$

1,980,946

Payments to suppliers for goods and serv ices

(1,595,857)

Payments to employees

(1,805,996)

Net cash used in operating activ ities

(1,420,907)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
Interfund transactions

371,259

Net cash prov ided by noncapital financing

371,259

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

(180,183)

Net cash flows used in capital and related financing activ ities

(180,183)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest receiv ed

9,366

Royalties receiv ed

1,227,197

Net cash prov ided by inv esting activ ities

1,236,563

Net change in cash and cash equiv alents

6,732

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

$

6,732

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss

$

(1,914,499)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activ ities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receiv able

(360,409)

Inv entories, net of obsolescence

152,868

Prepaid expenses

(1,247)

Accrued liabilities

46,949

Unearned rev enue

(9,035)

Accrued compensated absences

4,094

OPEB liability

(120,138)

Net pension liability

780,510

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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(1,420,907)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Net Position –
Fiduciary Funds
May 31, 2020
State Bar of
Texas
Insurance Trust
Private-Purpose
Agency Funds

Trust Fund

ASSETS
Cash in bank

$

Accounts receiv able

150,663

$

-

Due from general fund

4,775

762,136

TOTAL ASSETS

$

912,799

652,612
-

$

657,387

$

110,756

LIABILITIES
Due to general fund

$

Due to other organizations
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

NET POSITION, held in trust for member group insurance benefits

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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912,799

73,578

912,799

184,334
$

473,053

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Changes in Net Position –
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
State Bar of
Texas
Insurance Trust
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions of subscribers

$

Royalties

7,123,277
71,278

Serv ice agreement rev enue

750,000

Total additions

7,944,555

DEDUCTIONS
Premiums to insurance carrier

7,123,277

Accounting fees

17,976

Insurance

454,417

Rent

12

Serv ice agreement fee

250,000

Utilities

165

Total deductions

7,845,847

Income before income tax benefit

98,708

INCOME TAX BENEFIT

12,000

Change in net position

86,708

NET POSITION, beginning of year

386,345

NET POSITION, end of year

$

The Notes to the Financial Statement are an integral part of this statement.
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473,053

State Bar of Texas
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The State Bar of Texas’ (the State Bar) enabling legislation, Texas Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Art. 320a-l
(Vernon Supp. 1986), provides the authority for operations of the State Bar. In 1939, the State Bar was
created by the State of Texas legislature. Located in the judicial branch of the State government, its
primary responsibility is to cooperate in the regulation of the practice of law in the State of Texas. The
State Bar is an administrative branch or department of the Supreme Court of Texas. This report includes
the funds and account groups required to account for those activities, organizations and functions which
are related to the State Bar and are controlled by the State Bar. The State Bar is included in the financial
statements of the State of Texas as a component unit.
The State Bar’s major activities or functions include the collection and monitoring of membership dues,
discipline of attorneys, development and accreditation of professional development courses, publishing
and printing of legal text for sale to members, preparation and distribution of the Bar Journal and
providing access to a database of legal information for member use. These activities are included in the
accompanying financial statements.
Component Units
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Component units can also be other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In addition, component units
can be organizations that raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of a government unit.
Because of the closeness of their relationships with the primary government, some component units are
blended as though they are part of the primary government.
The State Bar appoints a majority of members to the Texas Bar Foundation’s (the Foundation), the Texas
Center for Legal Ethics’ (the Center) and the Texas Legal Protection Plan, Inc.’s. (the Plan) governing
body; however, because the State Bar is not in a position to impose its will on or significantly influence the
programs, projects, activities or level of service performed by the Foundation, the Center or the Plan, and
because no financial burden or benefit exists between the State Bar and the Foundation, the Center or
the Plan, they are not considered a component unit of the State Bar.
Blended Component Units
The relationship among the following component units and the State Bar is such that it meets the criteria,
as set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus – an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, for inclusion in the
reporting entity and are such that the financial statements are blended with those of the State Bar.
The Texas Bar College (the College) is an honor society designed to recognize attorneys who accumulate
at least twice as many continuing legal education credit hours each year than the minimum required.
The College was created in 1981 by order of the Texas Supreme Court. The College is governed by an
18-member board of directors, of which, 12 members are appointed by the State Bar’s President, and six
members are appointed by the State Bar’s President based on nominations submitted by the College’s
board. The College is a section 501(c)(3) corporation and is funded through membership dues, investment
income and merchandise sales. The College is reported as a Special Revenue Fund because the services
it provides, exclusively benefits the State Bar.
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to the Financial Statements
Law Focused Education, Inc. was created in 1975 as a section 501(c)(3) corporation to plan, promote
and support law-related education programs aimed at preparing elementary, middle and high school
students for effective, responsible citizenship and who are committed to liberty, justice and the Rule of
Law. Law Focused Education, Inc. is governed by a 16-member board of directors, all of which are
appointed by the State Bar’s President. Law Focused Education, Inc. is made up of two funds: Hatton W.
Sumners Grants Fund and Law Focused Education, both of which are reported as Special Revenue Funds
because the services it provides, exclusively benefits the State Bar. Contact the Finance Division of the
State Bar to obtain financial statements of the blended component units.
The State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust and Affiliate, which consists of the State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust
(the Trust) and the SBIT Insurance Agency, LLC (the Agency). The State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust and
Affiliate is custodial in nature and is reported with the fiduciary fund financial statements as a private
purpose trust fund.
The State Bar evaluated GASB No. 61 and determined the Trust meets the criteria for inclusion in the
reporting entity as a bended component unit.
The Trust was formed in 1973 to provide group insurance benefits to members of the State Bar, including
their employees, employees of the State Bar and the Trust and families of all eligible participants.
Premiums for the group policies are collected by the Trust and are remitted to the insurance company,
Prudential Insurance Company of America (Prudential), who underwrites the State Bar of Texas Insurance
Program (the Program). Prudential is responsible for all claims.
The Agency was formed on January 11, 2005, as a general lines insurance agency. The Agency was
formed to assist employees of the State Bar, the Trust and the families of eligible participants in acquiring
insurance from companies other than those currently provided by the Trust. The Trust owns 100% of the
membership interest of the Agency and is, therefore, consolidated in its financial statements. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the State Bar and are reported on a full
accrual basis of accounting, using the economic resource measurement focus, which recognizes all longterm assets and receivables, as well as long-term debt and obligations. The effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated
in process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which are supported by dues, fees, grants and other
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.
The statement of net position presents the State Bar’s nonfiduciary assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. All capital asset depreciation is reported as a direct expense of the financial
program that benefits from the use of the capital assets. Program revenues include (1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided
by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Membership dues and other
items not required to be included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Membership dues are reported as general revenues as they are the primary revenue source of the
State Bar and attorneys are required to pay this membership due in order to practice law in the State of
Texas.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information about the State Bar’s funds, including its fiduciary funds
and blended component units. Separate financial statements for each fund category – governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
Fund Accounting
The accounts of the State Bar are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set
of self-balancing accounts which comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows, fund
balance/net position, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.
Fund Structure
Governmental Fund Types
The State Bar reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: The General Fund is the State Bar’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Special Revenue Funds: The special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other
than debt service or capital projects. The Sections and Divisions are a special revenue fund reported as
a major governmental fund. The Sections and Divisions are created by the State Bar’s Board and serve
the individual members of the State Bar in certain legal specialization areas. The Sections and Divisions’
officers are elected by the members of the individual sections and divisions and are responsible for
maintaining and administering their operations. Although the Sections and Divisions collect a portion of
their revenues and pay expenditures for administration and operations individually, the State Bar
administers the collection of dues for the Sections and Divisions. The State Bar believes it is unlikely that it
will be required to use its assets to satisfy future claims of the Sections and Divisions; however, the
State Bar is liable for any claims should they occur.
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Proprietary Fund: Proprietary fund types are used to account for the State Bar’s ongoing activities, which
are operated similar to those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon income
determination, financial position and cash flows.
Enterprise Fund: Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business or where the State Bar has decided that the
determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accounting.
The State Bar reports its Book Enterprise Fund, known as Texas Bar Books, as a major enterprise fund. The
Book Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities relating to the sales of books. The principal operating
revenues of the State Bar’s Book Enterprise Fund are charges for the sales of books and royalty income.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, and administrative expenses.
Additionally, the State Bar reports the following nonmajor fund types:
Special Revenue Funds: The special revenue funds include: Texas Board of Legal Specialization Fund,
Texas Bar College, Annual Meeting, Client Security Fund, Project Grants Fund, Hatton W. Sumners Grants
Fund, Law Focused Education and Department of Public Service.
Capital Projects Funds: The capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources
that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds.
The capital projects funds include the Texas Law Center and the Technology Fund.
Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the State Bar in a trustee or agency capacity
for the benefit of others and cannot be used to support the State Bar’s activities. The State Bar has the
following fiduciary fund types:
Agency Fund – The agency fund is custodial in nature and is used to account for reporting voluntary
access to justice contributions.
Private-Purpose Trust Fund: Component Unit – Additional information about the blended presented
component unit, the State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust and Affiliate, a private purpose trust fund, can
be found on pages 25-26.
The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The agency funds do not have a measurement focus, but are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Internal activity between funds is eliminated in the
government-wide financial statements.
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This measurement focus means that only current
assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present resources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Revenues earned are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. For this purpose, State Bar considers revenues to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the State Bar considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end.
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
expenditures related to compensated absences, other postemployment benefits, pension- related
amounts and claims and judgments are recognized as expenditures only when the liability has matured
and payment is due. Capital acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds
of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital financing and capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the State Bar’s proprietary funds are charges for services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds
include the costs of sales, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Budget and budgetary accounting: The State Bar’s budget is prepared annually by the Executive Director
for the General Fund and is reviewed by the budget committee of the Board and adopted by the Board.
The Sections and Divisions major fund and other special revenue funds do not have appropriated budgets
since other means control the use of these resources. The budget passes several stages of review,
including a public hearing, adoption by the Board and approval by the Supreme Court of Texas. The
budget may be amended at any meeting of the Board, but the amendments made are subject to the
approval of the Supreme Court of Texas. Variances from budgeted revenues and expenditures are
analyzed by management, the audit and finance committee, the executive committee and the Board.
Regulations do not prohibit the State Bar from having unfavorable variances.
Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances/
Net Position
Cash and Cash Equivalents: The State Bar’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be demand
deposits, petty cash and money market accounts. Short-term highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
Investments: Investments consist primarily of United States treasury securities, government agency
securities, commercial paper and money market mutual funds, which are stated at fair value. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Investments are reported at fair value based upon quoted market prices, or
when quoted market prices are not readily determinable, estimated fair values using observable inputs
including quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, net asset values (NAV) of underlying securities
and a fixed income pricing model which uses available market rates. Investments in nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit are reported at amortized costs.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis.
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Chapter 2256 of the Texas Governmental Code (Public Funds Investment Act) authorizes the State Bar to
invest in funds under a written investment policy. The State Bar’s deposits and investments are invested
pursuant to the investment policy, which is approved annually by the Board. The primary objectives of
the State Bar’s investment strategy, in order of priority, are preservation and safety of principal, liquidity
and return on investment.
Receivables
Receivables represents amounts due from sales to members and others. All receivables are shown net of
an allowance for uncollectibles, if applicable. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established as losses
are estimated to have occurred through a provision for bad debts charged to net position. Losses are
charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a receivable is
probable. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is evaluated on a regular basis on historical experience and specifically identified questionable
receivables. The evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available. At May 31, 2020, the State Bar governmental
activities and business-type activities reported an allowance of $4,797 and $93,101 respectively.
Inventories
Inventories consists of merchandise such as books and other publications held for sale by the State Bar,
which are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined for inventories on the first-in, first-out
method. Merchandise inventories reported in the General Fund are offset in the fund level financial
statements by a nonspendable fund balance to indicate they do not represent available spendable
resources.
Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items are
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, consisting of land, buildings, furniture and fixtures, computer equipment, software and
other equipment, are reported in the governmental activities and business-type activities columns of the
government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the State Bar as assets with an initial cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of the donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend the assets lives
are not capitalized.
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Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other capital assets are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Asset Description

Asset Life

Buildings

30 years

Furniture and fixtures

10 to 20 years

Computer equipment

3 to 5 years

Software

3 to 5 years

Other equipment

5 to 10 years

Accounts Payable
Accounts payable represent the liability for the value of assets or services received at the balance sheet
date for which payment is pending.
Unearned Revenue
The State Bar collects certain dues, fees and subscription revenue in advance for future events or for
license, fees and memberships with periods beginning subsequent to year-end.
These receipts are accounted for as unearned revenue, which will be earned and recognized in the
subsequent fiscal year, as the events occur and the licenses and memberships commence.
Capital Lease
Capital lease obligations represent the liability for future lease payments under capital lease. Liabilities
are reported separately as either current or noncurrent in the statement of net position.
Compensated Absences
The State Bar grants paid annual leave to its employees. The amount of annual leave that employees
accrue depends on the length of State of Texas service as of the employee’s anniversary date and
accrued days and allowable carryover hours increases with the length of service. Subject to certain
limitations and requirements, employees’ accrued annual leave may be used while employed, through
the transfer to another State of Texas agency, at the termination of employment, at death or retirement.
The current and long-term liabilities for accumulated vacation are accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds upon the occurrence of relevant events such as resignations, retirements and other
uses of leave balances by covered employees. These obligations are normally paid from the same
funding source from which each employee’s salary or wage compensation was paid. Accrued annual
leave of $1,605,679 and $101,516 was recorded as accrued compensated absences for governmental
activities and business-type activities, respectively, for the year ended May 31, 2020.
Pensions
The fiduciary net position of the Employees Retirement System of Texas Plan (ERS) has been determined
using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This
includes for purposes of measuring the State Bar’s net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense and information about assets, liabilities
and additions and deductions from ERS’s fiduciary net position.
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Benefit payments by ERS (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments of ERS are reported at fair value.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then.
Deferred outflows of resources consists of items not yet charged to pension and OPEB expense and
contributions from the State Bar after the measurement date but before the end of the State Bar’s
reporting period.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows of resources consist of items including difference
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions and the change in proportion and
contribution differences for pension and OPEB amounts.
Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources on the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund
financial statements. Net position consists of the following:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by
outstanding capital lease obligations attributed to the acquisition of those assets.
Restricted Net Position
Net position is reported as restricted when there are external limitations imposed on its use by
creditors, grantors, contributors and the like or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
Unrestricted Net Position
Represents the remaining portion of net position.
Fund Balance
Fund balance is the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources on the governmental fund financial statements. Fund balances for
governmental funds are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned in the
fund statements.
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Nonspendable
The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
not in spendable form, such as inventories and prepaid items, or amounts that are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The nonspendable form criterion includes items that
are not expected to be converted to cash.
Restricted
Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Legal enforceability means that the State Bar can be compelled by an external party,
such as citizens, public interest groups or the judiciary, to use resources created by enabling legislation
only for the purposes specified by the legislation.
Committed
The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes imposed by formal action (resolution) of the Board. Those committed amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
type of action (resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to a fund
balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, the committed fund balance classification may be
redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of
committed amounts are imposed by the Board, separate from the authorization to raise the
underlying revenue; therefore, compliance with these constraints is not considered to be legally
enforceable. The committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent
that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contractual requirements.
Assigned
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the State Bar for
specific purposes, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In
Governmental Funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended
uses established by the Board or a State Bar official delegated by the Board or by resolution.
Unassigned
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable
amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other Governmental Funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes
for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance/net position are available, the State Bar considers amounts to have been spent first out of
restricted funds, then committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned/unrestricted
funds, as needed, unless the Board or its delegated official has provided otherwise in its commitment
or assignment actions.
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The following table details fund balances between the various categories as of May 31, 2020:
Nonmajor
General

Sections and

Gov ernmental

Fund

Div isions

Funds

Total

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Inv entories
Prepaid items
Total nonspendable

$

11,572

$

-

$

-

$

11,572

802,933

74,018

306,490

1,183,441

814,505

74,018

306,490

1,195,013

4,493,150

4,493,150

Committed to
Texas Law Center projects

-

-

Access to Justice (ATJ) student loan
repayment program
Run-off Election Reserv e
Law Related Education Program

515,000

-

-

515,000

70,000

-

-

70,000

6,179

-

-

6,179

186,776

-

-

186,776

141,975

-

-

141,975

11,495

-

-

11,495

Incubator Program

489,141

-

-

489,141

Referendum reserv e

150,000

-

-

150,000

63,500

-

-

63,500

Presidential initiativ es
Statewide Pro Bono Recruitment
Campaign
Ethics initiativ es
Texas Opportunity and Justice

Archiv es Digitzation Project
Client Security Fund
Sections
Information Technology

333,333

-

-

2,817,369

8,861,381

3,150,702

-

8,861,381
1,273,286

1,240,000

-

33,286

Future Board Commitments

866,667

-

-

866,667

Legal Counsel

100,000

-

-

100,000

Sheeran Crowley Trust

225,000

-

-

225,000

Southern Conference Bar President

75,000

-

-

75,000

Law Practice Management Project

200,000

-

-

200,000

20,000

-

-

20,000

-

-

Public Information Project
Special Rev enue Funds
Total committed
Unassigned
Total fund balances

4,694,066

8,861,381

14,881,726
$ 20,390,297

$

8,935,399

2,725,407

2,725,407

10,069,212

23,624,659

$

10,375,702

14,881,726
$ 39,701,398

At the September 2005 Board meeting, the Board adopted a financial policy to maintain a minimum level
of unrestricted fund balance. The minimum level for the year ended May 31, 2020, is approximately
$11.1 million of the unassigned fund balance. The target level is based on 3.0 months of budgeted
operating expenditures.
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Transfers
Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as transfers in by the recipient fund and as
transfers out by the disbursing fund. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in the
governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in the proprietary funds.
Reimbursements
Reimbursements are repayments from funds responsible for expenditures or expenses to funds that made
the actual payment. Reimbursements of expenditures made by one fund for another are recorded as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.
Reimbursements are not displayed in the financial statements.
Interfund Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of the
fiscal year are shown in the financial statements as, due to/from other funds. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as internal balances. These balances will be repaid within the next
year and, therefore, are classified as current.
Interfund Sales and Purchases
Charges or collections for services rendered by one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of
the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.
The composition of the State Bar’s interfund activities and balances are presented in Note 12.
Significant Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note 2. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended May 31, 2020, was as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Additions

CIP Transfers and

Ending

Adjustments

Balance

Deletions

Gov ernmental activ ities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

$

Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

154,074

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

154,074

200,534

404,017

-

-

604,551

354,608

404,017

-

-

758,625

-

-

6,489,602

Capital assets being depreciated and amortized
Buildings

6,489,602

-

Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, software
and other equipment

15,498,499

445,487

(248,886)

-

15,695,100

21,988,101

445,487

(248,886)

-

22,184,702

(5,665,574)

(10,844)

(32,257)

(5,708,675)

(10,372,013)

(877,344)

248,886

32,257

(10,968,214)

(16,037,587)

(888,188)

248,886

-

(16,676,889)

-

5,507,813

Total capital assets being depreciated and
amortized
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization for
Buildings

-

Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, software
and other equipment
Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Total capital assets being depreciated and
amortized, net

5,950,514

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

6,305,122

(442,701)

-

$

(38,684)

$

-

$

-

$

6,266,438

$

180,183

$

-

$

-

$

180,183

Business-type activ ities
Construction in progress

$

-

Furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, software
and other equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

353,637

-

-

-

353,637

(318,315)

-

-

-

(318,315)

35,322

$

180,183

$

-

$

-

$

215,505

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended May 31, 2020, was allocated in the following
manner:
Gov ernmental Activ ities
General gov ernment

$

Member serv ices

834,654
53,534

Total depreciation expense governmental activities

$

888,188

There was no depreciation and amortization expense for business-type activities for the year ended
May 31, 2020, because assets were fully depreciated. The remaining balance is considered salvage value.
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Note 3. Deposits, Investments and Repurchase Agreements
Deposits of Cash in Bank
As of May 31, 2020, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $20,819,707 as presented below:
Carrying

Bank

Amount

Balance

Gov ernmental, business-type and fiduciary activ ities
Cash in bank - carrying amount

$

13,214,747

$

13,018,405

Money market mutual funds - carrying amount at
net asset v alue

7,604,960

Total cash in bank

$

20,819,707

7,604,960
$

20,623,365

These amounts are included on the statement of net position and statement of net position – fiduciary
funds as cash and cash equivalents.
Custodial Credit Risk
In the case of deposits, the risk is that in the event of a bank failure, the State Bar will not be able to
recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The State Bar has a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk, which requires bank deposit accounts to be collateralized with
pledge securities. There is no limit on the amount the State Bar may deposit in any one institution. As of
May 31, 2020, the State Bar’s deposits are not exposed to deposit custodial credit risk because they are
collateralized with securities held by the Federal Reserve in the State Bar’s name in the amount of
approximately $14.2 million. The State Bar does not have funds that are held in foreign currency.
Investments
The State Bar uses various methods to measure the fair value of investments on a recurring basis.
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, established a hierarchy that prioritizes
inputs to valuation methods. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset.
Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the
State Bar has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are observable inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs may include quoted prices for the
identical instrument in an inactive market, prices for similar instruments, interest rates, prepayment
speeds, credit risk, yield curves, default rates and similar data.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, to the extent relevant observable inputs
are not available, representing the State Bar’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market
participant would use in valuing the asset or liability, and would be based on the best information
available.
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The availability of observable inputs can vary from security to security and is affected by a wide variety
of factors, including, for example, the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet established
in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and other characteristics particular to the security. To the
extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,
the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised
in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3.
The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases,
for disclosure purposes, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls
in its entirety, is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
in its entirety.
Investments measured at fair value using NAV per share (or equivalent) as a practical expedient to fair value
are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.
As of May 31, 2020, the fair value of investments were as follows:
Governmental Activities
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in

Other

Significant

Activ e Markets for

Observ able

Unobserv able

Identical Assets

Inputs

Inputs

Amortized

(Lev el 1)

(Lev el 2)

(Lev el 3)

Cost

Carrying Value
Fixed income securities
US Treasury securities

$

10,258,531

$

10,258,531

$

-

$

-

$

-

US gov ernment agency
obligations

16,359,355

-

16,359,355

-

Commercial paper

2,998,202

-

2,998,202

-

Certificates of deposit

1,057,020

-

Total investments at fair value

$

30,673,108

$

10,258,531

$

19,357,557

-

$

-

1,057,020
$

1,057,020

U.S. Treasury securities are valued using closing bid quoted market prices as of the last business day of the
month (Level 1 inputs). U.S. government agency obligations and commercial paper are valued using a
yield-based matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs). Certificates of deposits are valued at amortized cost.
Custodial Credit Risk
In the case of investments, there is a risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the State Bar
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The State Bar’s investment policy requires that all deposits are fully insured or
collateralized, as required by the Public Funds Collateral Act, 2257, of the Texas Government Code. The
State Bar had no exposure to investment custodial credit risk at May 31, 2020, because all certificates of
deposit were fully covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and all other investments are held
in the State Bar’s name.
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Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
State Bar’s investment policy allows for various types of investments including: United States government
agency obligations, United States Treasury securities, certificates of deposit, Banker’s acceptances,
repurchase agreements, money market mutual funds and commercial paper. Investments in United
States government agency obligations are not guaranteed by the United States government, but are
government-sponsored enterprises. As of May 31, 2020, State Bar’s credit quality distribution for securities
was as follows:
Standard and Poor's Ratings
Inv estment Type
US Treasury securities

AAA
$

US gov ernment agency obligations
Money market mutual funds

AA+
-

$ 10,258,531

-

16,252,706

7,604,960

Commercial paper

$

-

$

A-1

-

7,604,960

$ 26,511,237

$

Total
-

$ 10,258,531

-

16,252,706

-

7,604,960

2,998,202

2,998,202

2,998,202

37,114,399

GNMA Pool - not applicable

106,649

Certificates of deposit - not rated

1,057,020

Less: cash and cash equiv alents (money market mutual funds)

(7,604,960)
$ 30,673,108

Concentration of credit risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of
investment in a single issuer. The State Bar is authorized to invest funds in accordance with its investment
policy and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Authorized investments include, but are not limited to:
1. U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities – up to 100% of the investment portfolio (IP)
2. Mortgage-backed securities – guaranteed by U.S. government–sponsored agencies up to
30% of the IP
3. Certificates of deposit – up to 30% of the IP, but no more than 5% with any single issuer
4. Banker’s acceptance – up to 15% of the IP, but no more than 5% with any single issuer
5. Repurchase agreements – up to 30% of the IP, but no more than 10% with any single issuer
6. Money market mutual funds – up to 100% of the IP
7. Commercial paper – up to 30% of the IP, but no more than 5% with any single issuer
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As of May 31, 2020, the State Bar’s investments consist of the following:
Issuer

Fair Value

US Treasury securities

$

Percentage

10,258,531

33%

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp

2,833,166

9%

Fannie Mae

6,613,183

22%

Freddie Mac

6,806,357

22%

106,649

1%

Commercial paper

2,998,202

10%

Certificates of deposit

1,057,020

3%

30,673,108

100%

GNMA Pool

Total investments

$

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the State Bar manages its exposure to declines
in fair values by limiting the types of investment it allows and by limiting the average maturity to five years.
As of May 31, 2020, the State Bar’s investments exposure to interest rate risk was as follows:
W eightedAv erage
Description

Fair Value

US Treasury securities

$

US gov ernment agency obligations

Maturity (In Days)

10,258,531

204

16,359,355

451

Commercial paper

2,998,202

9

Certificates of deposit

1,057,020

15

Total investments

$

30,673,108

Note 4. Short-Term Debt
The State Bar has no short-term debt to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities
A summary of changes in long-term liabilities during the year ended May 31, 2020, is shown below:
Amounts
Beginning
Balance

Additions

Reductions

Amounts

Ending

Due W ithin

Due

Balance

One Year

Thereafter

Gov ernmental activ ities
Capital lease obligations

$

37,984

Deferred rent

$

-

Accrued compensated absences

307,152

$

220,908

(169,540)

$

-

175,596

$

220,908

77,362

$

-

98,234
220,908

1,521,492

662,308

(578,121)

1,605,679

630,981

974,698

Total OPEB liability

34,376,046

7,161,246

(961,247)

40,576,045

949,641

39,626,404

Net pension liability

54,916,885

29,050,242

(1,911,970)

82,055,157
$ 124,633,385

$

$

$

Total governmental activities

$

90,852,407

$

97,422

$

37,401,856

$

(3,620,878)

64,759

$

(60,665)

1,657,984

82,055,157
$ 122,975,401

Business-type activ ities
Accrued compensated absences

$

101,516

46,811

$

54,705

Total OPEB liability

2,194,216

457,100

(61,356)

2,589,960

60,615

2,529,345

Net pension liability

3,505,333

1,854,271

(122,041)

5,237,563

-

5,237,563

Total business-type activities

$

5,796,971

$

2,376,130

$

(244,062)

$

7,929,039

$

107,426

$

7,821,613

The liabilities for pension-related and OPEB debt and compensated absences are liquidated by the
General Fund and the Texas Bar Books fund.

Note 6. Bonded Indebtedness
The State Bar has no bonded indebtedness to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 7. Derivatives
The State Bar has no derivatives to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.
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Note 8. Leases
Capital Lease Obligations
The State Bar entered into long-term leases for financing the purchase of certain capital assets and are
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease.
A summary of original capitalized costs of all such property under lease in addition to the accumulated
depreciation as of May 31, 2020, is presented below.
Gov ernmental Activ ities
Accumulated
Assets

Depreciation

Total

Other equipment

$

307,153

$

(81,565)

$

225,588

Total

$

307,153

$

(81,565)

$

225,588

Future minimum lease payments under the capital leases, together with the net present value of all
minimum lease payments as of May 31, 2020, were as follows:
Gov ernmental Activ ities
Total Future
Minimum Lease
Year ending May 31:
2021

Total

Principal
$

77,362

Interest
$

8,779

Payments
$

86,141

2022

31,161

4,912

36,073

2023

32,719

3,354

36,073

2024

34,354

1,718

36,072

$

175,596

$

18,763

$

194,359

Operating Leases
Rent expense incurred under all third-party office space and equipment-operating leases for the year
ended May 31, 2020, totaled $564,643 for governmental activities.
At May 31, 2020, the State Bar was obligated under operating leases for the regional Chief Disciplinary
Counsel Department’s and the Texas Board of Legal Specialization’s office space, expiring through 2027.
In addition, the State Bar has some short-term leases during the year May 31, 2020.
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Future minimum lease payments on these operating leases are as follows:
Years Ending

Governmental

May 31,

Activities

2021

$

592,798

2022

577,292

2023

578,933

2024

476,061

2025

442,395

2026-2031

1,134,490
$

3,801,969

Note 9. Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Plan Description
The State Bar contributes to Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS), a public employee retirement
system. It is a single employer defined benefit pension plan, since the plan is for all state employees. For
financial reporting purposes, ERS is treated as a cost-sharing plan, since each participating employer has
an obligation to contribute. ERS provides service retirement, death and disability benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. ERS operates under the authority of provisions contained primarily in Texas
Government Code, Title 8, Public Retirement Systems, Subtitle B, Employees Retirement System of Texas,
which is subject to amendment by the Texas Legislature. The ERS’ annual financial report and other
required disclosure information are available by writing the Employees Retirement System of Texas,
P.O. Box 13207, Austin, Texas, 78711-3207 or by calling (512) 476-6431.
Plan Benefits
ERS plan covers members in employee and elected classes. The State Bar participates in the employee
class. The benefit and contribution provisions of the ERS plan are authorized by state law and may be
amended by the Legislature. The monthly benefit may vary by membership class:


The monthly standard annuity of the employee class is determined by a statutory percentage of
2.3 percent of a member’s average monthly compensation multiplied by number of years of
service credit. The average monthly compensation of the employee class may vary depending
on the hire date. For members hired on or before Aug. 31, 2009, the average monthly
compensation is the average of the highest 36 months of compensation. For members hired on
or after September 1, 2009 and before September 1, 2013, the average monthly compensation is
the average of the highest 48 months of compensation. For members hired on or after Sept. 1,
2013, the average monthly compensation is the average of highest 60 months of compensation.



The monthly standard annuity of the elected class equals the statutory percentage of 2.3 percent
of the current state salary of a district judge multiplied by the number of years of service credit.
Retirement benefits are automatically adjusted as state judicial salaries change.
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Contributions: The contribution rates for the state and the members for the ERS plan for the measurement
date of August 31, 2019, are presented in the table below:
Required Contribution Rates - ERS Plan
Employer

Members

Employee

Elected Class -

Elected Class -

Employee

Elected Class -

Elected Class -

Class

Legislators

Other

Class

Legislators

Other

10.00%

10.00%

10.00%

9.50%

9.50%

9.50%

The amount of State Bar’s contributions recognized by the ERS plan during the 2019 measurement period
was $2,074,658.
Net Pension Liability
The State Bar’s net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2019, and the total pension liability is
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial Assumptions
The methods and assumptions applied, except discount rate, in the actuarial valuation were based on
an experience study covering the five-year period from September 1, 2011 through August 31, 2016.
The table below presents the actuarial methods and assumptions used to measure the total pension
liability as of the August 31, 2019:
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate

4.42%

Inv estment rate of return

7.50%

Inflation

2.50%

Salary increase

0.0 to 9.5%

Mortality:
State agency members:
Serv ice retirees, surv iv ors and
other inactiv e members

2017 State Retirees of Texas Mortality table with mortality improv ements
based on full generational projection using Ultimate MP projections sale.
Tables were dev eloped based on the experience in the 2016 actuarial
study.

Disabled retirees

RP-2014 Disabled Retiree mortality with Ultimate MP Projection Scale
projected from the year 2014.

Activ e members

RP-2014 Employee Mortality tables for male and female with Ultimate MP
projection scale projected from the year 2014.

Cost-of-liv ing adjustments

None - Employee
2.75% - Elected
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Assets
The long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was developed using a building-block method
with assumptions including asset class of investment portfolio, target allocation, real rate of return on
investments and inflation factor. Under this method, best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class for
the plan’s investment portfolio are presented below:
Long-Term
Expected
Asset Class

Target

Arithmetic Real

Allocation

Rate of Return

Global equity

50.00%

3.91%

Global credit

11.00%

0.57%

3.00%

0.20%

Intermediate treasuries

11.00%

0.29%

Real estate

12.00%

0.90%

7.00%

0.49%

Opportunistic credit

Infrastructure
Hedge funds

5.00%

0.31%

Cash

1.00%

0.02%

Total

100.00%

6.69%

Inflation

2.50%

Expected arithmetic nominal rate of return

9.19%

Discount Rate
A single discount rate of 4.42% was applied to measure the total pension liability. The 4.42% discount rate
incorporated a 7.5% long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments and 2.63% 20-year
municipal bond rate based on the rate for Fixed Income Market Data/Yield Curve/Data Municipal bonds
with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported in
Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index”. The long-term expected investment rate of return was
applied to projected benefit payments through fiscal 2047 and the municipal bond rate was applied to
all benefit payments thereafter.
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The projections of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member and
employer contributions will be made at the current statutory levels and remain a level percentage of
payroll. The projected cash flows from the employers are based on contributions for the most recent
five-year period as of the measurement date, adjusted on consideration of subsequent events. The
Legislature passed House Bill No. 9 in the 84th legislative session during fiscal 2015 to increase the state
contributions for fiscal 2016 and 2017 and maintained the changes made by the 83rd legislative session
in Senate Bill 1459, which established proportional decreases to the employee contribution if the state
contribution was decreased. The passage of this bill is an indicator that the Legislature is committed to
increase the funding levels for the pension funds. Projected employer contributions are based on fiscal
year 2019 funding levels.
Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the net pension liability of the State Bar, calculated using the discount rate of 4.42%,
as well as what the State Bar’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1 percentage point lower (3.42%) or 1 percentage point higher (5.42%) than the current rate:
1% Decrease

Rate

1% Increase

3.42%

4.42%

5.42%

State Bar's proportionate share of net
pension liability

$ 111,772,050

$

87,292,720

$

67,347,365

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined using economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, which is the same basis used by ERS. Benefits and refunds of
contributions are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Investments of the pension trust fund are reported at fair value. The fair value of investments is based on
published market prices and quotations from major investment brokers at available current exchange
rates. However, corporate bonds in general are valued based on currently available yields of
comparable securities by issuers with similar credit ratings. ERS issues stand-alone audited Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
More detailed information on the plan’s investment valuation, investment policy, assets and fiduciary net
position may be obtained from ERS’ fiscal 2019 CAFR:
Employees Retirement System of Texas
P.O. Box 13207
Austin, Texas 78711-3207
www.ers.texas.gov
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related To Pension
At May 31, 2020, the State Bar reported a liability of $87,292,720 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2019, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
State Bar’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the State Bar’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
governments, actuarially determined.
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There have been no changes to the benefit terms of the plan since the prior measurement date. The
State Bar’s proportion of the entire ERS plan was 0.29111975% in fiscal year 2020, as compared to the
0.28934813% in the prior fiscal year.
For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020, the State Bar recognized pension expense of $6,255,587. At
May 31, 2020, State Bar reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Difference between expected and actual experience

Deferred

Deferred

Inflows of

Outflows of

Resources

Resources

$

Changes of assumptions

136,839

$

17,821,648

(1,185,240)
(2,435,860)

Net difference between projected and actual
inv estment return

1,416,104

Change in proportion and contribution differences

1,138,702

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

1,523,646

Total

$

22,036,939

(276,349)
$

(3,897,449)

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date are eligible employer contributions made from
September 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020, totaling $1,523,646, which is reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability for the year ending May 31,
2021.
Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, excluding
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized in pension expense in the
following years:
Years Ending
May 31,
2021

$

6,772,466

2022

6,087,661

2023

3,010,733

2024

744,984
$

16,615,844

Note 10. Deferred Compensation
The State Bar has no deferred compensation to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.
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Note 11. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 9, ERS provides postemployment health care, life
and dental insurance benefits through the Group Benefits Program in accordance with Chapter 1551,
Texas Insurance Code. This program is governed by the same Board of Trustees who are also responsible
for the defined benefit pension plans.
The State Bar employees participate in the State Retiree Health Plan (SRHP) administered by ERS. SRHP is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer postemployment health care plan with a special funding situation. This
plan covers retired employees of the State and other entities as specified by the State legislature. Benefit
and contribution provisions of SRHP are authorized by state law and may be amended by the Texas
Legislature. Retirees must meet certain age and service requirements and have at least ten years of
service at retirement to participate in the plan. The principal participating employer is the State of Texas.
State agencies and universities employ 188,156, or 80.4%, or the employees covered by the SRHP.
Participating entities are as follows:
State agencies

116

Univ ersities

27

Junior and community colleges

50

Other entities

8

Total participating entities

201

The maximum monthly employer contributions toward eligible retirees’ health and basic life premium are
summarized as follows:
Retiree only

625

Retiree and spouse

1,341

Retiree and children

1,104

Retiree and family

1,820

Retirees pay any premium over and above the employer contribution. The employer does not contribute
toward dental or optional life insurance. Surviving spouses and their dependents do not receive any
employer contribution. As the nonemployer contributing entity, the State of Texas pays part of the
premiums for the junior and community college.
For the measurement period ending August 31, 2019, the amount of the State Bar’s contributions
recognized by SHRP was $3,700,842. Fiscal year 2020 contributions were $3,767,155.
The total OPEB liability is determined by an actuarial valuation. The methods and assumptions applied in
the actuarial valuation were based on an experience study covering the five-year period from
September 1, 2011 through August 31, 2016, for state agency members and for the period September 1,
2010 through August 31, 2014, for higher education members.
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The table below presents the actuarial methods and assumptions used to measure the total OPEB liability
as of the August 31, 2019:
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
ERS Plan
Actuarial v aluation date

August 31, 2019

Actuarial cost method

Entry age

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate

2.97%

Inflation

2.50%

Salary increase

2.50% to 9.05%, including inflation

Annual health care trend rate

7.30% for FY2021, 7.40% for FY2022, 7.00% for FY2023, decreasing 0.50%
per year to an ultimate rate of 4.50% for FY2028 and later years

Retirement age

Experience based tables of rates that are specific to employee class

Mortality:
State agency members:
Serv ice retirees, surv iv ors and
other inactiv e members

2017 State Retirees of Texas Mortality table with a one year set forward
for male CPO/CO members and Ultimate MP Projection Scale
projected from the year 2017

Disabled retirees

RP-2014 Disabled Retiree mortality with Ultimate MP Projection Scale
projected from the year 2014

Activ e members

RP-2014 Activ e Member Mortality tables for male and female with
Ultimate MP Projection Scale projected from the year 2014

Ad hoc postemployment benefit changes

None

The following benefit revision has been adopted effective January 1, 2019, since the prior valuation for
retirees and dependents for whom Medicare is not the primary, an increase in the out-of-pocket
maximum for both HealthSelect and Consumer Directed HealthSelect for individuals and families in order
to remain consistent with Internal Revenue Service maximums.
Calculations are based on the benefit provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the
time of each valuation, and on the pattern of sharing of cost between the employer and plan members
to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effect of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future.
The discount rate that was used to measure the total OPEB liability is the municipal bond rate of 2.97% for
the measurement date ending August 31, 2019, as compared to a discount rate of 3.69% as of the
beginning of the measurement period. The source of the municipal bond rate is the Bond Buyer Index of
general obligation bonds with 20 years to maturity and mixed credit quality. The bonds’ average credit
quality is roughly equivalent to Moody’s Investors Service’s Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor’s AA.
Projected cash flows into the plan are equal to projected benefit payments out of the plan. As the plan
operates on a pay-as-you-go basis and is not intended to accumulate assets, there is no long-term
expected rate of return.
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Sensitivity analysis was performed on the impact of changes in the discount rate on the proportionate
share of State Bar’s net OPEB liability. The result of the analysis is presented in the table below:
1% Decrease

Rate

1% Increase

1.97%

2.97%

3.97%

State Bar's proportionate share of net
OPEB liability

$

51,510,470

$

43,166,005

$

36,745,242

The initial healthcare trend rate is 7.3% and the ultimate rate is 4.5%. The sensitivity of the net OPEB liability
to changes in the discount rate and health care trend rate is summarized below:
Current Health
1% Decrease

Care Cost Trend

1% Increase

(6.3%, Decreasing Rates Decreasing (8.3%, Decreasing
to 3.5%)

to 4.5%)

to 5.5%)

State Bar's proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability

$

36,246,113

$

43,166,005

$

52,208,720

The SHRP is a pay-as-you-go plan and does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement. The ERS’
board of trustees adopted the amendment to the investment policy in August 2017 to require that all
funds in this plan be invested in short-term fixed income securities and specify that the expected rate of
return on these investments is 2.4%.
More detailed information on SHRP may be obtained from ERS’ fiscal 2019 CAFR:
Employees Retirement System of Texas
P.O. Box 13207
Austin, Texas 78711-3207
www.ers.texas.gov
At May 31, 2020, the State Bar’s recognized a total OPEB liability of $43,166,005 for its proportionate share
of the collective total OPEB liability. The State Bar’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability was
0.12489197% in fiscal year 2020, as compared to the 0.12339085% in the prior fiscal year, and was based
on contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity for the period.
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At August 31, 2019, the State Bar’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources:
Deferred

Difference between expected and actual experience

Deferred

Outflows of

Inflows of

Resources

Resources

$

-

Change in proportionate share and contribution difference

2,341,445

Changes of assumptions

3,071,895

Net difference between projected and actual inv estment return
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$

$

(1,123,218)
(9,645,965)

17,747

-

2,833,929

-

8,265,016

$

(10,769,183)

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date are eligible employer contributions made from
September 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020, totaling $2,833,929, which is reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction in the total OPEB liability for the year ending
May 31, 2021.
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense in the following years:
Years Ended
May 31,
2021

$

(2,445,571)

2022

(2,445,571)

2023

(1,262,001)

2024

252,008

2025

563,039
$
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Note 12. Interfund Balances/Activities
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occurred between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or
due to other funds. The composition of interfund balances as of May 31, 2020, is as follows:
Receiv able Fund

Payable Fund

Amount

General Fund

Nonmajor gov ernmental funds

$

917,035

General Fund

Sections and Div ision

198,828

General Fund

Fiduciary Fund - SBOTIT Priv ate-Purpose Trust Fund

110,756

Sections and Div isions

General Fund

1,048,500

Nonmajor gov ernmental funds

General Fund

97,803

Texas Bar Books

General Fund

369,774

Agency Fund

General Fund

762,136

Total

$

3,504,832

During the year, the General Fund transferred $1,738,800 to nonmajor governmental funds to supplement
operations and to fund claims, technology projects and future renovations to the Texas Law Center.

Note 13. Continuance Subject to Review
The State Bar is subject to the Texas Sunset Act (Chapter 325). Subsequent to May 31, 2016, the revised
State Bar Act was approved (Texas Gov. Code section 81.001 et. seq.), which recreated the State Bar
until September 1, 2029, and thereafter, contingent upon the State of Texas legislature and the Supreme
Court of Texas.
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Note 14. Adjustments to Net Position
During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020, an error reported in OPEB related contributions made after
the measurement date was identified in the previously issued May 31, 2019 audited financial statements,
which caused an understatement of deferred outflows – OPEB related, for governmental and businesstype activities. As a result, governmental and business-type activities beginning net positions increased
by $2,503,470 and $159,796, respectively.
Additionally, there were other miscellaneous misstatements in the previously issued May 31, 2019 audited
financial statements that were not previously recorded that are included in the restatement of beginning
fund balances and not positions as well, as noted below.

Beginning balance, as prev iously reported

$

Sections and

Gov ernmental

General

Div isions

Activ ities

Activ ities

Fund Balance

Fund Balance

Net Position

Net Position

(Deficit)

(Deficit)

(Deficit)

(Deficit)

17,749,877

$

8,224,349

$

(59,270,681)

Business-Type

$

(4,812,025)

Misstatement of deferred outflows OPEB related amounts
Misstatement of accounts receiv able
Misstatement of prepaid expenses

-

-

-

6,553

2,503,470

159,796

6,553

(6,732)
-

(54,625)

-

(54,625)

Misstatement of capital lease liabilities

-

-

(93,100)

-

Misstatement of deferred rent

-

-

(155,940)

-

(35,502)

-

(35,502)

-

(90,127)

6,553

Misstatement of deferred rev enue
Total prior period adjustment
Beginning balance, as restated

$

17,659,750

$

8,230,902

2,170,856
$

(57,099,825)

153,064
$

(4,658,961)

Note 15. Contingencies and Commitments
The State Bar has no contingencies or commitments to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 16. Subsequent Events
Management evaluated the need for disclosures and/or adjustments resulting from subsequent events
through November 20, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
There are no subsequent events that necessitate disclosure and/or adjustments.

Note 17. Risk Management
The State Bar is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The State Bar purchases
commercial insurance to cover risks associated with potential claims. For the fiscal year ended May 31,
2020, there were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year, and there were no
settlements exceeding insurance coverage.
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Health, Life and Dental
Insurance coverage is provided to active state employees and their dependents by one of three health
plan administrators. State Bar employees are included in the Texas Employees Group Benefits Program
(GBP) administered by the ERS, whose risk of loss is retained with self-insured plans or transferred to the
insurance carrier with health maintenance organization (HMO) plans.
Texas Employees Group Benefits Program
Claims for health, life, accidental death and dismemberment, disability and dental insurance coverages
are established under the GBP. These coverages are provided through a combination of insurance
contracts, a self-funded health plan, a self- funded dental indemnity plan, HMO contracts and dental
health maintenance organizations contracts.

Note 18. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
See pages 3-14 for MD&A.

Note 19. The Financial Reporting Entity
See pages 28-38.

Note 20. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
The State Bar had none to report.

Note 21. Placeholder Note
Note 22. Donor-Restricted Endowments
The State Bar has no donor-restricted endowments to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 23. Extraordinary and Special Items

The State Bar has no extraordinary or special items to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.
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Note 24. Disaggregation of Receivable Balances
The State Bar had other accounts receivable at May 31, 2020, which consisted of the following:
General Fund
Clerk of the Supreme Court

$

Refundable Deposits - W eW ork

1,877,370
21,540

Texas Center for Legal Ethics

169,782

Texas Supreme Court Historical Society

45,904

Texas Bar Foundation

192

Other

313,703
2,428,491

Sections and Div isions
Family Law Royalties

89,824

Law Business Research

52,000

Other

98,378
240,202

Nonmajor gov ernmental funds
Refundable deposits

6,943

Other

35
6,978

Total

$

2,675,671

Note 25. Termination Benefits
The State Bar has no termination benefits to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 26. Component Unit – State Bar of Texas Insurance Trust and Affiliate Agreement between
Primary Government and Component Unit
The Trust entered into a professional services agreement on April 14, 2016. Under this agreement, the State
Bar established and maintains a private insurance exchange through which qualified insurance
companies can market and sell their products to members of the State Bar. The Trust offers insurance
coverage to members of the State Bar and have been allowed to participate in the State Bar private
insurance exchange since inception in October 2013. This agreement provides for the payment of an
initial fee of $687,000 and an annual fee of $250,000 thereafter, paid quarterly beginning June 1, 2016, by
the Trust to the State Bar in exchange for the State Bar’s professional services.
Contributions of Subscribers and Premiums to Insurance Carrier
Contributions of subscribers, as required by the Program, are credited to net position. In turn, premiums
for insurance coverage are charged against net position and are payable to the insurance carrier, in
accordance with applicable policy provisions, in amounts based on rates established by the carrier.
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Royalties
Royalties are received from an administration agreement between the Trust and Business Planning
Concepts, Inc. (dba Member Benefits), whereby Member Benefits provides administrative duties
pertaining to the insurance program offered by the Trust. Royalty income is recognized when Member
Benefits collect the premiums.
Commissions
Effective January 2, 2014, the Trust entered into a purchase and sales agreement with Member Benefits.
Under this agreement, the Trust agreed to sell its book of medical insurance business and its Affiliate
agreed to sell its book of individual and small group medical insurance business to Member Benefits for a
purchase price equal to 15% of revenues received in connection with the books of business. Monthly
payments related to this agreement began on February 15, 2014, and will continue monthly for a total of
72 months. Commission revenue is recognized when Member Benefits receive the commissions related to
the sold insurance policies.
Rental income
Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of each lease.
Service Agreement Revenue
The Trust recognizes service revenue when expenses are incurred that require a withdrawal from the
premium stabilization fund.
Income Taxes
The Trust and Agency are subject to the Texas gross margin tax. The Trust files a United States federal
income tax return.
Description of the Program
The Trust Program is a plan sponsor for association group insurance which provides for group term life,
long-term disability, office overhead and personal accident benefits. The Trust Program, including all
benefit charges are fully insured through contracts with Prudential. The Trust Program has no benefit
obligations outstanding as of May 31, 2020.
Program Terminations
In the event the Program terminates, the net position of the Program will be allocated, as prescribed by
the Trust Agreement, to provide the following benefits in the order indicated:
1. To liquidate all obligations of the Program;
2. To continue insurance on all those insured to the extent possible; and
3. To be applied to either the benefit of those insured or paid directly to the insured.
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Contributions
At the option of each subscriber, contributions from insured employees may be required to defray the
cost of providing insurance under a policy.
Reserve for Premium Stabilization
The underwriter of the Program, Prudential, maintains a premium stabilization reserve on behalf of the
Trust. The reserve’s purpose is to equalize the net premium cost to the Trust and, thus, minimize fluctuations
in premium cost from year-to-year by reason of variation in claim experience. Together, these funds
comprise the reserve for premium stabilization.
The premium stabilization fund represents the accumulation of (a) premiums paid in excess of claims and
other charges and (b) interest credited to the funds. This fund is used under the terms of each contract
for the payment of claims, expenses and other charges under the contract in any policy year in which
such claims, expenses and other charges exceed the amount of premiums paid by the Trust. Interest is
earned on the reserve at rates determined annually by the underwriters.
The Program year under the contract with Prudential is June 1 through May 31. The stabilization fund
totaled $2,270,990.
In the event of termination of the insurance contract, balances, if any, remaining in the reserve after final
adjustments, payment of claims, expenses, and other contractual changes would be paid to the Trust as
return of premiums. The Trust is not liable for any deficit in the premium stabilization reserve.

Note 27. Service Concession Arrangements
The State Bar has no service concession arrangements to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 28. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
See page 50 and 54.

Note 29. Troubled Debt Restructuring
The State Bar has no troubled debt restructurings to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 30. Nonexchange Financial Guarantees
The State Bar has no nonexchange financial guarantees to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 31. Tax Abatements
The State Bar has no tax abatements to report for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2020.

Note 32. Governmental Fund Balances
See page 37.
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Year Ended May 31, 2020
Variance
Positive

Budgeted Amounts
Original

Final

Actual

(Negative)

REVENUES
Membership dues

$

20,783,246

$

20,783,246

$

21,109,358

$

326,112

Accounting and management fees

650,351

650,351

650,351

-

Texas bar journal

629,878

629,878

632,032

2,154

MCLE fees

3,257,183

3,257,183

3,376,884

119,701

13,955,703

13,955,703

13,628,029

(327,674)

Minority affairs

350,000

350,000

482,478

132,478

Inv estment income

350,000

350,000

939,126

589,126

Member benefits

844,909

844,909

872,804

27,895

W ebsite

405,000

405,000

586,256

181,256

Adv ertising rev iew

380,000

380,000

329,300

(50,700)

CDC disciplinary fees

553,240

553,240

567,182

13,942

Other income

949,704

949,704

948,966

43,109,214

43,109,214

44,122,766

1,013,552

Office of executiv e director

670,896

670,896

629,331

41,565

Associate executiv e director/legal counsel

661,868

661,868

593,964

67,904

Deputy executiv e director

226,500

226,500

213,874

12,626

Deputy Executiv e Director/External affairs

261,955

261,955

248,516

13,439

Special financial adv isor

193,491

193,491

129,675

63,816

Officers and directors

850,117

850,117

721,404

128,713

Human resources

294,760

294,760

294,737

23

71,133

71,133

51,027

20,106

3,230,720

3,230,720

2,882,528

348,192

Member and public serv ices div ision director

154,037

154,037

143,553

10,484

Center for legal history

512,851

512,851

488,232

24,619

Law related education

173,238

173,238

166,298

6,940

1,010,999

1,010,999

792,420

218,579

Professional dev elopment

Total rev enues

(738)

EXPENDITURES
Executiv e

Training/Tuition
Total executiv e
Member and Public Serv ices

Gov ernmental relations
Texas young lawyers association

98,672

98,672

89,304

9,368

Sections

335,660

335,660

334,339

1,321

Local bars

455,312

455,312

375,920

79,392

Special ev ents

73,604

73,604

46,700

26,904

Law student department

20,266

20,266

10,556

9,710

280,510

280,510

259,897

20,613

3,115,149

3,115,149

2,707,219

407,930

9,950,513

9,950,513

8,713,851

1,236,662

498,601

498,601

598,852

SBOT v olunteer committees
Total member and public serv ices
Professional dev elopment
TexasBarCLE
Minority affairs
Total professional dev elopment

$

10,449,114
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$

10,449,114

$

9,312,703

(100,251)
$

1,136,411

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual – General Fund – Continued
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Variance
Positive

Budgeted Amounts
Original

Final

Actual

(Negative)

EXPENDITURES (continued)
Legal and Attorney Serv ices
Legal and attorney serv ices director

$

Texas lawyers assistance program

229,745

$

229,745

$

224,848

$

4,897

401,146

401,146

382,370

18,776

1,521,608

1,521,608

1,373,965

147,643

2,152,499

2,152,499

1,981,183

171,316

840,127

840,127

626,729

213,398

840,127

840,127

626,729

213,398

Member benefits

203,463

203,463

31,561

171,902

Research and analysis

179,700

179,700

172,210

7,490

383,163

383,163

203,771

179,392

Legal access div ision
Total legal and attorney serv ices
Access to justice commission
Total Access to Justice Commission
Member benefits and research analysis

Total member benefits and research analysis
Attorney compliance
Office of attorney compliance director

181,703

181,703

181,284

419

Adv ertising rev iew

183,126

183,126

143,217

39,909

Client attorney assistance program

545,835

545,835

542,598

3,237

Lawyer referral

361,847

361,847

369,200

(7,353)

MCLE

603,280

603,280

619,944

(16,664)

1,875,791

1,875,791

1,856,243

19,548

1,258,803

1,258,803

1,263,683

(4,880)

1,258,803

1,258,803

1,263,683

(4,880)

(33,956)

Total attorney compliance
Operations and security div ision
Purchasing and facilities
Total operations and security div ision
Finance
Accounting

946,709

946,709

980,665

Membership

706,016

706,016

670,867

Other administrativ e

1,836,698

1,836,698

1,951,084

(114,386)

Total finance

3,489,423

3,489,423

3,602,616

(113,193)

1,317,699

1,317,699

1,068,381

249,318

376,826

376,826

392,960

1,694,525

1,694,525

1,461,341

35,149

Information technology
Information technology
Customer serv ice
Total information technology

(16,134)
233,184

Communications
Office of communications director
Texas bar journal

254,629

254,629

247,721

1,212,173

1,212,173

1,310,104

6,908
(97,931)

Public information/Printing and Graphics

455,610

455,610

435,926

19,684

W eb management

412,484

412,484

366,714

45,770

Total communications

$

2,334,896
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$

2,334,896

$

2,360,465

$

(25,569)

State Bar of Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual – General Fund – Continued
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Positive

Budgeted Amounts
Original

Final

Actual

(Negative)

EXPENDITURES (continued)
Public protection
Chief disciplinary counsel

$

Griev ance ov ersight committee
Unauthorized practice of law
Professional ethics commission
Board of disciplinary appeals
Total public protection

9,942,758

$

9,942,758

$

9,881,600

$

61,158

48,800

48,800

45,549

3,251

170,000

170,000

112,588

57,412

12,000

12,000

8,943

3,057

622,646

622,646

597,668

24,978

10,796,204

10,796,204

10,646,348

149,856

Expenditures related to Board commitments
Texas student loan repayment assistance program

515,000

515,000

515,000

-

Texas opportunity and justice incubator program

571,088

81,948

81,948

-

Presidential initiativ es

126,641

15,436

15,436

-

Statewide pro-bono recruitment campaign

148,161

6,186

6,186

-

44,251

44,251

44,251

-

LAD 2018 board commitments
Referendum reserv e

100,000

-

-

Runoff election reserv e

70,000

-

-

-

Professionalism and ethics initiativ es

11,943

448

448

-

Archiv es digitization project

75,500

12,000

12,000

-

Law related education projects

79,500

73,321

73,321

-

1,742,084

748,590

748,590

-

43,362,498

42,369,004

39,653,419

2,715,585

740,210

4,469,347

3,729,137

Total expenditures related to Board commitments
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of rev enues ov er (under)
expenditures

(253,284)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) to:
Building & Equipment Fund

(388,800)

(388,800)

(388,800)

-

Technology Fund

(650,000)

(650,000)

(650,000)

-

Client Security Fund

(700,000)

(700,000)

(700,000)

-

Total other financing sources (uses)

(1,738,800)

(1,738,800)

(1,738,800)

-

Net change in fund balances

(1,992,084)

(998,590)

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year, as restated

17,659,750

FUND BALANCE, end of year

$

15,667,666

64

2,730,547

17,659,750
$

16,661,160

3,729,137

17,659,750
$

20,390,297

$

3,729,137

State Bar of Texas
Note to Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual – General Fund
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Note 1. Basis of Presentation
The State Bar adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. The State Bar’s budget is
prepared annually by the Executive Director and is reviewed by the budget committee of the Board. The
budget passes several stages of review, including a public hearing, adoption by the Board and approval
by the Supreme Court of Texas. The budget may be amended at any meeting of the Board, but the
amendments made are subject to the approval of the Supreme Court of Texas. Variances from budgeted
revenues and expenditures are analyzed by management, the finance committee, the executive
committee and the Board. Regulations do not prohibit the State Bar from having unfavorable variances.
The State Bar is not legally required to adopt a budget for Sections and Divisions, which is listed as a major
Special Revenue Fund and, therefore, a budget compared to actual is not included.
The State Bar’s budget for the General Fund is prepared using the GAAP basis of accounting.
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State Bar of Texas
Schedule of Changes in State Bar’s Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
August 31,

Measurement date

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

August 31, 2019

August 31, 2018

August 31, 2017

August 31, 2016

August 31, 2015

August 31, 2014

0.2911198%

0.28934813%

0.27637361%

0.27324143%

0.29402350%

0.30057126%

State Bar's proportionate share of the net pension liability
State Bar's proportionate share of the net pension
liability balance at August 31
State Bar's cov ered payroll*
State Bar's proportionate share of the net pension

$

87,292,720

$

58,442,218

$

60,427,988

$

53,984,064

$

39,006,462

$

43,465,009

$

20,225,911

$

22,361,932

$

20,632,468

$

19,977,021

$

19,590,734

$

19,402,731

431.59%

261.36%

292.88%

27023.00%

199.11%

224.01%

47.70%

57.89%

54.67%

55.32%

64.40%

63.40%

liability as a percentage of cov ered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability

* The covered payroll is the payroll of employees that are provided with pension through the pension plan for each plan year,
the measurement period.
The schedule of changes in State Bar’s proportionate share of net position liability and related ratio disclosure is required for ten years.
The schedule noted above is only for the years for which the new GASB statements have been implemented.

66

State Bar of Texas
Schedule of Employer Contributions – Net Pension Liability
Contributions
in Relation to

Contributions

Fiscal Years

Actuarially

the Actuarially

Contribution

Ended

Determined

Determined

Deficiency

Covered

of Covered

May 31,

Contributions

Contributions

(Excess)

Payroll

Payroll

2020

$

2,040,744

$

2,040,744

-

as a Percentage

$

20,727,003

9.85%

2019

2,027,891

2,027,891

-

21,023,817

9.65%

2018

2,482,803

2,482,803

-

20,638,696

12.03%

2017

2,371,089

2,371,089

-

19,794,416

11.98%

2016

2,293,610

2,293,610

-

19,507,265

11.76%

2015

1,845,751

1,845,751

-

19,427,203

9.50%
8.75%

2014

1,665,702

1,665,702

-

19,032,960

2013

1,376,433

1,376,433

-

18,584,172

7.41%

2012

1,341,923

1,341,923

-

17,763,494

7.55%

2011

1,373,078

1,373,078

-

16,932,249

8.11%
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to Net Pension Liability
May 31, 2020
Note 1. Changes of Benefit Terms – Pension Plan
For the year ended August 31, 2015, during the most recent legislative session, the Texas Legislature
enacted House Bill 9 (HB-9). HB-9 increased the member contribution rate for ERF members to 9.5% of
member’s compensation for service after August 31, 2015. HB-9 also eliminated the 90-day waiting period
to become a member of ERF and LECOSRF. In conjunction with HB-9, the State’s contribution
appropriation to ERF also increased to 9.5% of pay.
For the years ended August 31, 2014 through 2019, there were no changes to the plan provisions.

Note 2. Changes of Assumptions – Pension Plan
For the year ended August 31, 2019, other than the difference in the discount rate decrease to 4.42%, all
other actuarial methods and assumptions are the same for both funding and financial reporting purposes.
For the year ended August 31, 2018, other than the difference in the discount rate increase to 5.69%, all
other actuarial methods and assumptions are the same for both funding and financial reporting purposes.
For the year ended August 31, 2017, the following assumptions have been changed since the previous
pension valuation:


Decrease the investment return assumption from 8.0% to 7.5%



Decrease the inflation assumption from 3.5% to 2.5%



Establish a general wage inflation assumption of 0.5% above inflation, or 3.0%



Mortality assumptions updated from 1994 Group Annuity Mortality table to most recently published
national tables, RP-2014 Mortality tables for employees and disability retirees



Modified the application of Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method from Ultimate EAN, the
normal cost rate based on the benefits payable to a new member and the entry age
characteristics of the current active membership, to individual EAN which bases the normal cost
rate on benefits payable to each individual active member

For the years ended August 31, 2014, 2015, and 2016, other than the difference in the discount rate
(6.07% for 2014, 6.86% for 2015 and 5.73% in 2016), all other actuarial methods and assumptions are the
same for both funding and financial reporting purposes.
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State Bar of Texas
Schedule of Changes in State Bar’s Proportionate Share of
Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Measurement date

August 31,

August 31,

2020

2019

August 31, 2019 August 31, 2018

State Bar's proportionate share of the OPEB liability

0.12489197%

0.12339085%

State Bar's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability balance at August 31

$

43,166,005

$

36,570,262

State Bar's covered payroll*

$

15,386,726

$

14,865,101

State Bar's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability as a percentage of its
covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability

280.54%

246.01%

0.17%

1.27%

* The covered payroll is the payroll of employees that are provided with OEPB through the OPEB plan for each plan year,
the measurement period.
The schedule of changes in State Bar’s proportionate share of total OPEB liability and related ratio disclosure is required for ten years.
The schedule noted above is only for the years for which the new GASB statements have been implemented.
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State Bar of Texas
Schedule of Employer Contributions – Total OPEB Liability
Contributions
Fiscal Years

Actuarially

in Relation to
the Actuarially

Ended

Determined

Determined

Deficiency

Covered

of Covered

May 31,

Contributions

Contributions

(Excess)

Payroll

Payroll

$

$

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

3,700,842
1,016,477
976,371
895,157
763,559
636,780

3,700,842
1,016,477
976,371
895,157
763,559
636,780

Contribution

$

-

Contributions
as a Percentage

$ 20,727,003
21,023,817
20,638,696
19,794,416
19,507,265
19,427,203

17.86%
4.83%
4.73%
4.52%
3.91%
3.28%

The information disclosed for each fiscal year is reported as of the fiscal year-end date.
The information for all periods for the ten year schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information
is not available. During this transition period, the information will be presented for as many years as are available.
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to OPEB Liability
May 31, 2020
Note 1. Changes of Benefit Terms – OPEB Plan
For the year ended August 31, 2019, there were no changes to the benefit terms.
For the year ended August 31, 2018, the following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior
valuation for retirees and dependents for whom Medicare is not primary is an increase in the out-ofpocket maximum for both HealthSelect and Consumer Directed HealthSelect plans.
For the year ended August 31, 2017, the following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior
valuation: (a) an increase in the out-of-pocket cost applicable to services obtained at a free-standing
emergency facility, (b) an elimination of the copayment for virtual visits, (c) a copay reduction for Airrosti
and for out-of-state participants and (d) elimination of the deductible for in-network services and
application of a copayment rather than coinsurance to certain services like primary care and specialist
visits. These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal year 2018 Assumed Per Capita Health
Benefit Costs.
For the year ended August 31, 2016, the following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior
valuation: (a) an increase in the overall annual out-of-pocket maximum in accordance with the
requirements of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) (effective January 1, 2017) and (b) implementation of
(i) a program under which HealthSelect participants can consult with a licensed physician from their
mobile device and (ii) an online weight-loss program available to eligible HealthSelect participants not
enrolled in Medicare Part B. These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal year 2017
Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs. These changes became effective September 1, 2016 (except
as noted) and are incorporated into this valuation in accordance with Question Number 49 of the
Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements No. 43 and No. 45 on Other Postemployment Benefits.
For the year ended August 31, 2015, the following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior
valuation: (a) an increase to the total network annual out-of-pocket maximum, (b) an elimination of the
requirement for referrals in order to see ophthalmologists and optometrists, (c) a copay reduction for a
mental health office visit and (d) effective January 1, 2016, the inclusion of medical and pharmacy
deductibles, coinsurance and copays in the total network out-of-pocket maximum. These changes
became effective September 1, 2015 (unless otherwise noted) and are incorporated into this valuation in
accordance with Question Number 49 of the Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements No. 43 and
No. 45 on Other Postemployment Benefits. These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal
year 2016 Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs.
For the year ended August 31, 2014, the following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior
valuation: (a) implementation of an overall annual out-of-pocket maximum in accordance with the
requirements of the ACA, (b) mental health benefit changes; (c) benefit enhancements for hearing aids
and breast pumps and (d) copay reductions for generic prescription drugs. These changes became
effective September 1, 2014 (except for the out-of-pocket maximum, which becomes effective
January 1, 2015) and are incorporated into this valuation in accordance with Question Number 49 of the
Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements No. 43 and No. 45 on Other Postemployment Benefits. The
new benefit provisions are expected to have no impact on the employer’s cost.
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to OPEB Liability
May 31, 2020
Note 2. Changes of Assumptions – OPEB Plan
For the year ended August 31, 2019, the following assumptions have been changed since the previous
OPEB valuation:


The discount rate assumption was decreased from 3.96% to 2.97% as a result of requirements by
GASB No. 74 to utilize the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds rated AA/Aa (or equivalent) or higher in effect on the measurement date.



Assumed Expenses, assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit Cost,
Retiree Contribution and Expense trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its
effects on short-term expectations.



The percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will elect to
participate in the plan at the earliest date at which coverage can commence, the percentage
of future retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse, and the
percentage of future retirees and future retiree spouses assumed to use tobacco have been
updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends.

For the year ended August 31, 2018, the following assumptions have been changed since the previous
OPEB valuation:


Demographic assumptions (including rates of retirement, disability, termination, mortality and
assumed salary increases) for higher education members have been updated to reflect
assumptions recently adopted by the trustees from TRS.



Assumed Expenses, assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit Cost,
Retiree Contribution and Expense trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its
effects on short-term expectations.



The percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will elect to
participate in the plan at the earliest date at which coverage can commence and the
percentage of future retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse have
been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends.



The discount rate assumption was increased from 3.51% to 3.96% as a result of requirements by
GASB No. 74 to utilize the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds rated AA/Aa (or equivalent) or higher in effect on the measurement date.

For the year ended August 31, 2017, the following assumptions have been changed since the previous
OPEB valuation:


Additional demographic assumptions (aggregate payroll increases and rate of general inflation)
to reflect an experience study.



The percentage of current and future retirees and retirees spouses not yet eligible to participate
in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan who will elect to participate at the earliest date at
which coverage can commence has been updated to reflect recent plan experience and
expected trends.
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to OPEB Liability
May 31, 2020


Assumptions for administrative expenses, assumed per Capita Health Benefit Costs, Health Benefit
Cost and Retiree Contribution trends to reflect recent health plan experience.



Effects in short-term expectations and revised assumed rate of general inflation.



For the year ended August 31, 2016, the following assumptions have been changed since the
previous OPEB valuation:



Assumed Expenses, assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit Cost
and Retiree Contribution Trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its effects
on our short-term expectations.



The percentage of future retirees electing to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage
program at the earliest date at which coverage can commence.



The proportion of future retirees covering dependent children and the percentage of future
retirees and retiree spouses assumed to use tobacco have been updated to reflect recent plan
experience and expected trends.

For the year ended August 31, 2015, the following assumptions have been changed since the previous
OPEB valuation:


The Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and Assumed Expenses for retirees and dependents
have been updated to reflect recent health plan experience.



The percentage of future retirees electing to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage
program at the earliest date at which coverage can commence has been updated to reflect
recent plan experience and expected trends.



Assumed salary increases and rates of mortality, termination, disability and retirement for Higher
Education members were updated to remain consistent with the assumptions, which were
adopted by the TRS board earlier this year for use by the TRS retirement plan actuary; and the
Health Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution Trends have been updated to reflect changes in
short-term expectations due to recent health plan experience. The following benefit revisions have
been adopted since the prior valuation: (a) an increase to the total network annual out-of-pocket
maximum, an elimination of the requirement for referrals in order to see ophthalmologists and
optometrists, a copay reduction for a mental health office visit and (d) effective January 1, 2016,
the inclusion of medical and pharmacy deductibles, coinsurance and copays in the total network
out-of-pocket maximum. These changes became effective September 1, 2015 (unless otherwise
noted) and are incorporated into this valuation in accordance with Question Number 49 of the
Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements No. 43 and No. 45 on Other Postemployment
Benefits. These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal year 2016 Assumed Per
Capita Health Benefit Costs.
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State Bar of Texas
Notes to OPEB Liability
May 31, 2020
For the year ended August 31, 2014, the following assumptions have been changed since the
previous OPEB valuation:


The Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and Assumed Expenses for retirees and dependents
have been updated to reflect recent health plan experience.



The percentage of future retirees electing coverage for their spouses, the percentage of future
retirees electing to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage program at the earliest
date at which coverage can commence and the percentage of future retirees assumed to use
tobacco have been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends.



Assumed rates of retirements for Higher Education members who are not grandfathered under
current TRS Care eligibility provisions as of August 31, 2014, were updated to remain consistent with
the assumptions used by the TRS retirement plan actuary.



The Health Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution Trends have been updated to reflect changes
in short-term expectations due to recent health plan experience.
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Other Supplemental Information
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State Bar of Texas
Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds
May 31, 2020
Texas Board

Hatton W.

of Legal

Texas

Client

Texas

Project

Sumners

Total
Law

Department

Nonmajor

Specialization

Bar

Annual

Security

Law

Technology

Grants

Grants

Focused

of Public

Governmental

Fund

College

Meeting

Fund

Center

Fund

Fund

Fund

Education

Service

Funds

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equiv alents - cash in bank

$ 2,435,034

Inv estments

$

426,419

-

-

-

-

$

514,630

$

32,572

$

116,547

$

-

$

-

$

345,831

$

-

$

-

$

3,871,033

-

3,169,812

4,405,797

-

-

-

-

-

7,575,609

-

20,087

16,654

-

-

-

-

-

36,741

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,978

Receiv ables
Interest receiv able
Other accounts receiv able

6,943

Due from other gov ernmental funds
Prepaid items
TOTAL ASSETS

35

-

-

-

-

-

33,286

54,517

-

10,000

-

97,803

11,120

1,000

67,722

-

-

226,648

-

-

-

-

306,490

$ 2,453,097

$

$

$

427,454

$

582,352

$ 3,222,471

$ 4,538,998

$

$

$

$

259,934

$

54,517

$

$

-

$

345,831

$

10,000

$

-

$ 11,894,654

$

-

$

-

$

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other gov ernmental funds
Unearned rev enue
Total liabilities

251,307
251,307

-

$

-

563

255

42,600

121,972

161,473

79,484

204,636

201,711

405,102
405,102

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,848

-

-

50,206

-

-

54,517

295,625

45,848

-

54,517

345,831

-

-

-

818

-

-

917,035

10,000

-

601,099

10,000

-

1,518,952

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Committed
Total fund balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

11,120

1,000

67,722

226,648

-

-

-

-

306,490

2,190,670

221,818

312,919

2,817,369

4,493,150

33,286

-

-

-

-

10,069,212

2,201,790

222,818

380,641

2,817,369

4,493,150

259,934

-

-

-

-

10,375,702

582,352

$ 3,222,471

$ 4,538,998

-

$ 11,894,654

$ 2,453,097

$

427,454

$

-

-

76

$

259,934

$

54,517

$

345,831

$

10,000

$

State Bar of Texas
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Texas Board

Hatton W.

of Legal

Texas

Client

Texas

Project

Sumners

Total
Law

Department

Nonmajor

Specialization

Bar

Annual

Security

Law

Technology

Grants

Grants

Focused

of Public

Governmental

Fund

College

Meeting

Fund

Center

Fund

Fund

Fund

Education

Service

Funds

REVENUES
Membership dues
Inv estment income
Grant rev enue
Other income
Total rev enues

$ 1,205,985

$

-

$

-

34,825

3,911

5,919

-

-

-

$

-

$

189,114

-

$

205,061

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

-

55,000

$

-

$

115
276,106
-

-

$

-

$

1,205,985

-

-

438,945

32,500

-

363,606

29,850

273,639

534,566

38,919

500

-

-

-

-

877,474

1,270,660

277,550

540,485

228,033

205,561

-

55,000

276,221

32,500

-

2,886,010

1,183,727

247,112

505,008

277,568

2,300,915

EXPENDITURES
-

-

-

55,000

32,500

-

Administration

Special serv ices

-

-

-

-

72,011

-

-

-

-

-

72,011

Finance and information technology

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

540,402

Public Protection Div ision

-

-

-

Capital Outlay

-

-

-

719,211

540,402

-

-

-

-

-

-

719,211

78,668

627,666

-

-

-

-

-

706,334

Debt Serv ice
Principal

-

-

-

-

-

169,540

-

-

-

-

169,540

Interest

-

-

-

-

-

5,753

-

-

-

-

5,753

32,500

-

4,514,166

-

-

(1,628,156)

Total expenditures

1,183,727

247,112

505,008

719,211

150,679

1,343,361

55,000

86,933

30,438

35,477

(491,178)

54,882

(1,343,361)

-

277,568

Excess (deficiency) of rev enues
ov er (under) expenditures

(1,347)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from capital leases

-

-

-

163,983

-

-

-

-

163,983

Transfers in

-

-

-

700,000

388,800

650,000

-

-

-

-

1,738,800

Total other financing sources

-

-

-

700,000

388,800

813,983

-

-

-

-

1,902,783

Net change in fund balances

86,933

30,438

35,477

208,822

443,682

(529,378)

-

(1,347)

-

-

274,627

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year

2,114,857
$ 2,201,790

192,380
$

222,818

$

-

-

345,164

2,608,547

4,049,468

380,641

$ 2,817,369

$ 4,493,150

77

789,312
$

259,934

$

-

1,347
$

-

$

-

$

-

10,101,075

-

$ 10,375,702

State Bar of Texas
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Governmental Funds
Year Ended May 31, 2020
Nonmajor

Total

General

Sections and

Governmental

Governmental

Fund

Divisions

Funds

Funds

REVENUES
Membership dues

$

21,109,358

$

2,557,623

$

1,205,985

$

24,872,966

Accounting and management fees

650,351

-

-

Texas Bar Journal

632,032

-

-

632,032

3,376,884

-

-

3,376,884

-

14,227,389

MCLE fees
Professional dev elopment

13,628,029

599,360

650,351

Minority affairs

482,478

-

Inv estment income

939,126

49,873

438,945

1,427,944

-

363,606

363,606

Grant rev enue

-

-

482,478

Member benefits

872,804

-

-

872,804

W ebsite

586,256

-

-

586,256

Adv ertising rev iew

329,300

-

-

329,300

CD disciplinary fees

567,182

-

-

Other income

948,966

790,862

877,474

2,617,302

44,122,766

3,997,718

2,886,010

51,006,494

Total rev enues

567,182

EXPENDITURES
Salaries

17,968,779

-

518,769

18,487,548

Benefits

6,332,857

-

190,402

6,523,259

Trav el

1,445,184

315,081

148,825

1,909,090

Meetings and conferences

3,687,179

1,111,186

522,769

5,321,134

Professional serv ices

2,848,603

652,343

322,605

3,823,551

Court fees
Publicity and adv ertising

64,510

-

-

64,510

544,899

9,697

99,924

654,520
654,373

Dues, subscriptions and licenses

627,006

866

26,501

Education and training

128,572

77,634

175

206,381

Supplies, awards, gifts and specialty items

455,816

22,972

154,648

633,436

1,163,754

Rentals - office, equipment and storage

2,396

120,658

1,286,808

Maintenance and repairs

494,913

-

534,295

1,029,208

Utilities

209,050

-

-

209,050

Postage and freight

711,747

26,957

20,428

759,132

Telephone

384,531

53,777

31,196

469,504

Insurance

584,800

173

Claims and adjustments

-

Administrativ e
Printing and copying
Capital outlay

-

-

584,973

719,211

719,211

855,107

724,053

149,720

1,728,880

1,146,112

296,086

48,987

1,491,185

-

-

722,386

722,386

Principal

-

-

176,914

176,914

Interest

-

-

5,753

5,753

4,514,166

47,460,806

(1,628,156)

3,545,688

Debt serv ice:

Total expenditures

39,653,419

3,293,221

4,469,347

704,497

Excess (deficiency) of rev enues ov er (under)
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital leases

-

-

163,983

163,983

Transfers in

-

-

1,738,800

1,738,800

Transfers out
Other financing sources (uses)

(1,738,800)

-

(1,738,800)

-

-

(1,738,800)

1,902,783

163,983

Net change in fund balances

2,730,547

704,497

274,627

3,709,671

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year, as restated

17,659,750

8,230,902

10,101,075

35,991,727

FUND BALANCE, end of year

$

20,390,297

78

$

8,935,399

$

10,375,702

$

39,701,398

December 3, 2020
To the Board of Directors
State Bar of Texas
1414 Colorado Street, 3rd Floor
Austin, TX 78701
We have audited the financial statements of the State Bar of Texas (the State Bar) as of and for the year
ended May 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2020. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit
As communicated in our engagement letter dated April 21, 2020, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit
of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the State Bar solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.
We have provided our findings regarding a material weakness over financial reporting and other control
deficiencies noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated December 3, 2020.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence.

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.
1601 South MoPac Expressway, Suite D250 | Austin, Texas 78746
Main: 512.609.1900
CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM

Board of Directors and Management
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
Page 2
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the State Bar is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting
policies or their application during 2020. No matters have come to our attention that would require us,
under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual
transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
Significant Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.
The most significant accounting estimates affecting the State Bar’s financial statements are
management’s estimate of the net pension liability, other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability,
depreciable lives of capital assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, and the fair value of investments.
The net pension liability is obtained from Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS) through a report
prepared for the State Bar by ERS’s consulting actuary in compliance with GASB Statement No. 68.
Information regarding the State Bar’s OPEB liability is obtained through a similar report prepared for the
State Bar by ERS’ consulting actuary in compliance with GASB Statement No. 75. Management’s estimate
of the depreciable lives of capital assets is based on management’s assumptions and historical
knowledge of capital assets with similar lives. Management’s estimate of allowance for doubtful accounts
is based on management’s historical knowledge of customer balances. Investment fair values are
provided by a third party asset management company. We evaluated the inputs and results of each of
these estimates, and determined them to be appropriate in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.
Financial Statement Disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to financial statement users. The financial statement disclosures are neutral,
consistent, and clear.
Identified or Suspected Fraud
We did not identify or obtain information that indicates that fraud may have occurred.
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Board of Directors and Management
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
Page 3
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each
applicable opinion unit.
The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the
current and prior periods as determined by management are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.
The attached schedule summarizes the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures
and corrected by management that were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion units.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the State Bar’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.
Representations Requested from Management
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
management representation letter dated November 20, 2020, which is available upon request.
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there was no consultations
with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues
In the normal course of our professional association with the State Bar, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and
regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks
of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the
State Bar’s auditors.

Board of Directors and Management
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
Page 4
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements
Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents
containing the State Bar’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information
identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such
other information. However, in accordance with such standards, with respect to the supplementary
information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries with management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary
information to the underlying records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statement themselves.
Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or
its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of
the State Bar and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Board of Directors and Management
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
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Schedule of Corrected Misstatements
Account
Description
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1006
to record BTA prior period adjustment for Deferred Outflows - OPEB
contributions
WT4-0000-17000WT4-0000-30005Total

Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB (BTA)
Net Position

Debit

Credit

159,796
159,796

159,796
159,796

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1007
to correct beginning net position / fund balance for FY2019
adjustments previously passed on
01-0000-3000503-0000-30005F0-9330-4050001-1240-5016001-3500-4010003-6265-40400F0-0000-30005Total

Fund Balance - Undesignated
Fund Balance - Undesignated
Interest Income
Group Insurance
Dues Revenue
Book sales
Fund Balance - Undesignated

90,127.00
6,732.00
6,553.00

103,412.00

54,625.00
35,502.00
6,732.00
6,553.00
103,412.00

GASB Journal Entries
GASB Entry JE # 0007
to record GTA prior period adjustment for Deferred Outflows - OPEB
contributions
WT3-0000-17000WT3-0000-30005Total

Deferred Outflows related to OPEB (GTA)
Net Position

2,503,470
2,503,470

2,503,470
2,503,470

GASB Entry JE # 0008
to adjust beginning net position for Deferred Rent Balance as of
5/31/2019.
WT2-0000-35005WT2-1220-50700WT2-1240-50700WT2-1250-50700WT2-4091-50700Total

Net Position
Rent Expense
Rent Expense
Rent Expense
Rent Expense

155,940

155,940

25,358
68,558
40,073
21,951
155,940

GASB Entry JE # 0009
to adjust beginning net position for capital leases incorrectly
omitted for FY2019.
WT2-0000-35005WT2-4300-51020Total

Net Position
Capital Lease Payments

93,100
93,100

93,100
93,100

Board of Directors and Management
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
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Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements
Account
Description
Proposed Journal Entries JE # 3001
To write off amounts accrued under previous TFLF contract
F0-0000-20010Accounts Payable - Other
F0-9330-50365-F019 TFLF Contract
Total

Debit

Credit

72,500
72,500

72,500
72,500

Proposed Journal Entries JE # 3002
to record additional monthly fees for FY2020
19-0000-1301019-4400-40232Total

Accounts Receivable - Other
Monthly Fee

9,550
9,550

9,550
9,550

Proposed Journal Entries JE # 3003
to reclassify payments on capital leases from prepaids to debt
service expenditure
11-4300-5102211-0000-15020Total

Monthly Lease Payments
Prepaid Other

57,847.00
57,847.00

57,847.00
57,847.00

Proposed Journal Entries JE # 3006
to true up investment balance to match December 31, 2020
statement
TAPS-10015
TAPS-41000
Total

Certificates of Deposit (CD)
Interest-Certificates of Deposit

Total Proposed Journal Entries

16,317.00
16,317.00

16,317.00
16,317.00

156,214.00

156,214.00

December 3, 2020
To Management and the Board of Directors
State Bar of Texas
1414 Colorado Street, 3rd Floor
Austin, TX 78701
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of State Bar of Texas (the State Bar) as of
and for the year ended May 31, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered the State Bar’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the State Bar’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event
occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows:


Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote
but less than likely.



Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.

We consider the following deficiency in the State Bar’s internal control to be a material weakness:
Restatement of beginning net position
The State Bar restated beginning net position of the government and business-type activities to correct a
material misstatement of deferred outflows related to Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(OPEB). The error reported was in OPEB related contributions made after the measurement date, which
resulted in an understatement of deferred outflows in prior year financial statements for the government
and business-type activities in the amounts of $2,503,370 and $159,796, respectively. The existence of
such a material restatement indicates that the State Bar’s system of controls did not properly detect
and/or prevent such an error. Management should examine the adjustments required and address any
inherent limitations in its internal control system, and modify accordingly.

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.
1601 South MoPac Expressway, Suite D250 | Austin, Texas 78746
Main: 512.609.1900
CPAs AND ADVISORS | WEAVER.COM

Management and Board of Directors
State Bar of Texas
December 3, 2020
Page 2
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance. We did not identify any issues that would require communication as a
significant deficiency, however, a significant deficiency may still exist. Our audit did, however, reveal
other areas for improvement, which we bring to your attention below.
Decentralized operations
Although all financial information is compiled at the State Bar’s main office, the information gathered for
the financial statements is created and provided by multiple sections and divisions at various locations.
Internal controls exist to protect State Bar’s assets, however, the implementation of those controls is
subject to how effectively management can enforce compliance with the State Bar’s policies and
procedures upon its sections and divisions. We noted the following instances during our audit procedures
in which the decentralized nature of operations caused noncompliance with internal control policies or
misstatements:
The State Bar’s internal purchasing guidelines require amounts over $5,000 to have at least three vendor
quotes, with purchases over $10,000 requiring open bid offers from 3 vendors in some instances. For
purchases $25,000 and above, a public request for proposal (RFP) is to be performed if the purchase
cannot otherwise be made under an existing Comptroller of Public Accounts procurement contract. We
noted instances during the year ended May 31, 2020 where no evidence was maintained that proper
procurement steps, including public RFP, was properly performed. In general, proper procurement
documentation was maintained by purchasing but less so when the procurement was made by other
departments. We recommend management in all departments be required to document the
procurement process and retain all relevant documentation in accordance with internal policy.
Additionally, the State Bar may consider evaluating its policies to provide clear guidance on
documentation required for sole source contracts, or other exceptions to the purchasing guidelines.
During the course of the audit, we also noted that one of the sections and divisions approved an
amendment to a vendor contract without receiving formal approval from the State Bar’s legal
department. While the misstatement caused by this oversight was not material, it creates a heightened
risk of fraud and improper financial reporting. We recommend that management reinforce existing
policies and procedures related to financial reporting to ensure better communication among the
divisions, proper compliance, and documentation of internal controls.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors,
others within the State Bar, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

EXHIBIT F

TYLA presidenT’s pAge
Contact TYLA at tyla@texasbar.com or go to tyla.org.

A Full FALL
OctOber is One Of my favOrite mOnths Of the year—scary movies, generally relief
from this Texas heat, and countless Hocus Pocus showings. On a more serious note, since
1989, October has been designated National Domestic Violence Awareness Month. As a
family law attorney, I know the importance of bringing awareness to this issue. And since
the pandemic began, family lawyers have seen many domestic violence-related cases.
Under the leadership of past President Baili Rhodes, TYLA created the Free From Violence
website, which contains information about domestic violence and elder abuse laws,
community resources, video interviews with justice system participants, and testimonials
from survivors. Our goal is to help those living with the harsh reality of physical,
emotional, and mental abuse to feel empowered to get help. We endeavor to help every
Texan live a life that is free from violence. If you or someone you know is affected by
domestic violence, go to our website at freefromviolence.tyla.org or call the National
Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-800-799-7233. We also have resources available at
tyla.org, including Healing the Wounds to assist with navigating the legal system after
surviving domestic abuse and Ending the Violence: How to Obtain a Texas Protective Order.
Please watch out for one another.

In September, our directors attended TYLA’s virtual first quarter board meeting. Per
usual, they have been busy working on projects for the year. Committee chairs and
representatives gave updates on our latest projects, including two additions to our TYLA
podcast repertoire:
1. Young Gunners Season 2: Business Development Series—Season two of our TYLA
podcast focuses on the business side of practicing law with a series of episodes
aimed toward business development. We will explore topics on landing clients,
business development for the introvert, and many more. Stay tuned!
2. Practice Areas 101 Podcast—Launching this month, this podcast features young
lawyers from across the state discussing various aspects of their practice areas,
including some funny stories and words of advice to law students wanting to learn
more. We are seeking guests to appear on the podcast, so please reach out to Cali
Franks (Dallas) at TYLAPodcast@gmail.com.
At our virtual meeting, we honored two
directors who have gone above and beyond
in their leadership and service. Laura Pratt
(Lubbock) was our First Quarter Small City
Champ and Brandon Draper (Houston)
was our First Quarter Large City Champ.
They truly embody the TYLA spirit of an
uncommon leader. They received WWEPRATT
DRAPER
style champion belts and will hold the titles
until our next meeting in November. TYLA continues to foster and develop future
leaders in the community and this profession.
October rounds out the last leg of TYLA Virtual Tri, which is the swim portion. We
enjoyed participating in this wellness activity with our friends and family across the state.
We continue to promote Vote America: Court the Vote and encourage all eligible voters to
vote. Finally, we are bringing back the Barristers Out for Blood blood donation initiative
to assist with the statewide shortage. Be well, everyone!

BRITNEY HARRISON

2020-2021 President, Texas Young Lawyers Association
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Sharing Resources

BASED ON LESSONS LEARNED
TEN YEARS. IT IS HARD TO BELIEVE THAT 10 YEARS AGO, I looked at the pass list for the
July 2010 bar examinees and saw my name. It was a moment of shock and utter
joy—my biggest accomplishment. I am in a completely different place than I
envisioned back then. My journey of navigating law school, finances, and finding the
practice area that brings me joy inspired some of the projects the Texas Young
Lawyers Association is developing this year.

When I started at the University of Texas School of Law (hook ’em!), I had no idea
what I was doing or what I was in for at the time. I just knew I needed to work
hard, get good grades, and obtain a job that would help me pay for my student loan
debt. I simply took out the loans each year and went to school. If I knew then what
I know now, I would have made much smarter decisions with my finances and
summer firm salaries. I have learned that many of my fellow young lawyers were in
the same boat back then, so now, we want to help our future colleagues. With that,
we are developing our Financial Literacy and Debt Management Series, which will
have an entire section directed toward law students. Our goal is to better educate law
students and young lawyers on how to successfully take charge of their financial
well-being and make informed decisions earlier in the process. The project will also
include information on retirement planning and disability insurance. We aim to
assist all lawyers, especially solo and small firm attorneys.
When I began my legal career, I worked at a litigation boutique in Austin practicing
commercial and employment litigation. It paid very well and allowed me to make
those pesky student loan payments and more importantly, pay my dad’s college
tuition. However, that job brought me very little joy, and I was beginning to doubt
my decision to practice law. It was not until I took a pro bono family law case that I
realized I was meant to be a lawyer. I contemplated my transition to family law for
about a year. I took family lawyers to lunch and coffee, attended CLEs, and met
with a financial planner. In September 2013, I made the decision to leave my firm
and started practicing at a prestigious family law firm in Austin.
In trying to develop additional projects for this year, I spoke with fellow board
member Meagan Harding, of Houston, and we discussed the difficulties lawyers
desiring to transition to a new area of practice may have. And from that, we
developed the idea for Transitioning Your Area of Practice: A Guide to Ease the
Transition. This guide will consist of advice and accounts from lawyers who have
successfully transitioned from one area to another and provide information about
some of the changes to expect. We are looking forward to launching this spring.
We cannot wait to share these resources with you!

BRITNEY HARRISON

2020-2021 President, Texas Young Lawyers Association
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Choose to BE GRATEFUL
For many, the first thing that comes to mind is
Good Riddance! Throw the WHOLE YEAR away! I would be lying if I said these
thoughts have not crossed my mind. This unprecedented year has been a roller
coaster of emotions and utter chaos. It is hard not to dwell on all the negative things
that have transpired. Like many of you, I have lost loved ones and did not get to say
goodbye. I miss being able to drive down to Austin and spend time with my family.
I have had to get used to this new way of living and practicing law from the confines
of my home. However, this December, I am choosing to look back on the good that
has occurred, take pride in the things I have accomplished this year, and choose to
be grateful. At the end of the day, we are enduring and doing the best we can. Give
yourself a hand!
2020 is finally winding to a close.

The Texas Young Lawyers Association has worked hard these first two quarters to
continue serving the public, our members, and our future members. Our board has
come together and developed many projects already without ever getting a chance to
meet in person. At our second quarter board meeting, I was amazed at all of the things
our members have accomplished since September. To name a few:
• Launched the Practice Areas 101 podcast series;
• Launched another season of Young Gunners, a podcast that focuses on business
development strategies for young lawyers;
• Launched a social media campaign featuring Texas-based celebrities, such as
Liza Koshy and Bri Bagwell, to encourage all eligible voters to get out and vote;
and
• Zoomed across the state with our TYLA Virtual Roadshows featuring young
lawyers Brandon Draper and Jackie Furlow in Houston.
We also honored our Second Quarter Small City and Large City Champs at our
virtual meeting in November. Our previous Small City Champ passed the belt to
Dave Hagan, of Longview. Hagan is a
second-year TYLA director and has been
instrumental in developing our
expunction clinic materials. Our previous
Large City Champ passed the belt to
Johnathan Stone, of Austin. Stone is a
second-year TYLA director and our “rules
guru.” He led the development of new
HAGAN
STONE
rules to govern our virtual advocacy
competitions as well as our Evidence Guide, which we plan to distribute in the spring.
Both directors have shown great leadership, and their hard work is invaluable.
This December will look a lot different than most years, but I encourage you to
make the most of it. Create new traditions with your friends and family. Organize a
virtual gathering for games and good times. Binge watch the latest Hallmark movies.
Take some much-needed time off for self-care. Though we have all struggled this
year, let’s choose to be grateful for the positive things. We are resilient and will turn
things around in 2021. I wish you all a wonderful holiday season, and I’ll see you
next year!

BRITNEY HARRISON

2020-2021 President, Texas Young Lawyers Association
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